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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K, including Item 7, "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations", contains forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We may also make forward-looking statements in other reports filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, in materials delivered to stockholders, and in press releases. In addition, our representatives may from time to time make
oral forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements relate to future events and typically address our expected future business and financial performance. Statements in this report that are

not historical facts are forward looking statements. Words such as "expect," "anticipate," "intend," "plan," "aspire," "believe," "seek," "see," "will," "would,"

"may," "target," and similar expressions and variations or negatives of these words, typically identify such forward-looking statements. These include, among
others, statements relating to:

erisks related to the global pandemic associated with the COVID-19 pandemic;

srelationships with and financial condition of our significant customers;

scontinued market acceptance of our products and services;

eour ability to continuously develop and enhance products in a timely, cost-effective, technically advanced, and competitive manner;
eour ability to deliver our solutions in a timely fashion within budget, particularly large and complex software implementations;

*our dependency on the industries in which we serve;

eour ability to meet our financial expectations;

sincreasing competition in our market from companies of greater size and with broader presence;

eour ability to successfully integrate and manage acquired businesses or assets to achieve expected strategic, operating, and financial goals;
eour ability to protect our intellectual property rights;

eour ability to maintain a reliable, secure computing environment;

eour ability to conduct business in the international marketplace;

sour ability to comply with applicable U.S. and international laws and regulations; and

«fluctuations in credit market conditions, general global economic and political conditions, and foreign currency exchange rates.
We assume no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements except as required by federal securities laws.

Forward-looking statements are based on management’s beliefs, assumptions and expectations of future events and trends that are subject to risks and uncertainties.
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date made, and actual future results and trends may differ materially from historical results or those reflected in
any such forward-looking statements depending on a variety of factors. We have included important factors in this Form 10-K, particularly under "Item 1A. Risk
Factors" that we believe could cause actual results to differ materially from any forward-looking statement. Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
forward-looking statements. For additional information concerning factors that may cause actual results to vary materially from those stated in the forward-looking
statements, see our reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").



PART 1

em 1. Business

Who We Are

CSG Systems International, Inc. (the “Company”, “CSG”, or forms of the pronoun “we”) is a purpose-driven, SaaS platform company that enables large enterprise
customers in a wide variety of industry verticals to tackle the ever-growing complexity of business in the digital age. Our cloud-first architecture and customer-
centric approach help companies around the world acquire, monetize, engage, and retain their B2B (business-to-business) and B2C (business-to-consumer)
customers. CSG manages billions of critical customer interactions annually, and we do it with a singular focus — an obsession on our customers’ success.

As a global technology leader, we aspire to envision, invent, and shape a better, more future-ready world. Specifically, our mission is focused on helping leading
brands compete and win in the digital age by making it easier for their customers do business with them by channeling the power of all to make ordinary customer
and employee experiences extraordinary.

Every company needs to make it easier for their consumer and enterprise customers to do business with them in the customers’ preferred modality that provides an
exceptional experience for their employees. They need to make it easier for customers to identify which product or service is right for them; easier to buy, procure,
and provision their goods and services; easier to communicate with or get updates from them; easier to modify the goods/services they buy; and easier to pay for
the products and services they purchase. This is exactly where CSG’s SaaS platforms come in.

Industry leaders in telecom, broadband, cable media, retail, healthcare, financial services, insurance, government and other industries leverage the power of our
technology to compete and win in the digital age. For example, this past year, two of the largest drugstore chains in the United States (“U.S.”) and one of the
largest retailers used our technology to help improve their digital customer experience related to COVID-19 vaccinations, appointment scheduling, prescription
refill notifications, and other transactional engagements. We also helped one of the largest financial services providers in the U.S. to streamline and personalize
their mortgage and auto lending processes in a digital world with our journey orchestration and analytics offerings. And, we helped some of the largest
Communication Service Providers ("CSPs") in the world scale and grow their enterprise and consumer businesses by consolidating, standardizing, and automating
their disparate systems to a modern platform that can scale and manage complex ecosystems, new digital B2B marketplaces, 5G deployments, and multi-sided
business models.

Our 5,000-plus employees around the globe have made CSG a trusted technology leader and SaaS platform company to some of the biggest and most innovative
brands around the world.

We have offices in over 20 countries and our corporate headquarters is located at 6175 S. Willow Drive, 10 Floor, Greenwood Village, Colorado 80112, and the
telephone number at that address is (303) 200-2000.

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC (“NASDAQ”) under the symbol “CSGS”. We are a member of the S&P Small Cap 600 and
Russell 2000 indices.

What We Do

Simply put, CSG helps companies solve their toughest business challenges. We help our customers deliver secure, scalable, and integrated customer experience
solutions that wow customers with mission-critical, massively scalable back-end platforms that monetize their business.

Our Industry-Leading Solutions

Revenue Management and Digital Monetization: We provide robust, integrated real-time revenue management platforms leveraging public cloud,
private cloud, or on-premise deployments to optimize and monetize transactions at every stage of the customer lifecycle. Our flexible, configurable business
support systems help companies monetize and digitally enable their customers’ experiences. These solutions span the commerce lifecycle, streamlining the
entire revenue monetization process from concept to cash, helping companies address digital transformation in the ever-changing and dynamic business
world in which they operate.
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The power and capacity of 5G will fuel the growth of digital services across many industries including health, education, transport, agriculture, and
manufacturing. This will change the way we work, live, and interact bringing a new digital reality to everything we do. For CSPs, it provides new revenue
sources beyond connectivity, information, and communications services. For consumers, it enables personalized new digital capabilities in a simpler to
consume and engage model. But, behind these ‘simple’ user experiences are complex B2B platforms, rich collaboration ecosystems, and a web of
partnerships which are underpinned by open application programming interface, or API, distributed architecture, and microservices technology. Our
solutions are architected to bring speed, agility, and interoperability without sacrificing the operational stability, security, or mission-critical reliability and
scalability needed to power these complex ecosystems that underpin them. We enable companies to bring new services to market with hyper speed and
scale with our Revenue Management and Digital Monetization revenue management platforms which are key to competing in a digital world.

Transformational Customer Experiences: Customer experience is the number one differentiator for businesses today. Delivering exceptional customer
experience is a critical strategic lever that companies need to utilize to grow faster, improve retention, and drive customer loyalty.

We provide some of the biggest brands in the world with strategic insights, experience design, customer journey management, business intelligence
analytics, and customer communication solutions aimed at driving extraordinary customer experiences throughout their journey and delivering better
business outcomes. We help companies deliver unique customer experiences across both traditional and digital channels creating moments that are
personalized, predictive, and proactive.

Today, many companies utilize an average of eight or more communication channels to interact with customers including website, call center, physical
location, SMS text, print, and more. Each of these channels provides a massive amount of information that could help these companies to craft extraordinary
customer journeys. Each customer touchpoint illuminates key moments of truth that are pivotal in growing customer acquisition and retention. Continuous
active customer profiling and decisioning for care and commerce — based on real-time and stored data from a variety of sources — provides value to our
customers by powering them with insights needed to optimize every interaction with its customers.

These solutions are designed to help the end consumers easily interact with our customers’ brands through their preferred channel of choice. We take a
holistic approach to orchestrating end-to-end customer experiences that helps brands see, think, act and react in real-time to drive conversion, retention, and
loyalty. Our approach yields better business results with quicker time to value and lower risk.

Payments: The move to digital payments was already occurring pre-COVID. Now, because of the pandemic, we’ve seen an increase in the velocity and
the expectations from our merchants and partners that make digital payments table stakes for every facet of their customer's life — whether that be paying
rent, property taxes, gym memberships, educational fees, or other goods and services.

At CSG, we have been recognized as a leader in payments, providing a full end-to-end SaaS payments platform, allowing organizations to accept electronic
check/ACH, debit and credit card payments, and offer the ability to receive funds quicker via same-day ACH. With one of the most robust and complete
payments platforms in the market, we enable integrated software vendors (ISV) to differentiate their solution stack by offering a fully customizable
payments platform that seamlessly integrates into existing architectures to help their customers scale payments smarter and faster. Our all-in-one payments
platform simplifies and enables businesses and governments to onboard merchants quickly, deliver ongoing innovation, and address the changing market
demands in digital payments. Our platform handles tens of billions of dollars in payment volumes for more than 81,000 merchants annually. And we do
this all in a secure, PCI-compliant environment.

Taken in whole or in modules, our SaaS payments platform combined with our deep domain expertise, helps leading brands across different industries
optimize their business processes and integrate critical back- and front-office technology platforms to create a differentiated customer experience, resulting
in accelerated growth and profits.

Technology Innovation & Operations

Our customers are looking for the best, most modern, and cost-efficient technologies to solve their toughest business challenges. We continue to make
meaningful investments in research and development (“R&D”) to ensure that we stay ahead of our customers’ needs, advancing our customers’ businesses
as well as our own. Our products are recognized by industry analysts as best-in-class in the SG/IOT monetization, financial services, technology, telecom,
field service management, OSS/BSS, and customer experience.
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In addition, we provide operational services encompassing infrastructure management (including hardware, application, and environmental management),
application configuration management (including configuration development, release, and deployment) and business operations management (including
event processing, revenue management, and settlement). Our pre-integrated approach, combined with our deep domain experts managing the applications,
allows our customers to scale their operations and do what matters most — focus on satisfying their end customers and growing their businesses.

Why We Win

At CSG, our customer relationships span decades. To earn the right to do business with companies for that length of time, you need to be trusted, dependable, and
innovative. You need to be problem solvers, change agents, and future-oriented technologists. You need to be responsive — and most important — you need to
deliver.

How do we do this? We obsess over the needs and success of our customers as we help them design and deliver exceptional, digitally-enabled, customer and
employee experiences. We believe in innovating jointly with customers to anticipate future-market trends and then redesign and technologically-enable
personalized engagements with their consumer and enterprise customers. And, since our modular solutions are mission-critical systems at the heart of our
customers’ business, operational excellence, security, and reliability will always be our top priority.

In addition, by working side-by-side with some of the biggest and most innovative companies in the world, we can develop breakthrough technology that address
the market’s most pressing needs today and in the future.

How We Grow

We believe the successful execution of our goals will allow us to accelerate our revenue and earnings growth, and therefore, create long-term sustained value for
our customers, employees, and stockholders.

Our strategic focus is underpinned by our key business priorities:

Harnessing the best culture, the best talent, and the most energized and globally diverse team: Our employees continue to be CSG’s greatest competitive
differentiator. As a purpose-driven, SaaS platform company, we foster a culture where we prioritize employee experience, learning, and development to
provide the workplace where our employees can do their best work and thrive. We foster a culture of diversity, equity, and belonging for all employees that
live our values. By being customer obsessed every day, CSG will continue to win big in the market.

Accelerating our revenue growth: We aspire to increase our long-term revenue growth rates and unlock significant value with more disciplined strategic,
financial, and targeted acquisitions. We will do this by acquiring capabilities, market share in new and existing verticals, and human capital talent to
continuously improve our effectiveness as we relentlessly focus on delivering greater value to customers as they navigate the dynamic landscape of their
customer's experiences.

In addition, we will continue to look for and acquire companies that have strong cultures, energized employees, and innovative technology that is
complementary and additive to our market offerings and SaaS and related solutions. We will remain highly disciplined by ensuring every acquisition meets
our four M&A criteria: strategic fit, culture/integration fit, financial fit, and risk/return profile.

Creating and leading with category-defining technology: Our broad portfolio of SaaS and related solutions provide companies a competitive advantage.
These solutions enable providers to efficiently manage their traditional businesses while being able to quickly deliver new digital services and a more
personalized and relevant experience to their consumers. We will continually add relevant capabilities to what we do as a company, both in terms of our
people and our solutions.

Delivering an exceptional customer experience: We believe we deliver more business value by doing what we say and being easy to do business with.
We do this by putting the customer at the heart of our decision-making and by continuing to raise the bar on our agility, delivery capabilities, efficiency, and
reliability to power our customers’ success.

Becoming the SaasS technology provider of choice for CSPs: We have a strong presence in the world’s largest CSPs technology ecosystem with our
award-winning revenue management platforms. However, as these companies wrestle with new competitors, changes in customer demands, and disruptive
technologies like 5G, they need a partner that can provide them with a suite of solutions that can help them turn these challenges into opportunities. With
our vast portfolio of solutions, we can help service providers launch and scale new digital services quickly, provide a great customer experience across any
channel, and simplify and monetize B2B2X ecosystems and marketplaces, across industry verticals.
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Expanding into big, higher growth industry verticals: Big brands in many large, high growth industry verticals rely on and need the technology products
and platforms that CSG provides. We are focused on increasing the amount of revenue we generate from customers outside of the CSP industry. While
we’ve made significant progress over the years, we have significant opportunity to expand our footprint in these verticals. CSG is helping some of the
biggest brands in retail, healthcare, financial services, and government digitize and modernize their customer engagement and payments capabilities.

Customers

We work with some of the world’s leading brands in a wide variety of industry verticals. These range from working with leading CSPs like Charter, Comcast,
MTN, Airtel Africa, DISH, Mobily, Verizon, AT&T, American Movil, and Telstra. Outside of the CSP space, we work with hundreds of other customers and over
81,000 merchants including some of the largest financial services companies like Bank of America, Citigroup, Discover, and Synchrony, three of the largest
pharmacy retailers in the U.S., property management companies, and local governments.

Customers that represented 10% or more of our revenue for 2021 and 2020 were as follows (in millions, except percentages):

2021 2020
Amount % of Revenue Amount % of Revenue
Charter $ 221 21% $ 209 21%
Comcast 216 21% 213 22%

See the Significant Customer Relationships section of our Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) for additional information regarding our business
relationships with these key customers.

Professional Services

We employ professional services experts globally who bring a wide-ranging expertise — including solution architecture, project management, systems
implementation, system integration, and business consultancy — to every services project. We apply a structured methodology to each of our engagements,
leveraging consistent world-class processes, best-practice programs, and systemized templates in the development of our solutions.

Sales and Marketing

We organize our sales efforts to customers primarily within our geographically dispersed, dedicated account teams, with senior level account managers who are
responsible for new revenue and renewal of existing contracts. In addition, we have partnerships and alliances with leading industry participants. The account
teams are supported by sales support personnel who are experienced in the various SaaS and related solutions that we provide. And because our customers trust and
depend on CSG, we have built a self-sustaining customer ecosystem that provides us with the opportunity to gain more share of our customers’ IT spend by cross-
selling more solutions to them. Today, almost 60% of our revenue comes from customers who buy more than one CSG solution.

In marketing, we have taken a digital-first approach aimed at accelerating opportunities through the pipeline by establishing CSG as a thought leader and proven
partner in helping our customers solve their toughest business problems.

Competition

The market for our offerings is competitive and evolving. We compete with both independent providers and in-house developers of revenue management, digital
monetization, customer experience, and payments systems. Our current competitors include companies who deliver on-premise bespoke custom offerings (i.e.,
Amdocs Limited, NEC Netcracker), packaged software solutions (i.e., SalesForce, Adobe, PegaSystems, Twilio), internally developed enterprise applications,
network operators (i.e., Ericsson, Huawei), large outsourced transactional communications companies (i.e., Intrado, Fiserv), systems integrators (i.e., Accenture,
Tech Mahindra) and large payments processors (i.e., FIS and Fiserv) and payments specialists (i.e., Stripe and Paya).



Proprietary Rights and Licenses

We rely on a combination of trade secret, copyright, trademark, and patent laws in the U.S. and similar laws in other countries, and non-disclosure, confidentiality,
and other types of contractual arrangements to establish, maintain, and enforce our intellectual property rights in our solutions. Despite these measures, any of our
intellectual property rights could be challenged, invalidated, circumvented, or misappropriated. Although we hold a select number of patents and patent
applications on some of our newer solutions, we do not rely upon patents as a primary means of protecting our rights in our intellectual property. In any event,
there can be no assurance that our patent applications will be approved, that any issued patents will adequately protect our intellectual property, or that such patents
will not be challenged by third parties. Also, much of our business and many of our solutions rely on key technologies developed or licensed by third parties, and
we may not be able to obtain or continue to obtain licenses and technologies from these third parties at all or on reasonable terms. Our failure to adequately
establish, maintain, and protect our intellectual property rights could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial position, and results of operations.
For a description of the risks associated with our intellectual property rights, see “Item 1A - Risk Factors - Failure to Protect Our Intellectual Property Rights or
Claims by Others That We Infringe Their Intellectual Property Rights Could Substantially Harm Our Business, Financial Position and Results of Operations,” and
“Item 1A — Risk Factors - We Rely on A Limited Number of Third-Party Vendor Relationships to Execute Our Business Which Exposes Us to Supply Chain
Disruptions, Costs Increases, and Cyberattacks.”

Human Capital

We believe that our culture serves as a competitive differentiator in the marketplace and gives CSG a competitive edge. As a result, our success is dependent upon
our ability to attract, develop, and retain this smart, talented, and diverse stakeholder group and we have introduced a framework that outlines our ethos for how we
serve not only our customers and each other, but the greater communities in which we operate.

Our Purpose:
To envision, invent and shape a better, more future-ready world.

Our Mission:
By channeling the power of all, we make ordinary customer and employee experiences extraordinary.

Our Guiding Principles:
Integrity: Be Authentic, Be Inclusive, Be Trusted Team Players
Inspiration: Be Bold, Be Inventive, Be Agile
Impact: Be Customer Obsessed, Be Game Changers, Be Driver of Growth

At CSG, we believe in the power of all so much that it leads off our mission statement. The power of all means that we draw on the experiences and innovations of
the best, most diverse global talent to delight our customers. The power of all means we are mindful of living our guiding principles and creating a diverse and
inclusive environment where employees around the world and in all departments can choose their future while bringing their authentic selves to work. And the
power of all means that together, we work to envision, invent, and shape a better, more future-ready world.

Delivering on our greater purpose and mission at speed and scale while delighting our customers and being mindful of our team members’ growth, wellbeing, and
happiness requires a people and culture philosophy that accelerates sustainable growth and innovation through three pillars:

*Leading the Future of Work through our Flexible First approach. This means optimizing physical space to engage and inspire our employees, providing
programs and events focusing on wellbeing and mental health of all team members, and inspiring collaborative and connected teams. Today, approximately
90% of our employees have the option to work from home when it makes sense for them, their team, and the business.

*Winning with Talent by attracting and retaining the best, most diverse global talent; accelerating time to productivity, integration, and engagement;
embedding diversity, equity, and inclusion considerations into our strategy, and ensuring our global team members thrive in an inclusive environment. In
2021, in addition to our already competitive pay and benefits, we introduced many new benefits that focused on the “whole person” designed to promote
mental and physical wellness.

*Grow@CSG by developing bold, agile, inventive team members and leaders; innovating on talent development and succession planning; and expanding
cross-company and cross-unit rotations and promotions. In 2021, we expanded our curated and personalized learning platform and launched an internal
talent marketplace, which allows employees to browse open roles, see their skills match for roles they might be interested in, and receive curated learning
pathways designed to provide them the skills they need to take on more responsibility or move to an entirely different role or department.
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We believe that our culture and our employees are a key reason our customers continue to rely on us to help them achieve their business goals and objectives and
do business with us for years.

As of December 31, 2021, we employed approximately 5,200 people, of which approximately 47% were in North America, 39% were in our locations in Asia-
Pacific-Australia, 10% were in our locations in Europe, the Middle East, and Africa, and 4% in our locations in South and Central America.

As of December 31, 2021, our workforce was approximately 64% male, 36% female, and less than 1% nonbinary or undeclared. The race/ethnicity of our U.S.
workforce was 69% White, 7% Black or African American, 7% Hispanic or Latino, 11% Asian, <1% American Indian/Alaskan Native, <1% Native
Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, 1% two or more races, and 4% unknown or undeclared.

We believe our employee relations are good.

Social Impact & Responsibility

We aspire to envision, invent, and create a better, more future ready world by channeling the power of all. To accomplish that, we are focusing on these key areas:

Expanding Our Community Impact: We support Community Based Organizations (“CBOs”) that enable women and people of color the opportunity to participate,
thrive, and make a lasting impact on the technology industry across the globe. We expanded our partnerships with CBOs like Cape Innovation and Technology, and
established new ones with Girls Who Code and WeMakeChange. In addition, we established our first Global Day of Action.

Enhancing Our Environmental Stewardship: With offices in 20 countries and serving customers in 120 countries, this is a vital and important focus area. We are
working with our partners that are committed to reducing and recycling waste, investing in green energy, and responsible sourcing to create a more sustainable
future. CSG has made a commitment to join the UN Global Compact.

Enabling Digital Inclusion: We strive to develop solutions that make the world more future-ready with technology that promotes social progress and make
navigating the digital world easier.

Regulatory Matters

We are subject to numerous international, federal, state, and local laws and regulations. These laws and regulations govern matters that include environmental,
employment, and occupational health and safety matters. Additionally, these laws and regulations also require us to obtain and comply with permits, registrations,
and other authorizations issued by governmental authorities. These authorities can modify or revoke our permits, registrations, or other authorizations and can
enforce compliance through fines and injunctions. We expect to incur ongoing costs to comply with existing and future requirements.

We are also subject to regulation by various U.S. federal regulatory agencies and by the applicable regulatory authorities in countries in which we operate.
Additionally, as a U.S. entity operating through subsidiaries in non-U.S. jurisdictions, we are subject to foreign exchange control, transfer pricing, and custom laws
that regulated the flow of funds between CSG and its subsidiaries. We are also required to be in compliance with transfer pricing, securities laws, and other statutes
and regulations, such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), and other countries’ anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws.

In addition, we are subject to laws relating to information security, privacy, anti-money laundering, counter-terrorist financing, consumer credit, protection, and
fraud. An increasing number of government and industry groups worldwide have established data privacy laws and standards for the protection of personal
information, including financial information, social security numbers, and health information. We are also subject to labor and employment laws, including
regulations established by the U.S. Department of Labor, the countries in which we do business, and other local regulatory agencies, which sets laws governing
working conditions, paid leave, workplace safety, wage and hour stands, and hiring and employment practices.



We believe that our operations are in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations in all material respects, and that we hold all necessary permits to operate
our business in each jurisdiction in which we operate. Laws and government regulations are subject to change and interpretation. In some cases, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations may cause us to make additional capital and operational expenditures. While there are no current regulatory matters that we expect
to be material to our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows, there can be no assurances that existing or future environmental laws or other
regulations applicable to our operations would not lead to a material adverse impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy materials, and amendments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act are available free of charge on our website at www.csgi.com. Additionally, these
reports are available on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

Code of Conduct and Business Ethics

A copy of our Code of Conduct and Business Ethics (the “Code of Conduct”) is maintained on our website. Any future amendments to the Code of Conduct, or
any future waiver of a provision of our Code of Conduct, will be timely posted to our website upon their occurrence. Historically, we have had minimal changes to
our Code of Conduct and have had no waivers of a provision of our Code of Conduct.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We or our representatives from time-to-time may make or may have made certain forward-looking statements, whether orally or in writing, including without
limitation, any such statements made or to be made in MD&A contained in our various Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filings or orally in
conferences or teleconferences. We wish to ensure that such statements are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements, so as to ensure, to the fullest extent
possible, the protections of the safe harbor established in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

We operate in rapidly changing and evolving markets throughout the world addressing the complex needs of industry leaders in the telecom, broadband, cable
media, retail, healthcare, financial services, insurance, government and other industries. As a result, new risk factors will likely emerge and currently identified
risk factors will likely evolve in their scope. Further, as we enter new market sectors as well as new geographic markets, we could be subject to new regulatory
requirements that increase the risk of non-compliance and the potential for economic harm to us and our customers. Accordingly, the risk factors and any forward-
looking statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to and are accompanied by the following meaningful cautionary statements:

«If any of the following risk factors would occur, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations, and/or
trading price of our common stock.

*This list of risk factors is not exhaustive, and management cannot predict all of the relevant risk factors, nor can it assess the potential impact, if any, of
such risk factors on our business or the extent to which any risk factor, or combination of risk factors, may create.

*There can be no assurances that forward-looking statements will be accurate indicators of future actual results, and it is likely that actual results will differ
from results projected in the forward-looking statements, and that such differences may be material.

Risks Related to Our Business

We Derive a Significant Portion of Our Revenue from a Limited Number of Customers, and the Loss of the Business of a Significant Customer Could Have a
Material Adverse Effect on Our Financial Position and Results of Operations.

Over the past decade, the global communications industry has experienced significant consolidation, resulting in a large percentage of the market being served by a
limited number of CSPs, with greater size and scale, and there are possibilities of further consolidation. Consistent with this market concentration, we generate over
40% of our revenue from our two largest customers, which are Charter and Comcast, which each individually accounted for over 10% or more of our total revenue.
See the Significant Customer Relationships section of MD&A for a brief summary of our business relationship with these customers.
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There are inherent risks whenever a large percentage of total revenue is concentrated with a limited number of customers. Such risks include, but are not limited to,
a significant customer: (i) undergoing a formalized process to evaluate alternative providers for solutions and services we provide; (ii) terminating or failing to
renew their contracts with us, in whole or in part for any reason; (iii) significantly reducing the number of customer accounts processed on our solutions, the price
paid for our solutions and services, or the scope of solutions and services that we provide; or (iv) experiencing significant financial or operating difficulties.

Our industry is highly competitive, and as a result, it is possible that a competitor could increase its footprint and share of customers serviced at our expense or a
customer could develop their own internal solutions. While our customers may incur some costs in switching to our competitors or developing their own solutions,
they may do so for a variety of reasons, including: (i) price; (ii) dissatisfaction with our solutions or service levels; or (iii) dissatisfaction with our relationship.

A Reduction in Demand for Our Revenue Management Platforms Could Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Financial Position and Results of Operations.

Historically, a substantial percentage of our total revenue has been generated from our core SaaS based platform, Advanced Convergent Platform ("ACP"), and
related solutions. This platform and solutions are expected to continue to provide a large percentage of our total revenue in the foreseeable future. Any significant
reduction in demand for these products could have a material adverse effect on our business.

The Delivery of Our Solutions is Dependent on a Variety of Computing and Processing Environments and Communications Networks Which May Not Be
Available or May Be Subject to Security Attacks.

Our solutions are generally delivered through a variety of sources including public and hybrid cloud, third-party data center and other service providers, and
internally operated computing and processing environments (collectively referred to hereafter in this section as “Systems”). We and/or end users are connected to
the Systems through a variety of public and private communications networks, which we will collectively refer to herein as “Networks.” Our solutions are
generally considered to be mission critical customer management systems by our customers. As a result, our customers are highly dependent on the consistent
availability and uncompromised security of the Networks and Systems to conduct their business operations.

Networks and Systems are subject to the risk of an extended interruption, outage, or security breach due to many factors such as: (i) changes to the Systems and
Networks for such things as scheduled maintenance and technology upgrades, or conversions to other technologies, service providers, or physical location of
hardware; (ii) failures or lack of continuity of services from public cloud or third-party data center and other service providers; (iii) defects and/or critical security
vulnerabilities in software program(s); (iv) human and machine error; (v) acts of war and/or nature; (vi) intentional, unauthorized attacks from computer “hackers”,
or cyber-attacks; and (vii) using the Systems to perpetrate identity theft through unauthorized authentication to our customers’ customers’ accounts. Most recently,
the marketplace is experiencing an ever-increasing exposure to both the number and severity of cyber-attacks. In particular, ransomware attacks are becoming
increasingly prevalent and can lead to significant reputational harm, loss of data, operational disruption, and significant monetary loss. Organized criminals, nation
state threat actors, and motivated hacktivists that target us have the possibility of impacting our systems, networks, data and business operations. In order to
properly recover from a ransomware attack, extortion payments are demanded from threat actors; however, we may be unwilling or unable to make payments of
this nature based on laws and regulations that may apply. In addition, we continue to expand our use of third-party Systems and Networks with our solution
offerings thereby permitting, for example, our customers’ customers to use the Internet to review account balances, order services or execute similar account
management functions. Access to Networks and Systems via the Internet has the potential to increase their vulnerability to unauthorized access and corruption, as
well as increasing the dependency of the Systems’ reliability on the availability and performance of the Internet and end users’ infrastructure they obtain through
other third-party providers.

The method, manner, cause and timing of an extended interruption, outage, or security breach in third-party and/or the Networks or Systems are impossible to
predict. As a result, there can be no assurances that these Networks and Systems will not fail or suffer a security breach or that the third-party and/or our business
continuity or remediation plans will adequately mitigate the negative effects of a disruption or security breach to the Networks or Systems. Further, our property,
technology errors and omissions, contractual relationship with third-party providers, and business interruption insurance may not adequately compensate us for
losses that we incur as a result of such interruptions or security breaches. Should the Networks or Systems: (i) experience an extended interruption or outage; (ii)
have their security breached; (iii) have their data lost, corrupted or otherwise compromised; and/or (iv) fail to meet contractual requirements related to our
cybersecurity program, it would impede our ability to meet solution and service delivery obligations, and likely have an immediate impact to the business
operations of our customers. This would most likely result in damaging our reputation as well as our long-term ability to attract and retain new customers. The loss
of confidential information could result in losing the customers’ confidence, as well as claims for contractual breach, and imposition of penalties, fines, and/or
damages. These risks will increase as our business continues to expand to include new solutions, technologies, verticals, and markets.
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We May Not Be Able to Efficiently and Effectively Implement New Solutions or Migrate Customers and Merchants onto Our Solutions.

Our continued growth plans include the implementation of new solutions, as well as migrating both new and existing customers and merchants to our solutions.
Such implementations or migrations (collectively referred to hereafter in this section as “implementations”), regardless of whether they involve new solutions or
new customers, have become increasingly more difficult because of the sophistication, complexity, and interdependencies of the various software and network
environments impacted, combined with the increasing complexity of our current and potential customers’ and merchants' underlying business processes. In
addition, the complexity of the implementations increases when the arrangement includes other vendors participating in the project, including but not limited to,
prime and subcontractor relationships with our company. For these reasons, implementations subject our customers and merchants to potential business disruption,
which could cause them to delay or even cancel future implementations.

As aresult, there is a risk that we may experience cancellations, delays, or unexpected costs associated with implementations. In addition, our inability to complete
implementations in an efficient and effective manner could damage our reputation in the marketplace, reducing our opportunity to grow our organic business with
both new and existing customers and merchants.

We May Not Be Successful in the Integration or Achievement of Financial Targets of Our Acquisitions.

As part of our growth strategy, we seek to acquire assets, technology, access to new markets, human capital talent and businesses which will provide the
technology and personnel to expedite our solutions and services development efforts, provide complementary solutions, or provide access to new markets and
customers.

Acquisitions involve a number of risks and potential disruptions, including: (i) expansion into new markets and business ventures; (ii) the requirement to
understand local business practices; (iii) the diversion of management’s attention to the integration of acquired operations and personnel; (iv) being bound by
acquired customer or vendor contracts with unfavorable terms; and (v) potential adverse effects on a company’s operating results for various reasons, including, but
not limited to, the following items: (a) the inability to achieve financial targets; (b) the inability to achieve certain integration expectations, operating goals, and
synergies; (c) costs incurred to exit current or acquired contracts or restructuring activities; (d) costs incurred to service acquisition debt, if any; and (e) the
amortization or impairment of acquired intangible assets.

Due to the multiple risks and potential disruptions associated with any acquisition, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in achieving our expected
strategic, operating, and financial goals for any such acquisition(s).

We May Not Be Able to Respond to Rapid Technological Changes.

The market for our solutions is characterized by rapid changes in technology and is highly competitive with respect to the need for timely innovations and new
product and technology introductions. As a result, we believe that our future success in sustaining and growing our revenue depends upon: (i) our ability to
continuously expand, adapt, modify, maintain, and operate our solutions to address the increasingly complex and evolving needs of our customers without
sacrificing the reliability or quality of the solutions; (ii) the integration of acquired technologies and their widely distributed, complex worldwide operations; and
(iii) creating and maintaining an integrated suite of products and technologies which are portable to new verticals. In addition, the market is demanding that our
solutions have greater architectural flexibility and interoperability, and that we are able to meet the demands for technological advancements to our solutions at a
greater pace. Our attempts to meet these demands subject our R&D efforts to greater risks. As a result, substantial and effective R&D and solution investment will
be required to maintain the competitiveness of our solutions in the market. Technical problems may arise in developing, maintaining, integrating, and operating our
solutions as the complexities continue to increase. Development projects can be lengthy and costly, and may be subject to changing requirements, programming
difficulties, a shortage of qualified personnel, and/or unforeseen factors which can result in delays. In addition, we may be responsible for the implementation of
new solutions and/or the conversion of customers to new solutions, and depending upon the specific solution, we may also be responsible for operations of the
solution.

There is an inherent risk in the successful development, implementation, migration, integration, and operation of our solutions as the technological complexities,

and the pace at which we must deliver these solutions to market, continue to increase. The risk of making an error that causes significant operational disruption to a

customer, or results in incorrect computer processing of customer or vendor data that we perform on behalf of our customers, increases proportionately with the

frequency and complexity of changes to our solutions and new delivery models. There can be no assurance: (i) of continued market acceptance of our solutions; (ii)

that we will be successful in the development of enhancements or new solutions that respond to technological advances or changing customer needs at the pace the

market demands; or (iii) that we will be successful in supporting the implementation, conversion, integration, and/or operations of enhancements or new solutions.
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We Rely on A Limited Number of Third-Party Vendor Relationships to Execute Our Business Which Exposes Us to Supply Chain Disruptions, Cost Increases,
and Cyberattacks.

We rely on third-party providers for software, distributed computing infrastructure environments (or commonly referred to as “cloud” computing services),
processing, and other suppliers to deliver our solutions to our customers. Our ability to deliver according to our contractual commitments and market demands
depends significantly on being able to obtain the necessary licenses, components, computing capacity, and other vital services and supplies as needed and on
competitive terms. Our growth and ability to meet customer demands depend in part on our ability to obtain timely deliveries from our suppliers and partners. In
addition, if a third party were to experience a material breach of their information technology systems which results in the unauthorized access, theft, use,
destruction, or unauthorized disclosures of customers' or employees' data or confidential information of the Company stored in such systems, including through
cyberattacks or other external or internal methods, it could result in a material loss of revenue from the potential adverse impact to our reputation, our ability to
retain or attract new customers, potential disruption or loss of services from the vendor and disruption to our business. Such a breach could also result in
contractual claims, and it could lead to our being named as a party in consumer litigation brought by or on behalf of impacted individuals. Although we strive to
avoid single-source supplier solutions, this is not always possible. Failure by any of our third-party vendors could interrupt our operations and the delivery of our
solutions, and/or drastically increase our costs. Additionally, if these third-party vendors would decide to significantly increase our costs, due to inflationary
pressures or otherwise, it could have an adverse financial impact to our business as we have limited third-party options and the ability to shift to a competing
solution, or redesign our solutions would take considerable time, effort, and money.

Our Alliances with Strategic Partners Could Put Our Business at Risk if the Partner Does Not Perform as Expected.

CSG has entered into a number of long-term strategic partnerships and alliances with leading industry participants to develop new technologies, deliver large,
complex customer implementations and products and execute strategic growth. If CSG’s strategic partners encounter financial or other business difficulties, if their
strategic objectives change, or if they no longer perceive CSG to be an attractive alliance partner, they may no longer desire or be able to participate in CSG’s
partnerships and alliances. CSG’s business could be hurt if unable to continue one or more of its alliances. CSG participates in large, complex projects where
various other companies provide services and products that are integrated into systems to meet customer requirements. If any of the services or products that any
other company provides have any defects or problems causing the integrated systems to malfunction or otherwise fail to meet customer requirements, CSG's
reputation and business could be harmed.

Failure to Deal Effectively with Fraud, Fictitious Transactions, Bad Transactions, and Negative Experiences Could Increase Our Loss Rate and Harm Our
Payments Business, and Could Severely Diminish Merchant and Consumer Confidence in and Use of Our Services.

In the event that merchants do not fulfill their obligations to consumers, or a consumer disputes a transaction for various reasons, we may incur losses as a result of
chargebacks and/or claims from consumers. We would seek to recover such losses from the merchant; however, we may not be able to recover the amounts in full
if the merchant is unwilling or unable to pay or the deposit does not cover the damages. While we have established financial reserves based on assumptions and
estimates that we believe are reasonable to cover such eventualities, these reserves on individual merchants may be insufficient. We may also incur losses from
claims that the consumer did not authorize the purchase, from consumer fraud, from erroneous transactions, and as a result of consumers who have closed bank
accounts or have insufficient funds in their bank accounts to satisfy payments. In addition, if losses incurred by us related to payment card transactions become
excessive, we could lose the right to process credit card transactions, which would significantly impact our payments business. We have taken measures to detect
and reduce the risk of fraud, including underwriting and risk management procedures and processes, but these measures need to be continually updated to address
emerging means of perpetrating fraud or to accommodate new solution offerings.

Our Global Operations Subject Us to Additional Risks.

We currently conduct a portion of our business outside the U.S. We are subject to certain risks associated with operating internationally including the following
items:

*Our solutions may not meet local requirements;

*Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates for which a natural or purchased hedge does not exist or is ineffective;
*Unexpected changes in foreign currency rates due to inflation and interest rate spreads;

+Staffing and managing of our global operations at a reasonable cost;

*Longer sales cycles for new contracts;
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*Longer collection cycles for customer billings or accounts receivable, as well as heightened customer collection risks, especially in countries with highly
inflationary economies and/or restrictions on the movement of cash out of the country;

*Trade barriers;

*Governmental sanctions;

*Complying with varied legal and regulatory requirements across jurisdictions;

*Growing requirements related to human rights and occupational safety and health;

*Reduced protection for intellectual property rights in some countries;

*Inability to recover value added taxes and/or goods and services taxes in foreign jurisdictions;

*Political and financial instability and threats of terrorism and/or war;

*A potential adverse impact to our overall effective income tax rate resulting from, among other things:
oOperations in foreign countries with higher tax rates than the U.S.;
oThe inability to utilize certain foreign tax credits; and

oThe inability to utilize some or all of losses generated in one or more foreign countries.

Our Use of Open Source Software May Subject Us to Certain Intellectual Property-Related Claims or Require Us to Re-Engineer Our Software, Which Could
Harm Our Business.

We use open source software in connection with our solutions, processes, and technology. Companies that use or incorporate open source software into their
solutions have, from time to time, faced claims challenging their use, ownership and/or licensing rights associated with that open source software. As a result, we
could be subject to suits by parties claiming certain rights to what we believe to be open source software. Some open source software licenses require users who
distribute open source software as part of their software to publicly disclose all or part of the source code in their software and make any derivative works of the
open source code available on unfavorable terms or at no cost. In addition to risks related to license requirements, use of open source software can lead to greater
risks than use of third-party commercial software, as open source licensors generally do not provide warranties, support, or controls with respect to origin of the
software. Use of open source software also complicates compliance with export-related laws. While we take measures to protect our use of open source software in
our solutions, open source license terms may be ambiguous, and many of the risks associated with usage of open source software cannot be eliminated. If we were
found to have inappropriately used open source software, we may be required to release our proprietary source code, re-engineer our software, discontinue the sale
of certain solutions in the event re-engineering cannot be accomplished on a timely basis, or take other remedial action that may divert resources away from our
development efforts.

Failure to Protect Our Intellectual Property Rights or Claims by Others That We Infringe Their Intellectual Property Rights Could Substantially Harm Our
Business, Financial Position and Results of Operations.

We rely on a combination of trade secret, copyright, trademark, and patent laws in the U.S. and similar laws in other countries, and non-disclosure, confidentiality,
and other types of contractual arrangements to establish, maintain, and enforce our intellectual property rights in our solutions. Despite these measures, any of our
intellectual property rights could be challenged, invalidated, circumvented, or misappropriated. Further, our contractual arrangements may not effectively prevent
disclosure of our confidential information or provide an adequate remedy in the event of unauthorized disclosure of our confidential information. Others may
independently discover trade secrets and proprietary information, which may complicate our assertion of trade secret rights against such parties. Costly and time-
consuming litigation could be necessary to enforce and determine the scope of our proprietary rights, and failure to obtain or maintain trade secret protection could
adversely affect our competitive business position. In addition, the laws of certain countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent as the laws of the
U.S. Therefore, in certain jurisdictions, we may be unable to protect our proprietary technology adequately against unauthorized third party copying or use, which
could adversely affect our competitive position.

Although we hold a limited number of patents and patent applications on some of our solutions, we do not rely upon patents as a primary means of protecting our
rights in our intellectual property. In any event, there can be no assurance that our patent applications will be approved, any issued patents will adequately protect
our intellectual property, or such patents will not be challenged by third parties. Also, much of our business and many of our solutions rely on key technologies
developed or licensed by third parties, and we may not be able to obtain or continue to obtain licenses and technologies from these third parties at all or on

reasonable terms.
14



Finally, third parties may claim that we, our customers, licensees or other parties indemnified by us are infringing upon their intellectual property rights. Even if we
believe that such claims are without merit, they can be time consuming and costly to defend and distract management and technical staff attention and resources.
Claims of intellectual property infringement also might require us to redesign affected solutions, enter into costly settlement or license agreements or pay material
damage awards, or face a temporary or permanent injunction prohibiting us from marketing or selling certain of our solutions. Even if we have an agreement to
indemnify us against such costs, the indemnifying party may be unable to uphold its contractual obligations. If we cannot or do not license the infringed technology
on reasonable pricing terms or at all, or substitute similar technology from another source, our business could be adversely impacted. Our failure to adequately
establish, maintain, and protect our intellectual property rights could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We May Incur Material Restructuring or Reorganization Charges in the Future.

In the past, we have recorded restructuring charges related to involuntary employee terminations, various facility abandonments, and various other restructuring
and reorganization activities. We continually evaluate ways to reduce our operating expenses through new restructuring opportunities, including more effective

utilization of our assets, workforce, and operating facilities. As a result, there is a risk, which is increased during economic downturns and with expanded global
operations, that we may incur material restructuring or reorganization charges in the future.

Risks Related to Our Industry

Our Business is Highly Dependent on the Global Communications Industry.

Since a large percentage of our revenue is generated from customers that operate within the global communications industry, we are highly dependent on the health
and the business trends occurring within this industry (in particular for our North American cable and satellite customers). Key factors within this industry that
could potentially impact our customers’ businesses, and thus, our business, are as follows:

*Key Market Conditions: The global communications industry has undergone significant fluctuations in growth rates and capital investment cycles in the
past decade.

In addition, changes in demand for traditional services for CSPs are causing them to seek new revenue sources, while also managing their cost
structure and quality of service delivery during their business transformation. The result is that many CSPs are delaying investment decisions on
legacy systems, directing investment towards internal development and engineering efforts and making investments in new solutions to drive their
business forward into new areas. However, cost pressures may begin to cause a decline in new revenue opportunities.

*Market Consolidation: The pace of consolidation within the industry continues to accelerate as CSPs look to increase the scale of their operations and
footprint within the entire digital communications ecosystem. Potential byproducts of this consolidation that could impact us are as follows: (i) there could
be fewer providers in the market, each with potentially greater bargaining power and economic leverage due to their larger size, which may result in our
having to lower our prices to remain competitive, retain our market share, or comply with the surviving customer’s current more favorable contract terms,
and (ii) the controlling entity in a consolidation that is not our current customer, may acquire one of our existing customers and choose to consolidate both
entities onto the controlling entity’s customer management platform, thus reducing and possibly eliminating our business with our existing customer.

Also, as consolidated entities execute on their revenue and operational synergies, there is generally a slowdown in decision-making on discretionary
spending and/or on new business initiatives. While this could be a timing issue only, it could impact quarterly and annual results.

*Competition: Our customers operate in a highly competitive environment. Our competitors include companies who deliver packaged software solutions
(i.e., SalesForce, Adobe, PegaSystems, Twilio), on-premise bespoke custom offerings (i.e., Amdocs Limited, NEC Netcracker), internally developed
enterprise applications, network operators (i.e., Ericsson, Huawei), large outsourced transactional communications companies (i.e., Intrado, Fiserv), systems
integrators (i.e., Accenture, Tech Mahindra) and large payments processors (i.e., FIS and Fiserv) and payments specialists (i.e., Stripe and Paya). Should
these competitors be successful in their strategies, it could threaten our customers’ market share, pricing power, and level of services delivered. These
threats could negatively impact our customers’ revenue, putting pressure on our source of revenue, as generally speaking, these companies do not use our
core solutions and there can be no assurance that new entrants will become our customers. In addition, demand for spectrum, network bandwidth and
content continue to increase and any changes in the regulatory environment could have a significant impact to not only our customers’ businesses, but in our
ability to help our customers be successful.
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The above industry factors are impacting our customers’ businesses, and thus could cause delays, cancellations/loss of business, and/or downward pricing pressure
on our sales and services. This could cause us to either fall short of revenue expectations or have a cost model that is misaligned with revenue.

We Face Significant Competition in Our Industry.

The market for our solutions is highly competitive. We directly compete with both independent providers and in-house solutions developed by existing and
potential customers. In addition, some independent providers are entering into strategic alliances with other independent providers, resulting in either new
competitors, or competitors with greater resources. Many of our current and potential competitors have significantly greater financial, marketing, technical, and
other competitive resources than our company, many with significant and well-established domestic and international operations. There can be no assurance that
we will be able to compete successfully with our existing competitors or with new competitors.

Risks Related to Laws and Regulations

The Occurrence or Perception of a Security Breach or Disclosure of Confidential Personally Identifiable Information Could Harm Our Business.

In providing solutions to our customers, we transmit, use, store and otherwise process, confidential and personally identifiable information (‘“PII”’), including social
security numbers, health-related information (including protected health information, or “PHI” as defined under HIPAA), and financial information (including
information regulated under the GLBA and other financial privacy laws). Our treatment of such information is subject to contractual restrictions and federal, state,
and foreign data privacy laws and regulations, which continue to evolve resulting in greater scrutiny and regulation over the protection of PII. In response to these
evolving restrictions and regulations (which include, without limitation, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”), the Health
Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH?”), the California Consumer Privacy Act (“CCPA”), the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act
(“GLBA”), and other U.S. federal and state financial privacy laws and regulations, the European Union’s General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”), the South
Africa Protection of Personal Information Act (“POPIA”) and the Brazilian General Data Protection Low (“LGPD”’) we have implemented and maintain
administrative, technical, and physical security measures and it is our standard practice to contractually require our service providers to whom we disclose data
(including PII) to implement and maintain reasonable privacy, data protection, and information security measures, in each case to protect against loss, theft, misuse,
or unauthorized access to or disclosure of such information, and otherwise comply with these laws and regulations. These measures include standard industry
practices (e.g., payment card industry (“PCI”) requirements), periodic security reviews of our systems by independent parties, secure development practices,
network firewalls, policy directives, procedural controls, training of our personnel, intrusion detection systems, and antivirus applications. However, due to the
inherent risks and complexities to defend against cybercrime and other information security incidents, these measures may fail to adequately protect this
information. Any failure on our part to protect the security and privacy of PII and other confidential information, or otherwise comply with data privacy laws and
regulations may subject us to contractual liability and damages, loss of business, damages from individual claimants (including class action litigation), substantial
fines/penalties, criminal prosecution, and unfavorable publicity.

Even the mere perception of a security breach or inadvertent disclosure of PII could damage our reputation and inhibit market acceptance of our solutions. In
addition, third-party vendors that we engage to perform services for us may unintentionally release PII or otherwise fail to comply with applicable laws and
regulations. Under our terms of service and our contracts with customers, if there is a breach of PII that we store, we could be liable to the customer for their losses
and related expenses. As new laws and regulations emerge and evolve and as our business continues to expand to include new products and technologies, these
risks will likely continue to increase, and our compliance costs are likely to increase substantially as well. Bad actors, individual and State sponsored, will
increasingly attempt to compromise our security controls or gain unauthorized access to our, and our customers’, sensitive information and PII. Further, as we
continue to have a significant number of our employees working remotely, these security risks may increase. We have implemented heightened monitoring of our
Networks and Systems, but cannot guarantee that our efforts, or those of third parties on whom we rely or with whom we partner, will be successful in preventing
any such information security incidents or attacks.

We May Be Subject to Enforcement Actions or Financial Penalties with Payments Regulation in the U.S.

Many states in which we operate have laws that govern payments activities and have implemented various definitions and licensing requirements for entities
deemed to be money transmitters, including licensure. We have applied for and been issued money transmitter licenses in a majority of states, and for those states
where we have applied and not yet received licensure, we could be subject to enforcement actions and financial penalties and other costs. An enforcement action
could result in restrictions on, or a prohibition on engaging in, the business of money transmission in one or more states and it could delay or prevent us from
obtaining a money transmitter license in one or more states. Enforcement actions could also result in reputational harm to our business and force us to cease or limit
certain aspects of our business or prevent us from growing our business. Further, laws governing payments activities may evolve and changes in such law could
affect our ability to provide our solutions or services in the same form and on the same terms as we have historically, or at all.
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While we have currently applied for money transmitter licenses, our applications in remaining states are under review and there can be no assurance that we will be
able to obtain any such licenses and such application process may be prolonged and costly. During the application process, states may impose disclosure and
vetting requirements of persons deemed in control of our business. In addition, there are substantial costs and potential solution changes involved in maintaining
such licenses, and we could be subject to fines or other enforcement action if we are found to have violated applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations,
including those related to licensing and supervision, anti-money laundering, the Bank Secrecy Act, financial privacy, and cybersecurity and data security. These
factors could impose substantial additional costs and involve considerable delay to the development or provision of our solutions or services, or could require
significant and costly operational changes or prevent us from providing our solutions or services in a given market. These limitations may adversely affect our
ability to grow our business.

We may also be subject to card association and network rules and requirements, and violations of such rules and requirements could result in fines or the inability
to use third-party networks to conduct our business.

We Are Subject to Various Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Laws and Regulations.

We are subject to various anti-money laundering (“AML”) and counter-terrorist financing laws and regulations that prohibit, among other things, our involvement
in processing the proceeds of criminal activities. We maintain AML Compliance Policies and Procedures applicable to our payments processing business which
policies are intended to comply with any applicable U.S. federal and foreign requirements. The laws or their application, our interpretation of the laws, and/or our
services may change so that we could be subject to additional regulation and incur additional costs of compliance. We may not be able to meet additional
regulatory requirements or the cost of adhering to such requirements could be substantial or could severely impact our ability to continue to maintain and/or grow
our payments processing business or retain merchants or partners. The regulations of other countries and/or any increased compliance costs associated with such
regulations, could prevent us from entering new markets for our services.

Our Global Operations Require Us to Comply With Applicable U.S. and International Laws and Regulations.

Doing business on a global basis requires our company and our subsidiaries to comply with the laws and the regulations of the U.S. government and various
international jurisdictions. In addition, the number of countries enacting anti-corruption laws and related enforcement activities is increasing. These regulations
place restrictions on our operations, trade practices and trade partners, as such we may face increasing compliance and legal costs in operating our trade compliance
program. In particular, our global operations are subject to U.S. and foreign anti-corruption laws and regulations such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
(“FCPA”), the U.K. Anti-Bribery Act and economic sanction programs administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”).

The FCPA prohibits us from providing anything of value to foreign officials for the purposes of influencing official decisions or obtaining or retaining business. In
addition, the FCPA imposes accounting standards and requirements on publicly traded U.S. corporations and their foreign affiliates, which are intended to prevent
the diversion of corporate funds to the payment of bribes and other improper payments, and to prevent the establishment of “off books” slush funds from which
such improper payment can be made. As part of our business, we regularly deal with state-owned business enterprises, the employees of which are considered
foreign officials for purposes of the FCPA. In addition, some of the international locations in which we operate lack a developed legal system and have higher than
normal levels of corruption. We inform our personnel and third-party sales representatives of the requirements of the FCPA and other anti-corruption laws,
including, but not limited to their reporting requirements. We have also developed and will continue to develop and implement systems for formalizing contracting
processes, performing due diligence on agents and partners while improving our recordkeeping and auditing practices regarding these regulations. However, there
is no guarantee that our employees, third-party sales representatives or other agents have not or will not engage in conduct undetected by our processes and for
which we might be held responsible under the FCPA or other anti-corruption laws.

Economic sanctions programs restrict our business dealings with certain countries and individuals. As a global provider, we are exposed to a heightened risk of
violating OFAC regulations. Violations of these laws and regulations are punishable by civil penalties, including fines, injunctions, asset seizures, debarment from
government contracts and revocations or restrictions of licenses, as well as criminal fines and imprisonment. While we actively screen and monitor the global
companies and individuals that we do business with, utilizing a risk-based approach, there is no guarantee that we have not or will not, through the lack of accurate
information, changing customer business structures, process failure, oversight, or error, have violations occur.
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General Risks

Our Business May be Disrupted and Our Results of Operations and Cash Flows May be Adversely Affected by the Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic.

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared a global pandemic related to the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak which has led to a global health
emergency. Although vaccines have been produced there is still significant uncertainty related to the duration and scope of the pandemic. The significance of the
impact on our operations depends on numerous evolving factors that we may not be able to accurately predict or effectively respond to, including, among others:

sthe effect on global economic activity and the resulting impact on our customer’s businesses, their credit and liquidity, and their demand for our solutions
and services, as well as their ability to pay;

eour ability to deliver and implement our solutions in a timely manner, including as a result of supply chain disruptions, one or more print and mail facility
closures for an extended period, restrictions on travel for our and customer personnel, as well as shelter-in-place orders; and

eactions taken by U.S., foreign, state, and local governments, suppliers, and individuals in response to the outbreak.

While we have significant sources of cash and liquidity and access to a committed credit line, a prolonged period of generating lower cash from operations could
adversely affect our financial condition and the achievement of our strategic objectives.

Failure to Attract and Retain Our Key Management and Other Highly Skilled Personnel Could Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Business.

Our future success depends in large part on the continued service of our key management, sales, product development, professional services, and operational
personnel. We believe that our future success also depends on our ability to attract and retain a diverse, highly skilled technical, managerial, operational, and sales
and marketing personnel, including, in particular, personnel in the areas of R&D, professional services, and technical support. Competition for qualified personnel
at times can be intense, particularly in the areas of R&D, conversions, software implementations, and technical support which could lead to increased costs to
attract and/or retain personnel. This risk is heightened with a widely dispersed customer base and employee populations, and potential inflationary pressures on
wages. For these reasons, we may not be successful in attracting and retaining the personnel we require, which could have a material adverse effect on our ability to
meet our commitments and new solution delivery objectives.

Variability of Our Quarterly Revenue and Our Failure to Meet Revenue and Earnings Expectations Would Negatively Affect the Market Price of Our
Common Stock.

From time to time, we may experience variability in quarterly revenue and operating results. Common causes of failure to meet revenue and operating expectations
include, among others:

+Inability to close and/or recognize revenue on certain transactions in the period originally anticipated;
+Inability to accurately forecast payments transaction volumes and related transaction costs;
*Delays in renewal of multiple or individually significant agreements;
+Inability to renew existing customer or vendor arrangements at anticipated rates;
*Delays in timing of initiation and/or implementation of significant projects or arrangements;
+Inability to meet customer expectations materially within our cost estimates;
*Changes in spending and investment levels;
sInflationary pressures;
«Significant increase in our cost of borrowing;
*Foreign currency fluctuations; and
*Economic and political conditions.
Should we fail to meet our revenue and earnings expectations of the investment community, by even a relatively small amount, it could have a disproportionately

negative impact upon the market price of our common stock.
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Substantial Impairment of Long-lived Assets in the Future May Be Possible.

As a result of various acquisitions and the growth of our company over the last several years, as of December 31, 2021, we have approximately $207 million of
long-lived assets other than goodwill (principally, property and equipment, software, acquired customer contracts, and customer contract costs) and approximately
$321 million of goodwill. Long-lived assets are required to be evaluated for possible impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. We utilize our market capitalization, third party valuation and/or cash flow models as the primary basis to
estimate the fair value amounts used in our long-lived asset impairment valuations. If an impairment was to be recorded in the future, it could materially impact our
results of operations in the period such impairment is recognized, but such an impairment charge would be a non-cash expense, and therefore would have no impact
on our current or future cash flows.

em 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

em 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2021, we were operating in over 30 leased sites around the world, representing approximately 700,000 square feet.

Our corporate headquarters is located in Greenwood Village, Colorado. In addition, we lease office space in the U.S. in Allen, Texas; Atlanta, Georgia; Boston,
Massachusetts; Chicago, Illinois; Irving, Texas; Omaha, Nebraska; and Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. The leases for these office facilities expire in the years 2022
through 2031. We also maintain leased facilities internationally in Australia, Brazil, Canada, Colombia, France, India, Indonesia, Ireland, Malaysia, Mexico,
Portugal, Saudi Arabia, Slovakia, South Africa, Sweden, United Arab Emirates, and the U.K. The leases for these international office facilities expire in the years
2022 through 2026. We utilize these office facilities primarily for the following: (i) customer services, training, and support; (ii) product and operations support;
(iii) systems and programming activities; (iv) professional services staff; (v) R&D activities; (vi) sales and marketing activities; and (vii) general and administrative
functions.

Additionally, we lease four statement production and mailing facilities totaling approximately 350,000 square feet. These facilities are located in: (i) Omaha,
Nebraska; (ii) Crawfordville, Florida; (iii) Austin, Texas; and (iv) Fort Worth, Texas. The leases for these facilities expire in the years 2022 through 2028.

We believe that our facilities are adequate for our current needs and that additional suitable space will be available as required. We also believe that we will be able
to either: (i) extend our current leases as they terminate; or (ii) find alternative space without experiencing a significant increase in cost. See Note 6 to our Financial
Statements for information regarding our obligations under our facility leases.

em 3. Legal Proceedings
From time-to-time, we are involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations in the normal course of business. In the opinion of our management,

we are not presently a party to any material pending or threatened legal proceedings.

em 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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xecutive Officers of the Registrant

As of the date of this filing, our executive officers are Brian A. Shepherd (President and Chief Executive Officer), Hai Tran (Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer), Kenneth M. Kennedy (Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and President, Revenue Management and Digital Monetization) and
Elizabeth A. Bauer (Executive Vice President, Chief Marketing & Customer Officer). We have employment agreements with each of the executive officers.

Brian A. Shepherd
President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Shepherd, 54, joined CSG in 2016 and is President and Chief Executive Officer of CSG. Mr. Shepherd was appointed President and CEO of CSG and a
member of our Board in January 2021. He joined the Company in 2016 and before becoming CEO, he was Executive Vice President and Group President of CSG,
where he led the profit and loss organization for the entire global organization. He also served as Executive Vice President and President of Global Broadband,
Cable and Satellite Business from 2016 to 2017, where he focused on accelerating the growth and strategic direction of CSG’s global broadband, cable and direct
broadcast satellite business. Mr. Shepherd received an M.B.A. from Harvard Business School and graduated magna cum laude from Wabash College with a B.A. in
Economics.

Hai Tran
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Tran, 52, is Chief Financial Officer of CSG, where he oversees the finance, accounting, treasury and investor relations functions for the organization. Mr. Tran
joined CSG in November 2021 and brings 30 years of finance and operational experience, having most recently served as president and chief operating officer at
SOC Telemed, the largest U.S. provider of acute care telemedicine solutions. Prior to that he has served as chief financial officer at a number of companies
including SOC Telemed, BioScrip, Inc., Harris Healthcare Solutions, and Catalyst Health Solutions. Mr. Tran holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from the
University of Virginia and an M.B.A from the University of Richmond.

Kenneth M. Kennedy
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and President, Revenue Management & Digital Monetization

Mr. Kennedy, 52, is Chief Operating Officer of CSG and President of Revenue Management & Digital Monetization, responsible for driving revenue and creating
scalable monetization solutions that help CSG deepen customer relationships. Prior to becoming COO, Mr. Kennedy served as President of Technology and
Product, where he oversaw all product management, engineering, platform architecture, and operations across CSG’s solutions portfolio. He also served as CSG’s
Executive Vice President of Product Development from 2016 to 2017, and as Chief Technology Officer and Senior Vice President of Product Management,
Development and Operations from 2006 to 2016. Prior to CSG, Mr. Kennedy was one of the original founders of Telution, where he served as Vice President of
Software Development and Professional Services from 1998 to 2006. Before Telution, he worked at Accenture (f.k.a. Andersen Consulting), where he was
responsible for developing highly scalable distributed software solutions for the financial services and communications industries. Mr. Kennedy is a member of the
TM Forum Beyond Connectivity Council and holds a B.B.A. in Management Information Systems from the University of Notre Dame.

Elizabeth A. Bauer
Executive Vice President, Chief Marketing & Customer Officer

Ms. Bauer, 59, is Chief Marketing & Customer Officer of CSG, and is dedicated to delivering a differentiated customer experience that focuses on deepening
customer relationships, enhancing customer engagement and promoting new business growth. Previously senior vice president, chief investor relations and
communications officer, her influence has spanned the company’s growth strategy and the development of CSG’s customer-first, values-based culture. She brings
over 30 years of combined business management, investor relations, and integrated communications experience. In addition to her work at CSG, Ms. Bauer is a
current member of the World 50 CXO 50 community and a founding member of the TM Forum Diversity & Inclusion Council. She served on the board of the
National Investor Relations Institute, the founding board of West Denver Preparatory Charter School, and previously chaired the Rocky Mountain WICT Gala. Ms.
Bauer holds a B.S.B.A. in Business and Journalism from Creighton University.
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Board of Directors of the Registrant

Information related to our Board of Directors (the “Board”) is provided below.

Donald B. Reed

Mr. Reed, 77, was appointed to the Board in May 2005 and has served as CSG's non-executive Chairman of the Board since January 2010. Mr. Reed is presently
retired. From 2000 to 2003, he served as CEO of Cable & Wireless Global (a subsidiary of Cable & Wireless plc), a provider of Internet Protocol (“IP”) and data
services to business customers in the U.S., United Kingdom, Europe, and Japan. From June 1998 until May 2000, Mr. Reed served Cable & Wireless in various
other executive positions. Prior to that he was CEO of Cabletron Systems and held numerous executive positions over a 30 year career at NYNEX Corporation
(now part of Verizon), a regional telephone operating company, including President and Group Executive of Nynex, Executive Vice President at Bell Atlantic, and
President of Nynex New England (New England Telephone). While serving from 1995 to 1997 as President and Group Executive of NYNEX Corporation, Mr.
Reed had responsibility for directing the company’s regional, national, and international government affairs, public policy initiatives, legislative and regulatory
matters, and public relations. Mr. Reed holds a B.A. degree in History from Virginia Military Institute and served in the United States military as an officer with
the 82nd Airborne and 1st Infantry Divisions in Vietnam.

David G. Barnes

Mr. Barnes, 60, was appointed to the Board in February 2014. Mr. Barnes is Chief Financial Officer of Trimble Inc., a position he assumed in January 2020.
Previously, he served as Executive Vice President, Global Operations of Stantec Inc., a publicly traded global provider of engineering, consulting, and construction
services from 2016 through 2018. From 2009 through 2016, he served as Executive Vice President and CFO of MWH Global Inc., an employee-owned engineering
and construction firm. MWH Global Inc. was acquired by Stantec Inc. in 2016. From 2006 to 2008, he was Executive Vice President of Western Union Financial
Services. From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Barnes served as CFO of Radio Shack Corporation, and from 1999 to 2004, he was Vice President, Treasurer, and U.S. CFO for
Coors Brewing Company. Mr. Barnes holds an M.B.A. degree from the University of Chicago and a B.A. degree from Yale University.

Gregory A. Conley

Mr. Conley, 66, was appointed to the Board in October 2021 and currently serves as a board member of TTEC holdings (Nasdaq: TTEC), to which he was
appointed in 2019, where he is the Chair of the Audit Committee and a member of the Compensation Committee, and currently serves as a board member of
Travelport, a travel technology company. Mr. Conley brings over 30 years of experience in the technology and software industries having served as CEO of Aha!
Software, a privately held predictive analytics and cloud computing company from 2012-2014, as CEO of Odyssey Group, a Switzerland-based technology
services and software company from 2009-2011, and as CEO of Verio, a leading global provider of hosting and network services from 2004-2005. Prior to these
roles, Mr. Conley was the CEO and Board member of Tanning Technology (NASDAQ: TANN} from 2001-2003, Global General Manager of e-markets and
Global General Manager of Travel and Transportation Industries at IBM from 1995-2001 (NYSE: IBM), General Counsel and CEO of Galileo International (a
predecessor company of Travelport) from 1989-1989, and an attorney at the law firm of Covington & Burling from 1983-1989. Mr. Conley holds a J.D. from
Georgetown University and a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from Purdue University.

Ronald H. Cooper

Mr. Cooper, 65, was appointed to the Board in November 2006. Mr. Cooper is presently retired. He most recently served as the President and CEO of Clear
Channel Outdoor Americas, Inc. (an outdoor advertising company) from 2009 through 2012. Prior to this position, he was a Principal at Tufts Consulting LLC
from 2006 through 2009. Previously, he spent nearly 25 years in the cable and telecommunications industry, most recently at Adelphia Communications where he
served as President and COO from 2003 to 2006. Prior to Adelphia, Mr. Cooper held a series of executive positions at AT&T Broadband, RELERA Data Centers
& Solutions, MediaOne and its predecessor Continental Cablevision, Inc. He has served on various boards of directors and committees with the National Cable
Television Association, California Cable & Telecommunications Association, Cable Television Association for Marketing, New England Cable Television
Association, and Outdoor Advertising Association of America. Mr. Cooper holds a B.A. degree from Wesleyan University.
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Marwan H. Fawaz

Mr. Fawaz, 59, was appointed to the Board in March 2016. Mr. Fawaz is currently an Executive Advisor to Google and Alphabet Inc. (since Jan 2019) after joining
Alphabet as the CEO of Nest Labs Inc in May 2016. With more than 30 years of experience in the media, cable, telecommunications, and broadband industries,
Mr. Fawaz offers a wealth of knowledge and expertise, developed from his time as Executive Vice President and CEO of Google/Motorola Mobility from 2012 to
2013 and Executive Vice President of Strategy and Operations and Chief Technology Officer of Charter Communications from 2006 to 2011. In addition, he
served as Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer of Adelphia Communications from 2003 to 2006 and held leadership positions for other cable
industry companies such as MediaOne, among others. He was the founder and principal of Sarepta Advisors, a strategic advisory and consulting group supporting
the technology, media, and telecommunications industries. He holds an M.S. degree in Electrical and Communication Engineering and a B.S. degree in Electrical
Engineering, both from California State University at Long Beach.

Rajan Naik

Dr. Naik, 50, was appointed to the Board in August 2018. Dr. Naik currently serves as Chief Strategy Officer for Motorola Solutions, Inc., where he is responsible
for the corporate strategy organization, M&A, venture capital portfolio and competitive and market intelligence. Motorola Solutions is a global leader in land
mobile radio mission-critical communications, video security and analytics and command center software for enterprise and public safety customers. Prior to
joining Motorola Solutions, Dr. Naik held the role of Senior Vice President, Chief Strategy Officer at Advanced Micro Devices (AMD), a provider of high-
performance computing, graphics and visualization technologies. From 2000 to 2012, Dr. Naik was a Partner at McKinsey & Company in the
technology/media/telecom practice. Dr. Naik formerly served as a director on the board for Sonim Technologies from February 2018 to February 2019. He holds a
BSc. degree in Engineering from Cornell University and a Ph.D. degree in Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Janice 1. Obuchowski

Ms. Obuchowski, 70, was appointed to the Board in November 1997. Ms. Obuchowski is the founder and President of Freedom Technologies, Inc. (a firm
providing public policy, strategic, and engineering advice to companies in the communications sector, government agencies, and international clients), a position
she has held since 1992. In 2003, Ms. Obuchowski was appointed by President George W. Bush to serve as Ambassador and Head of the U.S. Delegation to the
World Radiocommunication Conference. She has served as Assistant Secretary for Communications and Information at the Department of Commerce,
Administrator for the National Telecommunications and Information Administration (“NTIA”), and as the head of international government relations at NYNEX
Corporation. Ms. Obuchowski also served as Senior Legal Advisor to Chairman Fowler of the Federal Communications Commission. Ms. Obuchowski formerly
served as a director on the board for Inmarsat plc. (May 2009 to December 2019) and Orbital ATK (February 2015 to June 2018) and also served earlier on the
boards of Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. and Stratos Global Corporation (then TSE traded). She also serves or has served on several non-profit and private
company boards. She holds a J.D. degree from Georgetown University and a B.A. degree from Wellesley College, and also attended the University of Paris.

Brian A. Shepherd

Mr. Shepherd’s biographical information is included in the “Executive Officers of the Registrant” section shown directly above.

Frank V. Sica

Mr. Sica, 71, has served as a director of the Company since its formation in 1994. Mr. Sica has been a Partner of Tailwind Capital (a private equity firm) since
2006. He currently serves as a director on the boards of Kohl’s Corporation (since 1988) and Safe Bulkers, Inc. (since 2008), and formerly served as a director on
the board for JetBlue Airways (December 1998 to May 2020). Mr. Sica holds an M.B.A. degree from the Tuck School of Business at Dartmouth College and a
B.A. degree from Wesleyan University.

Haiyan Song

Ms. Song, 56, was appointed to the Board in January 2020. Ms. Song currently serves as Executive Vice President and General Manager at F5 Networks. Prior to
that, Ms. Song served as Senior Vice President and General Manager of Security Markets for Splunk, Inc. from 2014 to 2020. Prior to that, she spent four years
from 2010 to 2014 with Hewlett Packard Enterprise Co., in engineering and general manager roles within Hewlett Packard’s ArcSight Business Unit. Ms. Song
joined Hewlett Packard following the company’s acquisition of ArcSight, Inc. in 2010. Ms. Song was Vice President of Engineering & Product with ArcSight from
2005 to 2010. Ms. Song holds both M.S. and B.S. degrees in Computer Science from Florida Atlantic University. She also studied at Tsinghua University in China
and completed the Stanford University Graduate School of Business Executive Program in General Management in 2012.
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Silvio Tavares

Mr. Tavares, 50, was appointed to the Board in May 2020. Mr. Tavares is the President and CEO of VantageScore, a leading national credit score model company.
He is also Chairman of the board of directors (and former President and CEO) of The Digital Commerce Alliance, a leading global trade association for the digital
commerce, payments, and fin-tech industries, since 2013. Prior to that, Mr. Tavares was Senior Vice President and the Global Head of the Information Products
Business Unit at Visa, Inc., and before that was with First Data Corp. (now part of Fiserv) from 2006 to 2012, where he was Senior Vice President and the Head of
the Global Information and Analytics Business Unit and also held other senior finance roles. Mr. Tavares formerly served as a board director, Audit committee
chairman and designated financial expert for CPI Card Group. He holds a J.D. degree from the Boston University School of Law; an M.B.A. degree from the
Boston College Carroll School of Management; and a B.S. degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering from Tufts University.

Tse Li “Lily” Yang

Ms. Yang, 49, was appointed to the Board in February 2021. Ms. Yang is currently Chief Financial Officer of Strava, Inc., where she is responsible for finance and
legal. From 2017-2021, Ms. Yang was the Chief Accounting Officer for Pinterest, Inc. where she was instrumental in taking the company from late stage private to
public in 2019 and enabling the scale of growth by 5X. From 2015 to 2017, she spent two years with Medivation as the Vice President of Finance and Accounting
where she was tasked with driving strategic growth and expansion before the company was acquired by Pfizer. Ms. Yang worked at Gilead Sciences from 2003 to
2015, finishing her tenure as Vice President and Corporate Controller. Ms. Yang holds a B.S. in Accounting and Managerial Information Systems from Boston
University and is a certified public accountant.
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PART II
em 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed on NASDAQ under the symbol ‘“CSGS’’. On January 31, 2022, the number of holders of record of common stock was 123.

Stock Price Performance

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock, the Russell 2000 Index, and our Standard Industrial Classification
(“SIC”) Code Index: Computer Processing and Data Preparation and Processing Services during the indicated five-year period. The graph assumes that $100 was
invested on December 31, 2016, in our common stock and in each of the two indexes, and all dividends, if any, were reinvested.
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SIC Code 7374 - Computer Processing and Data Preparation and Processing Services

As of December 31,
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
CSG Systems International, Inc. $ 100.00 $ 9232 $ 68.36 $ 113.50 $ 101.01 $ 131.83
Russell 2000 Index 100.00 114.65 102.02 128.06 153.62 176.39
Data Preparation and Processing Services 100.00 172.66 144.53 157.17 227.19 193.05
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes certain information about our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2021:

Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of Number of securities
remaining available for

future issuance

4,703,890

Weighted-average exercise
outstanding options, price of outstanding options,
Plan Category warrants, and rights warrants, and rights

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders - 8 =

Of the total number of securities remaining available for future issuance, 4,614,524 shares can be used for various types of stock-based awards, as specified in the
equity compensation plan, with the remaining 89,366 shares to be used for our employee stock purchase plan. See Note 13 to our Financial Statements for
additional discussion of our equity compensation plans.

Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents information with respect to purchases of our common stock made during the fourth quarter of 2021 by CSG Systems International,
Inc. or any “affiliated purchaser” of CSG Systems International, Inc., as defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Exchange Act.

Maximum Number
(or Approximate

Total Number of Dollar Value) of
Shares Purchased as Shares that May
Total Average Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Number of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans or Under the Plan or
Period Purchased (1) (2) Per Share Programs (2) Programs (2)
October 1 - October 31 43,359 50.18 42,800 3,856,717
November 1 - November 30 75,840 52.41 75,000 3,781,717
December 1 - December 31 190,893 55.25 177,000 3,604,717
Total 310,092 53.84 294,800

(1)The total number of shares purchased that are not part of the Stock Repurchase Program represents shares purchased and cancelled in connection with stock

incentive plans.

(2)See Note 12 to our Financial Statements for additional information regarding our share repurchases.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains a number of forward-looking statements relative to our future plans and our expectations concerning our business and the industries we serve.
These forward-looking statements are based on assumptions about a number of important factors and involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
to differ materially from estimates contained in the forward-looking statements. Some of the risks that are foreseen by management are outlined above within Item
1A., “Risk Factors”. Item 1A. constitutes an integral part of this report, and readers are strongly encouraged to review this section closely in conjunction with
MD&A.

Impact of COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared a global pandemic related to the rapidly spreading coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak which has led to a
global health emergency. Throughout the COVID-19 crisis, we have remained focused on protecting the health and safety of our employees, while meeting the
needs of our customers. While we have taken measures to protect our employees, to include a remote working environment for those employees who are able to
conduct business from home and reduced travel, we are still conducting business as usual and are working with our customers to minimize any potential disruption.
Additionally, we have implemented a workplace of the future philosophy that supports work-life integration and employees' diverse needs, providing flexibility and
personal choice so employees can do their best work from anywhere. We do not believe that our workplace philosophy and limited staffing in select office
locations has adversely impacted our internal controls, financial reporting systems, or our operations.

The full extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, operations, and financial results will depend on numerous evolving factors that we may
not be able to accurately predict. See Part II Item 1A. Risk Factors of this report for additional details. As we continue to manage our business in this uncertain
environment, our priorities remain the health and safety of our employees, providing our customers with world-class services and solutions, and prudently
managing our liquidity to ensure our continued financial strength. As a result of COVID-19 related supply chain issues, our capital expenditures may increase in
the short-term as we forward purchase IT related hardware and other supplies. However, given our financial strength, we do not believe our liquidity will be
significantly impacted by these conditions. As of December 31, 2021, we had approximately $234 million in cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments,
and an additional $450 million available to borrow under our revolving credit facility.

Acquisition Activity

During 2021, we completed the following acquisitions: (i) Tango Telecom Limited (“Tango”) in May; (ii) Kitewheel, LLC (“Kitewheel”) in July; (iii) Keydok,
LLC in September; and (iv) DGIT Systems Pty Ltd (“DGIT”) in October. Additionally, in July 2021, we obtained a controlling interest in MobileCard Holdings,
LLC (“MobileCard”). The results of these businesses are included in our 2021 results of operations from the acquisition date forward. As a result, our year-over-
year results of operations may not be comparable between years due to the timing of the transactions. The comparable differences have been described below
where relevant or significant.

These acquisitions are discussed in greater detail in Note 7 to our Financial Statements.

Executive Transition Costs

In 2020, we entered into a Separation Agreement and subsequent amendment with our former President and CEO, Bret Griess. Under the terms of the Separation
Agreement, Mr. Griess was entitled to: (i) additional compensation totaling $7.3 million, which was expensed ratably over his remaining service period, for which
approximately $5 million was paid in 2021 and approximately $2 million will be paid in 2022; and (ii) accelerated stock vestings, which resulted in additional
stock-based compensation expense of $5.7 million in 2020. The total $13.0 million of executive transition costs for 2020 were recorded in selling, general and
administrative (“SG&A”) expense.
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Management Overview

Results of Operations. A summary of our results of operations for 2021 and 2020, and other key performance metrics are as follows (in thousands, except
percentages and per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020
Revenue $ 1,046,487 $ 990,533
Transaction fees (1) 66,722 67,671
Operating Results:
Operating income 124,186 105,556
Operating income margin 11.9% 10.7%
Diluted EPS $ 2.26 $ 1.82
Supplemental Data:
Restructuring and reorganization charges (2) $ 4,870 $ 5,328
Executive transition costs (2) 503 13,012
Acquisition-related costs:
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 11,645 11,816
Earn-out compensation (2,521) -
Transaction-related costs 1,450 (587)
Stock-based compensation (2) 21,580 19,762
Amortization of OID 3,021 2,983
Loss on acquisition of controlling interest (3) 6,180 -

(1)Transaction fees are primarily comprised of interchange and other payment-related fees that we pay, in conjunction with
the delivery of service to customers under our payment services contracts, to third-party payment processors and financial
institutions. Because we control the integrated service provided under our payment services customer contracts, these
transaction fees are presented gross, and not netted against revenue.

(2)Stock-based compensation included in the table above exclude amounts that have been recorded in restructuring and
reorganization charges and executive transition costs.

(3)During 2021, we acquired a controlling interest in MobileCard (see Note 7 to our Financial Statements). Upon
acquisition, we recognized a non-cash loss in other income (expense) related to the fair value remeasurement of the
previously held equity investment interest.

Revenue. Revenue for 2021 was $1,046.5 million, a 5.6% increase when compared to $990.5 million for 2020, with the increase mainly attributed to the continued
growth of our revenue management platforms, as the majority of the increase was attributed to organic growth.

Operating Results. Operating income for 2021 was $124.2 million, or an 11.9% operating income margin percentage, compared to $105.6 million, or a 10.7%
operating income margin percentage for 2020. The increase in operating income in 2021 is reflective of the higher revenue generated. Additionally, operating
income in 2020 was negatively impacted by the $13.0 million of executive transition costs, discussed above, and an approximately $10 million impairment charge,
discussed below.

Diluted Earnings Per Share (“EPS”). Diluted EPS for 2021 was $2.26 compared to $1.82 for 2020, reflective of the higher operating income discussed above.
Balance Sheet and Cash Flows. As of December 31, 2021, we had cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments of $233.7 million, compared to $240.3
million as of December 31, 2020. Cash flows from operating activities for 2021 were $140.2 million, compared to $173.0 million for 2020. See the Liquidity

section below for further discussion of our cash flows.
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Significant Customer Relationships

A large percentage of our historical revenue has been generated from our two largest customers, which are Charter Corporation Inc. (“Charter”) and Comcast
Corporation (“Comcast”).

Charter. For 2021 and 2020, revenue from Charter was $221 million and $209 million, respectively, representing approximately 21% of our total revenue, for both
periods. On November 2, 2021, we entered into an amendment to our current agreement with Charter (the “Amended Agreement”). The Amended Agreement
provides the framework for Charter to consolidate its residential and small and medium business internet, video, and landline voice customer accounts (“Customer
Account(s)”) onto ACP. The key terms of the Amended Agreement are as follows:

*The Amended Agreement is effective January 1, 2022, and extends our contractual relationship with Charter through December 31, 2027 (a six-year initial
term). In addition, the Amended Agreement will automatically be extended for an additional one-year term, subject to Charter achieving certain conditional
processing minimums on July 1, 2027, unless Charter provides us with written notice of non-renewal.

*Consistent with the previous agreements, the fees to be generated under the Amended Agreement will be based primarily on monthly recurring charges for
our revenue and customer management solutions and related services per Customer Account, and various other ancillary services based on actual usage.
Certain of the per-unit fees include volume-based pricing tiers, and may be subject to annual price escalators.

*The Amended Agreement contains modified pricing and a minimum commitment associated with the number of Customer Accounts that are to be
processed on ACP which encompasses all subscribers receiving services. However, if Charter fails to achieve the minimum commitment by December 31,
2027, Charter will be obligated to pay a minimum commitment true-up, to be invoiced in January 2028. In order for Charter to meet the minimum
commitment, Charter will need to convert additional Customer Accounts onto ACP. As such, the Amended Agreement outlines the estimated conversion
and go-live for the remaining Customer Accounts not already on ACP, and includes incentives for the conversion of those additional Customer Accounts
onto ACP.

*We maintain the exclusive right to provide print and mail services to all current and future Customer Accounts through the term of the Amended
Agreement.

*The Amended Agreement contains certain rights and obligations of both parties, including the following key items: (i) the termination of the Amended
Agreement under certain conditions; (ii) various service level commitments; and (iii) remedies and limitation on liabilities associated with specified
breaches of contractual obligations.

During 2021, Charter migrated approximately five million Charter Customer Accounts onto ACP from a competitor's product. As outlined in the Amended
Agreement, Charter currently plans to migrate their remaining Customer Accounts onto ACP over the next nine to fifteen months. The Amended Agreement did
not have a material impact to our 2021 results of operations.

The anticipated revenue impact from the Amended Agreement in both the near and long terms may vary depending on the actual number of Customer Accounts
converting, the timing of such conversion and the actual level of products and services consumed by Charter and actual results may vary depending upon a variety
of factors. We undertake no duty to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

A copy of the Amended Agreement, with confidential information redacted, is filed as exhibit 10.26AW to this Form 10-K.

Comcast. For 2021 and 2020, revenue from Comcast was $216 million and $213 million, respectively, representing approximately 21% and 22% of our total
revenue. Our agreement with Comcast runs through December 31, 2024 for processing on ACP and other related solutions, and through December 31, 2025 for
print and mail services for residential customer accounts, with the option to extend the ACP processing agreement for an additional one-year term.

A copy of the Comcast agreement and related amendments, with confidential information redacted, is included in the exhibits to our periodic filings with the SEC.

28



Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense is included in the following (in thousands):

2021 2020 2019
Cost of revenue $ 4,561 $ 4,947 $ 4,584
Research and development 3,276 2,745 2,657
Selling, general and administrative (1) 13,743 12,070 13,655
Restructuring and reorganization charges (180) (215) 977)
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 21,400 § 19,547 $ 19,919

(1)SG&A stock-based compensation in the table above excludes the $5.7 million of executive transition costs in 2020.

See Notes 2 and 13 to our Financial Statements for additional discussion of our stock-based compensation expense.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires us to select appropriate accounting
policies, and to make judgments and estimates affecting the application of those accounting policies. In applying our accounting policies, different business
conditions or the use of different assumptions may result in materially different amounts reported in our Financial Statements.

We have identified the most critical accounting policies that affect our financial position and the results of our operations. These critical accounting policies were
determined by considering our accounting policies that involve the most complex or subjective decisions or assessments. Our most critical accounting policies
identified relate to: (i) revenue recognition; (ii) impairment assessments of long-lived assets; (iii) income taxes; and (iv) loss contingencies. These critical
accounting policies, as well as our other significant accounting policies, are disclosed in the notes to our Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized upon conclusion that a contract with a customer exists. Such conclusion is made by us when the contract is legally
enforceable and certain criteria, including collectability, are met. In making our determination of collectability, we consider a number of factors depending upon
the specific aspects of an arrangement, which may include, but is not limited to, the following items: (i) an assessment of the customer’s specific credit worthiness,
evidenced by its current financial position and/or recent operating results, credit ratings, and/or a bankruptcy filing status (as applicable); (ii) the customer’s current
accounts receivable status and/or its historical payment patterns with us (as applicable); (iii) the economic condition of the industry in which the customer conducts
the majority of its business; and/or (iv) the economic conditions and/or political stability of the country or region in which the customer is domiciled and/or
conducts the majority of its business. The evaluation of these factors, and the ultimate determination of collectability, requires significant judgments to be made by
us. Our judgments could have a significant effect to the amount and timing of revenue recognized in any period.

Our contracts with customers include SaaS based revenue management platform arrangements, managed services arrangements, SaaS payments platform
arrangements, software license and service arrangements, professional services arrangements, and bundled service arrangements. The revenue recognition policies
that involve the most complex and subjective decisions or assessments that may have a material impact on our operations relate to the accounting for revenue
management platform arrangements, software license and service arrangements, and bundled service arrangements.

Our SaaS based revenue management platform arrangements are complex agreements that typically include multiple performance obligations. Key factors
considered in accounting for SaaS based revenue management platform arrangements include the following criteria: (i) identification of performance obligations
within the contract; (ii) determination of the transaction price given the variable nature of the consideration and significance of the consideration; (iii)
determination of stand-alone selling price for each performance obligation and the allocation of value between the performance obligations; and (iv) calculation of
revenue recognized in each period. The evaluation of these factors and ultimate revenue recognition decision requires significant judgements to be made by us.
Depending on the significance of variable consideration, number of solutions/services, complex pricing structures and long-term nature of these types of contracts,
our judgements and estimates made in this area could have a significant effect on the amount and timing of revenue recognized in any period. In addition, certain
solutions and arrangements require us to assess whether we are a principal to the transaction (gross revenue) or an agent to the transaction (net revenue). Such
assessments can have a significant effect on the amount of total revenue recognized.

29



Our software license and related services arrangements include multiple performance obligations which may be complex and require considerable judgement. Key
factors considered in accounting for our software license and related service arrangements include the following criteria: (i) identification of performance
obligations within the contract; (ii) assessment of whether services included in the arrangement represent significant production, modification or customization of
the software (as applicable), such that the delivery of the software license and related services required to implement the software represent one combined
performance obligation; (iii) determination of the transaction price for the contract as these types of arrangements may include both fixed and variable
consideration; (iv) determination of stand-alone selling price for each performance obligation including the allocation of value between performance obligations;
and (v) estimates to measure progress for delivery. The evaluation of these factors and ultimate revenue recognition decision requires significant judgements to be
made by us. We generally determine stand-alone selling prices using pricing calculations (which include regional market factors) for our software license fees and
maintenance, and cost-plus margins for services. The pricing calculations can be complex and require estimates based on volumes. Additionally, our use of an
hours-based method of accounting for software license and other professional services performance obligations that are satisfied over time requires estimates of
total project revenue and costs, along with the expected hours necessary to complete a project. Changes in estimates as a result of additional information as work
progresses on a project are inherent characteristics of this method of revenue recognition as we are exposed to business risks in completing these types of
performance obligations. The estimation process to support our hours-based recognition method is more difficult for projects of greater length and/or complexity.
Our judgments and estimates could: (i) have a significant effect on revenue recognized in any period by changing the amount and/or the timing of the revenue
recognized; and/or (ii) impact the expected profitability of a project, including whether an overall loss on an arrangement has occurred.

Our contracts are subject to modification via amendment, change requests, and/or statement of works. Such modifications may occur frequently. The accounting
for contract modifications is complex and requires significant judgements to be made by us as to whether the contract modification is treated as either a separate
contract or part of the existing contract. Our judgements could have a significant effect on the revenue recognized in any period by changing the amount and/or
timing of the revenue recognized.

Our contracts typically include service level agreements or other incentives which may result in refunds or credits to our customers. Failure to meet service level
standards under the terms of the contract represent adjustments to the overall consideration (reductions in revenue) and may need to be estimated at the outset of
the arrangement as part of the overall variable consideration. Such estimates require significant judgement by us and may impact the amount and/or timing of the
revenue recognized.

Impairment Assessments of Long-Lived Assets. Long-lived assets relate primarily to property and equipment, software, acquired customer contracts, and customer
contract costs. These assets are required to be evaluated for possible impairment as events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these
assets may not be recoverable. A long-lived asset (or group of long-lived assets) is impaired if estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with that asset,
without consideration of interest, are insufficient to recover the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. Once deemed impaired, even if by $1, the long-lived asset
is written down to its fair value which could be considerably less than the carrying amount or future undiscounted cash flows. The determination of estimated
future cash flows and, if required, the determination of the fair value of a long-lived asset, are by their nature, highly subjective judgments. Changes to one or
more of the assumptions utilized in such an analysis could materially affect our impairment conclusions for long-lived assets.

Income Taxes. We are required to estimate our income tax liability in each jurisdiction in which we operate, including U.S. federal, state, and foreign income
taxes.

Various judgments are required in evaluating our income tax positions and determining our provisions for income taxes. We regularly assess the likelihood of the
future realization of our deferred income tax assets. To the extent we believe that it is not more likely than not that a deferred income tax asset will be realized, a
valuation allowance is established. During the ordinary course of our business, there are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate income tax
determination may be uncertain. In addition, we may be subject to examination of our income tax returns by various tax authorities which could result in adverse
outcomes. For these reasons, we establish a liability associated with unrecognized tax benefits based on estimates of whether additional taxes and interest may be
due. We adjust this liability based upon changing facts and circumstances, such as the closing of a tax audit, the closing of a tax year upon the expiration of a
statute of limitations, or the refinement of an estimate. Should any of the factors considered in determining the adequacy of this liability change significantly, an
adjustment to the liability may be necessary. Due to the potential significance of these issues, such an adjustment could be material.
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One of the more complex items within our income tax expense is the determination of our annual research and experimentation income tax credit (“R&D tax
credit”). We have incurred approximately $120 - $135 million annually in R&D expense over the last three years. The calculation of the R&D tax credit involves
the identification of qualifying projects, as well as an estimation of the qualifying costs for such projects. Due to the size, nature, and the number of projects
worked on in any given year, the calculation can become complex and certain judgments are necessary in determining the amount of the R&D tax credits claimed.

Loss Contingencies. In the ordinary course of business, we are subject to potential claims related to various items including but not limited to the following: (i)
legal and regulatory matters; (ii) vendor contracts; (iii) solution and service delivery matters; and (iv) labor matters. Accounting and disclosure requirements for
loss contingencies requires us to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments in or range of potential outcomes for these matters. A determination of the amount
of reserves for such contingencies, if any, is based on an analysis of the issues, often with the assistance of legal counsel. The evaluation of such issues, and our
ultimate accounting and disclosure decisions, are by their nature, subject to various estimates and highly subjective judgments. Should any of the factors considered
in determining the adequacy of any required reserves change significantly, an adjustment to the reserves may be necessary. Due to the potential significance of
these issues, such an adjustment could be material.

Detailed Discussion of Results of Operations

The following discussion includes a comparison of our results of operations and liquidity for 2021 compared to 2020. For a discussion of the 2020 compared to
2019, please refer to Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2020, filed with the SEC on February 19, 2021.

Total Revenue. Total revenue for 2021 was $1,046.5 million, a 5.6% increase when compared to $990.5 million for 2020. The increase in total revenue can be
mainly attributed to continued growth of our revenue management solutions and to a lesser degree, the revenue generated from customer experiences solutions and
the acquired businesses (discussed above), and favorable foreign currency movements.

We use the location of the customer as the basis of attributing revenue to individual countries and corresponding geographic regions. Revenue by geographic
regions for 2021 and 2020 were as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020
Americas (principally the U.S.) $ 887,428 $ 856,858
Europe, Middle East, and Africa 117,431 96,480
Asia Pacific 41,628 37,195
Total revenue $ 1,046,487 $ 990,533

Total Operating Expenses. Our operating expenses for 2021 increased 4.2% to $922.3 million, from $885.0 million for 2020. The increase in operating expenses
is reflective of our increase in revenue and can be primarily attributed to increased employee related costs and the additional costs of the acquired businesses, as we
continue to invest in our people and our future-ready platforms to position ourselves for accelerated growth, and to a lesser degree, unfavorable foreign currency
movements. These costs were offset to a certain degree by the $13.0 million of executive transition costs, discussed above; and an approximately $10 million
impairment charge for the write-off of capitalized customer contract costs related to a discontinued project implementation, both recorded in 2020.

Cost of Revenue (Exclusive of Depreciation). Our cost of revenue consist principally of the following: (i) computing capacity and network communications costs;
(ii) statement production costs (e.g., labor, paper, envelopes, equipment, equipment maintenance, etc.); (iii) transaction fees-interchange and other payment-related
fees to third-party payment processors and financial institutions; (iv) customer support organizations (e.g., our customer support call center, account management,
etc.); (v) professional services organization; (vi) various product delivery and support organizations (e.g., managed services delivery, product management, product
maintenance, etc.); (vii) third-party software costs and/or royalties related to certain software products; (viii) facilities and infrastructure costs related to the
statement production and support organizations; and (ix) amortization of acquired intangibles. The costs related to new solution development (including significant
enhancements to existing products and services) are included in R&D expense.

The cost of revenue for 2021 increased 1.4% to $543.2 million, from $535.6 million for 2020, reflective of the increase in revenue, driven mainly by employee-
related costs, to include the acquired businesses. Additionally, in 2020 we recorded an approximately $10 million impairment charge, mentioned above. Total cost
of revenue as a percentage of revenue for 2021 and 2020 was 51.9% and 54.1%, respectively.
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R&D Expense (Exclusive of Depreciation). R&D expense for 2021 was $134.7 million, a 9.6% increase when compared to $122.8 million for 2020, with the
increase mainly attributed to higher employee related costs, to include the R&D activities of the acquired businesses.

Our R&D efforts are focused on the continued evolution of our solutions that enable our customers worldwide to provide a more personalized customer experience
while introducing new digital solutions. This includes the continued investment in our products and integration of the recently acquired assets into our solutions.

As a percentage of total revenue, R&D expense for 2021 and 2020 was 12.9% and 12.4%, respectively. We anticipate the level of R&D investment in the near-
term to be relatively consistent with 2021.

SG&A Expense (Exclusive of Depreciation). SG&A expense for 2021 increased 8.3% to $214.7 million, from $198.3 million for 2020. The increase in SG&A
expense between 2021 and 2020 is reflective of our growth strategy and is primarily due to higher employee related costs and the SG&A activities of the acquired

businesses. This was offset to a certain degree by the $13.0 million of executive transition costs in 2020, discussed above. As a percentage of total revenue,
SG&A expense for 2021 and 2020 was 20.5% and 20.0%, respectively.

Depreciation Expense. Depreciation expense for all property and equipment is reflected separately from cost of revenue or the other components of operating
expenses. Depreciation expense for 2021 was $24.8 million, an 8.3% increase from $22.9 million for 2020. The increase can be primarily attributed to
expenditures on software, technology, and security infrastructure, which generally have shorter depreciable lives.

Restructuring and Reorganization Charges. In 2021 and 2020, we implemented cost reduction and efficiency initiatives that resulted in restructuring and
reorganization charges of $4.9 million and $5.3 million, respectively. These initiatives were primarily made up of organizational changes made to pursue global
opportunities and efficiencies.

See Note 8 to our Financial Statements for additional information regarding these initiatives.

Operating Income. Operating income and operating income margin for 2021 was $124.2 million, or 11.9% of total revenue, compared to $105.6 million, or 10.7%
of total revenue for 2020. The increase in operating income in 2021 is reflective of the higher revenue generated. Additionally, operating income in 2020 was
negatively impacted by the $13.0 million of executive transition costs, and an approximately $10 million impairment charge, discussed above.

Interest Expense and Amortization of Original Issue Discount (“OID”). Our interest expense relates primarily to our 2016 Convertible Notes and our 2018 and
2021 Credit Agreements. See Note 5 to our Financial Statements for additional discussion of our long-term debt, to include the non-cash interest expense related to
the amortization of the convertible debt OID.

Other, net. During 2021, we made an additional investment in MobileCard (see Note 7 to our Financial Statements), resulting in a controlling interest of the
company. Upon obtaining control of MobileCard, the fair value of our pre-existing equity investment was remeasured resulting in a $6.2 million non-cash loss as

of the acquisition date.

Income Tax Provision. Our effective income tax rates for 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

2021 2020
28% 31%

The 2020 effective income tax rate reflects the income tax impact related to the executive transition costs, discussed above (see Note 9 to our Financial
Statements).
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Liquidity

Cash and Liquidity. As of December 31, 2021, our principal sources of liquidity included cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments of $233.7 million,
compared to $240.3 million as of December 31, 2020. We generally invest our excess cash balances in low-risk, short-term investments to limit our exposure to
market and credit risks.

During 2021, we refinanced our 2018 Credit Agreement which extended the term of the loan from March 2023 to September 2026. The 2021 Credit Agreement
increased our liquidity and capital resources position by approximately $30 million. Additionally, as part of our 2021 Credit Agreement, we expanded our
revolving loan facility, the 2021 Revolver, from $200 million to $450 million. As of December 31, 2021, there were no borrowings outstanding on the 2021
Revolver. The 2021 Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative, negative, and financial covenants. As of December 31, 2021, and the date of this filing, we
believe we are in compliance with the provisions of the 2021 Credit Agreement.

Our cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investment balances as of the end of the indicated periods were located in the following geographical regions (in
thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Americas (principally the U.S.) $ 164,561 § 183,918
Europe, Middle East and Africa 56,368 47,513
Asia Pacific 12,743 8,866
Total cash, equivalents and short-term investments $ 233,672 $ 240,297

We generally have ready access to substantially all of our cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investment balances, but may face limitations on moving cash out
of certain foreign jurisdictions due to currency controls and potential negative economic consequences. As of December 31, 2021, we had $1.4 million of cash
restricted as to use primarily to collateralize guarantees and outstanding letters of credit included in our total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments
balance.

Cash Flows From Operating Activities. We calculate our cash flows from operating activities beginning with net income, adding back the impact of non-cash
items or non-operating activity (e.g., depreciation, amortization, amortization of OID, impairments, gain/loss from debt extinguishments, deferred income taxes,
stock-based compensation, etc.), and then factoring in the impact of changes in operating assets and liabilities.

Our primary source of cash is from our operating activities. Our current business model consists of a significant amount of recurring revenue sources related to our
long-term revenue management platforms and other related solutions and managed services arrangements (primarily billed monthly), payments transaction services
(primarily billed monthly), and software maintenance agreements (which may be billed monthly, quarterly, or annually). This recurring revenue base provides us
with a reliable and predictable source of cash. In addition, software license fees and professional services revenue are sources of cash, but the payment streams for
these items are less predictable.

The primary use of our cash is to fund our operating activities. Over half of our total operating costs relate to labor costs (both employees and contracted labor) for
the following: (i) compensation; (ii) related fringe benefits; (iii) incentive compensation; and (iv) reimbursements for travel and entertainment expenses. Other
operating expenses consist of: (i) computing capacity and related services and communication lines for our outsourced cloud-based business; (ii) paper, envelopes,
and related supplies for our statement processing solutions; (iii) transaction fees paid in conjunction with the delivery of services under our payment services
contracts; (iv) hardware and software maintenance; and (v) rent and related facility costs. These items are purchased under a variety of both short-term and long-
term contractual commitments. A discussion of our material contractual obligations is provided below.
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Our 2021 and 2020 net cash flows from operating activities, broken out between operations and changes in operating assets and liabilities, for the indicated
quarterly periods are as follows (in thousands):

Net Cash
Changes in Provided by
Operating (Used In) Operating
Assets and Activities —
Operations Liabilities Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
2021:
March 31 (1)(2) $ 49273 $ (51,497) $ (2,224)
June 30 (2) 42,930 1,523 44,453
September 30 42,417 3,663 46,080
December 31 44,609 7,305 51,914
Total $ 179,229  § (39,006) $ 140,223
2020:
March 31 (1)(2) $ 52,938 § (59,900) $ (6,962)
June 30 (2) 41,022 16,800 57,822
September 30 (2) 31,971 33,298 65,269
December 31 37,747 19,117 56,864
Total $ 163,678 § 9,315 § 172,993

(1)Cash flows from operating activities for the first quarter of 2021 and 2020 reflect the negative impacts of the payment of the 2020 and 2019 year-end
accrued employee incentive compensation in the first quarter subsequent to the year-end accrual for those items.

(2)Cash flows from operating activities for the first quarter of 2021 and the first and second quarters 2020 were negatively impacted by the timing of certain
recurring key customer payments that were delayed and received subsequent to quarter-end, of approximately $26 million for the first quarter of 2021, and
$33 million and $26 million for the first and second quarters of 2020. As of the end of the second quarter of 2021 and the third quarter of 2020, these
recurring key customer payments were current, resulting in the second quarter of 2021 and the third quarter of 2020 cash flows from operating activities

having the benefit of an additional payment due to the timing delays in previous quarters.

We believe the above table illustrates our ability to generate recurring quarterly cash flows from our operations, and the importance of managing our working
capital items. The quarterly and annual variations in our net cash provided by operating activities are generally related to the changes in our operating assets and
liabilities (related mostly to fluctuations in timing at quarter-end of customer payments and changes in accrued expenses), and generally over longer periods of
time, do not significantly impact our cash flows from operations.

Significant fluctuations in key operating assets and liabilities between 2021 and 2020 that impacted our cash flows from operating activities are as follows:
Billed Trade Accounts Receivable

Management of our billed accounts receivable is one of the primary factors in maintaining strong cash flows from operating activities. Our billed trade
accounts receivable balance includes significant billings for several non-revenue items (primarily postage, sales tax, and deferred revenue items). As a
result, we evaluate our performance in collecting our accounts receivable through our calculation of Days Billings Outstanding (“DBO”) rather than a
typical Days Sales Outstanding (“DSO”) calculation.
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Our gross and net billed trade accounts receivable and related allowance for doubtful accounts receivable (“Allowance”) as of the end of the indicated
quarterly periods, and the related DBOs for the quarters then ended, are as follows (in thousands, except DBOs):

Quarter Ended Gross Allowance Net Billed DBOs
2021:
March 31 $ 250,743 § (3,718) $ 247,025 70
June 30 226,774 (3,546) 223,228 68
September 30 246,317 (3,157) 243,160 65
December 31 248,567 (4,250) 244317 66
2020:
March 31 $ 264,601 $ (3,888) $ 260,713 72
June 30 248,470 (4,057) 244,413 73
September 30 228,847 (3,730) 225,117 68
December 31 230,251 (3,628) 226,623 67

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, over 95% of our billed accounts receivable balances were less than 60 days past due.

The DBO metric for the first quarter of 2021 and the first and second quarters of 2020 were negatively impacted by the delays of certain recurring key
customer payments, as noted above. We may experience future adverse impacts to our DBOs if and when these payment delays occur. However, these
recurring monthly payments that cross a reporting period-end do not raise any collectability concerns, as payment is generally received subsequent to
quarter-end. All other changes in our gross and net billed accounts receivable reflect the normal fluctuations in the timing of customer payments at quarter-
end, as evidenced by our relatively consistent DBO metric.

As a global provider of solutions and services, a portion of our accounts receivable balance relates to international customers. This diversity in the
geographic composition of our customer base may adversely impact our DBOs as longer billing cycles (i.e., billing terms and cash collection cycles) are an
inherent characteristic of international software and professional services transactions. For example, our ability to invoice and collect arrangement fees may
be dependent upon, among other things: (i) the completion of various customer administrative matters, local country billing protocols and processes
(including local cultural differences), and non-customer administrative matters; (ii) meeting certain contractual invoicing milestones; or (iii) the overall
project status in certain situations in which we act as a subcontractor to another vendor on a project.

Income Taxes Payable/Receivable

Net income taxes payable/receivable (current and non-current) at December 31, 2021 was a net income taxes receivable balance of $2.0 million, compared
to a net income taxes payable balance of $6.9 million at December 31, 2020. This net $8.9 million change is primarily due to the timing of our estimated
Federal and state income tax payments.

Cash Flows From Investing Activities. Our typical investing activities consist of purchases and sales of short-term investments and purchases of software, property
and equipment, which are discussed below. During 2021, we made the following cash payments for the acquisitions of (all shown net of cash acquired, if
applicable): (i) Tango for $11.4 million; (ii) Kitewheel for $33.8 million; (iii) Keydok for $1.0 million; and (iv) DGIT for $12.5 million. We also made an
investment in MobileCard of $6.1 million. During 2020, we acquired Tekzenit Inc. (“Tekzenit”) for $10.0 million and made an investment in MobileCard of $1.5
million. All of these activities are included in our cash flows from investing activities.

Purchases/Sales of Short-term Investments

During 2021 and 2020 we purchased $67.0 million and $81.8 million, respectively, and sold or had mature $90.5 million and $56.5 million, respectively, of
short-term investments. We continually evaluate the possible uses of our excess cash balances and will likely purchase and sell additional short-term
investments in the future.

Software, Property and Equipment

Our annual capital expenditures for software, property and equipment for 2021 and 2020 were $26.6 million and $29.4 million, respectively. Our capital
expenditures for these periods consisted principally of investments in computer hardware, software, and related equipment, statement production equipment,
and infrastructure.
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Cash Flows From Financing Activities. Our financing activities typically consist of various debt-related transactions and activities with our common stock, which
are discussed below.

Issuance of Common Stock

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock for 2021 and 2020 were $2.6 million and $2.5 million, respectively, and relate primarily to our employee
stock purchase plan.

Repurchase of Common Stock

During 2021 and 2020 we repurchased approximately 733,000 shares and 624,000 shares of our common stock under the guidelines of our Stock
Repurchase Program for $36.0 million and $26.3 million, respectively.

Additionally, outside of our Stock Repurchase Program, during 2021 and 2020, we repurchased from our employees and then canceled approximately
130,000 shares and 254,000 shares, of our common stock for $6.3 million and $11.9 million, respectively, in connection with minimum tax withholding

requirements resulting from the vesting of restricted stock under our stock incentive plans.

Through December 31, 2021 and 2020, we have paid $42.3 million and $38.1 million, respectively, for our total repurchases of common stock, with the
differences when compared to the amounts accrued attributed to the timing of the settlement.

Cash Dividends Paid on Common Stock
During 2021 and 2020, the Board approved dividend payments totaling $32.7 million and $30.9 million, respectively. During 2021 and 2020, we paid

dividends of $32.6 million and $31.1 million, respectively, with the differences between the amount approved and paid attributed to dividends accrued on
unvested incentive shares that are paid upon vesting.

Long-term Debt

In 2021, we refinanced our 2018 Credit Agreement and as a result, we repaid the outstanding principal balance of $120.0 million and borrowed $150.0
million under the 2021 Credit Agreement, resulting in a net increase of available cash of $30.0 million. As part of the refinancing, we paid $3.0 million of
deferred financing costs.

Additionally, during 2021 and 2020 we made principal repayments of $8.4 million and $10.3 million, respectively, on our long-term debt balance.

See Note 5 to our Financial Statements for additional discussion of our long-term debt.

Settlement and Merchant Reserve Activity

During 2021 and 2020, we had net settlement and merchant reserve activity of $20.3 million and ($15.1) million, respectively, related to the cash collected,
held on behalf, and paid to our merchants related to our payments services and the net change in deposits held on behalf of our merchants.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments and Contingencies

We have various contractual obligations that are recorded as liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Other items, such as certain purchase commitments and
other executory contracts, are not recognized as liabilities in our Balance Sheets but are required to be disclosed.

We have elected to redeem all of our outstanding 2016 Convertible Notes on March 15, 2022 at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount. As of
December 31, 2021, the outstanding balance of our 2016 Convertible Notes was $230.0 million and the remaining interest payments are approximately $5 million.
Additionally, the conversion obligation in excess of par value, if any, will be settled in cash.
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Our 2021 Credit Agreement includes the mandatory quarterly amortization payments on the term loan, interest payments throughout the life of the term loan, and a
commitment fee on the unused balance of the revolver. As of December 31, 2021, the outstanding balance on our 2021 Credit Agreement was $148.1 million, our
estimated interest over the remaining life of the loan was approximately $10 million, and our estimated commitment fee was approximately $3 million, based on
the current leverage ratio, LIBOR rates, and unused revolver balance.

Our long-term debt obligations are discussed in more detail in Note 5 to our Financial Statements.

Our operating leases are discussed in Note 6 to our Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2021, the value of our obligations under our real estate and
equipment leases was approximately $87 million.

Our purchase obligations consist primarily of our expected minimum base fees under our outsourced computing service agreement with Ensono, Inc., which
includes embedded lease components (discussed in Notes 6 and 11 to our Financial Statements). As of December 31, 2021, the total value of our purchase
obligations was approximately $274 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our off-balance sheet arrangements are mainly limited to money transmitter bonds, bid bonds, and performance bonds. These arrangements do not have a material
impact and are not reasonably likely to have a material future impact to our financial condition, results of operation, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital
resources. See Note 11 to our Financial Statements for additional information on these guarantees.

Capital Resources
The following are the key items to consider in assessing our sources and uses of capital resources:
Current Sources of Capital Resources.

*Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments. As of December 31, 2021, we had cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments of $233.7
million, of which approximately 66% is in U.S. dollars and held in the U.S. We have $1.4 million of restricted cash included in cash and cash equivalents,
used primarily to collateralize guarantees and outstanding letters of credit. For the remainder of the monies denominated in foreign currencies or located
outside the U.S., we do not anticipate any material amounts being unavailable for use in running our business.

*Operating Cash Flows. As described in the Liquidity section above, we believe we have the ability to generate strong cash flows to fund our operating
activities and act as a source of funds to meet our capital resource needs.

*Revolving Loan Facility. In 2021, we refinanced our 2018 Credit Agreement, which includes a $450 million revolving loan facility, our 2021 Revolver.
As of December 31, 2021, we had no borrowing outstanding on our 2021 Revolver and had the entire $450 million available to us. Our long-term debt
obligations are discussed in more detail in Note 5 to our Financial Statements.
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Uses/Potential Uses of Capital Resources. Below are the key items to consider in assessing our uses/potential uses of capital resources:

*Common Stock Repurchases. We have made repurchases of our common stock in the past under our Stock Repurchase Program. As of December 31,
2021, we had 3.6 million shares authorized for repurchase remaining under our Stock Repurchase Program. Our 2021 Credit Agreement places certain
limitations on our ability to repurchase our common stock.

Under our Stock Repurchase Program, we may repurchase shares in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, including through an
accelerated stock repurchase plan or under a SEC Rule 10b5-1 plan. The actual timing and amount of share repurchases are dependent on the
current market conditions and other business-related factors. Our common stock repurchases are discussed in more detail in Note 12 to our
Financial Statements.

During 2021, we repurchased 733,000 shares of our common stock for $36.0 million (weighted-average price of $49.13 per share) under our Stock
Repurchase Program.

Outside of our Stock Repurchase Program, during 2021, we repurchased from our employees and then cancelled 130,000 shares of our common
stock for $6.3 million in connection with minimum tax withholding requirements resulting from the vesting of restricted stock under our stock
incentive plans.

*Executive Transition. In 2020, we entered into a Separation Agreement and subsequent amendment with our former President and CEO, which included a
commitment to pay additional compensation of approximately $7 million, for which approximately $5 million was paid in 2021 and approximately $2
million will be paid in 2022.

Cash Dividends. During 2021, the Board declared dividends totaling $32.7 million. Going forward, we expect to pay cash dividends each year in March,
June, September, and December, with the amount and timing subject to the Board’s approval.

*Acquisitions. During 2021, we completed the following acquisitions, and as a result, have the following potential future obligations:
oIn May we acquired Tango for a purchase price of approximately $13 million, or approximately $11 million, net of cash acquired.

oln July we acquired Kitewheel for a purchase price of $40.0 million, of which $34.0 million was paid upon close and the remaining $6.0 million
will be paid in annual payments over the next three years.

oln July, we made an additional investment of $6.1 million in MobileCard. After this investment, we now hold a 64% controlling interest in the
company.

oln September we acquired Keydok for a purchase price of $1.0 million, which includes provisions for up to $18.0 million of potential future earn-
out payments. The earn-out period is through September 30, 2025. As of December 31, 2021, we have not accrued any amounts related to the
potential earn-out payments.

oln October we acquired DGIT for a purchase price of approximately $16 million, which includes escrowed funds of approximately $2 million to be
paid over the next four years subject to certain reductions, as applicable, and provisions for up to approximately $13 million of potential future earn-
out payments. The earn-out period is through September 30, 2025. As of December 31, 2021 we have accrued $0.3 million related to the potential
earn-out payments.

Additionally, the 2020 Tekzenit acquisition includes provisions for additional purchase price payments in the form of earn-out and qualified sales
payments for up to $10 million over a measurement period through March 31, 2023. As of December 31, 2021, we have made no earn-out or
qualified sales payments for this acquisition.

These acquisitions were funded from currently available cash. Our acquisitions are discussed in more detail in Note 7 to our Financial Statements.
As part of our growth strategy, we are continually evaluating potential business and/or asset acquisitions and investments in market share expansion
with our existing and potential new customers and expansion into verticals outside the global communications market.
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«Capital Expenditures. During 2021, we spent $26.6 million on capital expenditures. As of December 31, 2021, we had committed to purchase $10.5
million of equipment.

+Stock Warrants. We have issued Stock Warrants with an exercise price of $26.68 per warrant to Comcast as an incentive for Comcast to convert new
customer accounts to ACP. Once vested, Comcast may exercise the Stock Warrants and elect either physical delivery of common shares or net share
settlement (cashless exercise). Alternatively, the exercise of the Stock Warrants may be settled with cash based solely on our approval, or if Comcast were
to beneficially own or control in excess of 19.99% of the common stock or voting of the Company. As of December 31, 2021, approximately 1.0 million
Stock Warrants were outstanding, none of which were vested.

The Stock Warrants are discussed in more detail in Note 12 to our Financial Statements.

*Long-Term Debt. As of December 31, 2021, our long-term debt consisted of the following: (i) 2016 Convertible Notes with a par value of $230.0 million;
and (ii) 2021 Credit Agreement term loan borrowings of $148.1 million.

2016 Convertible Notes

Our 2016 Convertible Notes will be convertible at the option of the note holders during the period from December 15, 2021 to the close of business
on the business day immediately preceding March 15, 2022. For notes presented during this time frame, the settlement amount will be equal to the
sum of the daily settlement amounts for each of the following 40 consecutive trading days during the related observation period (January 12, 2022 -
March 10, 2022). We have elected to redeem all of the outstanding notes on March 15, 2022 at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount.
We will settle the par amount in cash using our available cash and our 2021 Revolver. As a result, we expect our required debt service outlay during
the next twelve months for the 2016 Convertible Notes to be the $230.0 million par value, the conversion obligation in excess of par value, if any,
and interest payments of $4.9 million.

2021 Credit Agreement

Our 2021 Credit Agreement mandatory repayments and the cash interest expense (based upon current interest rates and leverage ratio) for the next
twelve months is $7.5 million, and $2.4 million, respectively. We have the ability to make prepayments on our 2021 Credit Agreement without
penalty.

Our long-term debt obligations are discussed in more detail in Note 5 to our Financial Statements.

In summary, we expect to continue to have material needs for capital resources going forward, as noted above. We believe that our current cash, cash equivalents
and short-term investments balances and our 2021 Revolver, together with cash expected to be generated in the future from our current operating activities, will be
sufficient to meet our anticipated capital resource requirements for at least the next twelve months. We believe we could obtain additional capital through other
debt sources which may be available to us if deemed appropriate.

em 7A.Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. As of December 31, 2021, we are exposed to various market risks,
including changes in interest rates, fluctuations, and changes in the market value of our cash equivalents and short-term investments, and changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. We have not historically entered into derivatives or other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Risk
Long-Term Debt. The interest rate on our 2016 Convertible Notes is fixed, and thus, as it relates to our convertible debt borrowings, we are not exposed to changes
in interest rates.

The interest rates under our 2021 Credit Agreement are based upon an adjusted LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin, or an alternate base rate plus an applicable
margin. Refer to Note 5 to our Financial Statements for further details of our long-term debt.

A hypothetical adverse change of 10% in the December 31, 2021 adjusted LIBOR rate would not have had a material impact upon our results of operations.
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Market Risk

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments. Our cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $205.6 million and $188.7 million,
respectively. Certain of our cash balances are swept into overnight money market accounts on a daily basis, and at times, any excess funds are invested in low-risk,
somewhat longer term, cash equivalent instruments and short-term investments. Our cash equivalents are invested primarily in institutional money market funds,
commercial paper, and time deposits held at major banks. We have minimal market risk for our cash and cash equivalents due to the relatively short maturities of
the instruments.

Our short-term investments as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $28.0 million and $51.6 million, respectively. Currently, we utilize short-term investments as
a means to invest our excess cash only in the U.S. The day-to-day management of our short-term investments is performed by a large financial institution in the
U.S., using strict and formal investment guidelines approved by our Board. Under these guidelines, short-term investments are limited to certain acceptable
investments with: (i) a maximum maturity; (ii) a maximum concentration and diversification; and (iii) a minimum acceptable credit quality. At this time, we
believe we have minimal liquidity risk associated with the short-term investments included in our portfolio.

Settlement and Merchant Reserve Assets. We are exposed to market risk associated with cash held on behalf of our merchants related to our payments services. As
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, we had $186.3 million and $166.0 million, respectively, of cash collected on behalf of our merchants. The cash is held in
accounts with various major financial institutions in the U.S. and Canada in an amount equal to at least 100% of the aggregate amount owed to our merchants.
These balances can significantly fluctuate between periods due to activity at the end of the period and the day in which the period ends.

Long-Term Debt. The fair value of our convertible debt is exposed to market risk. We do not record our convertible debt at fair value but present the fair value for
disclosure purposes (see Note 2 to our Financial Statements). Generally, the fair value of our convertible debt is impacted by changes in interest rates and changes
in the price and volatility of our common stock. As of December 31, 2021, the fair value of the 2016 Convertible Notes was estimated at $245.0 million using
quoted market prices.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Due to foreign operations around the world, our balance sheet and income statement are exposed to foreign currency exchange risk due to the fluctuations in the
value of currencies in which we conduct business. While we attempt to maximize natural hedges by incurring expenses in the same currency in which we contract
revenue, the related expenses for that revenue could be in one or more differing currencies than the revenue stream.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, we generated approximately 87% of our revenue in U.S. dollars. We expect that, in the foreseeable future, we will
continue to generate a very large percentage of our revenue in U.S. dollars.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of our monetary assets and monetary liabilities on the books of our non-U.S. subsidiaries in currencies
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of those non-U.S. subsidiaries are as follows (in thousands, in U.S. dollar equivalents):

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Monetary Monetary Monetary Monetary
Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets
Pounds sterling $ “) $ 1,829 $ (148) $ 1,673
Euro (297) 2,702 (288) 7,734
U.S. Dollar (541) 30,212 (292) 24,445
South African Rand 95) 3,631 - 4,809
Other (10) 976 6) 1,071
Totals $ 947) § 39,350 3 (734) 3 39,732

A hypothetical adverse change of 10% in the December 31, 2021 exchange rates would not have had a material impact upon our results of operations.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of CSG Systems International, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

(i)Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company;

(ii)Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and

(iii)Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework (2013). Management has excluded from its evaluation the internal control over financial reporting: (i) MobileCard Holdings, LLC, which beginning
in July 2021, the Company held a controlling interest in; (ii) Keydok, LLC, which was acquired on September 14, 2021; and (iii) DGIT Systems Pty Ltd, which
was acquired on October 4, 2021; which are discussed in Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. At December 31, 2021, these combined acquisitions
had $30.7 million and $27.3 million of total assets and net assets, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Income
included total revenue associated with these acquisitions of $1.5 million. In accordance with guidance issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
companies are allowed to exclude acquisitions from their assessment of internal controls over financial reporting during the first year subsequent to the acquisition
while integrating the acquired operations.

Based on our assessment, management believes that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021. That report appears immediately following.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited CSG Systems International, Inc. and subsidiaries' (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance
sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements), and our
report dated February 18, 2022 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

The Company acquired MobileCard Holdings, LLC, Keydok, LLC, and DGIT Systems Pty Ltd during 2021, and management excluded from its assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, MobileCard Holdings, LLC, Keydok, LLC, and DGIT Systems
Pty Ltd’s internal control over financial reporting associated with total assets of $30.7 million and total revenue of $1.5 million included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also
excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of MobileCard Holdings, LLC, Keydok, LLC, and DGIT Systems Pty Ltd.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
February 18, 2022
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CSG Systems International, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated February 18, 2022 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that was communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2)
involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of a critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical
audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Agreements with significant customers

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company generated 42% of its revenue from its significant customers. The agreements
with these significant customers are complex and subject to modification in the form of amendments, change requests, or statements of work, which can
occur frequently. The accounting for these agreements requires significant judgments to be made by the Company, specifically whether a new or revised
agreement is treated as either a separate contract or modification of an existing contract. The judgments could significantly affect revenue recognized in any
period.

We identified the evaluation of agreements with significant customers as a critical audit matter. Due to the subjectivity and complexity in the application of

the portion of the accounting standard related to contract modifications, the assessment of the Company’s judgments regarding whether each new or revised
agreement is treated as a separate contract or modification of an existing contract required a higher degree of auditor judgment.

The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness
of certain internal controls related to the Company’s revenue recognition process. This included controls over monitoring and evaluating agreements with
significant customers. For certain new or revised agreements with significant customers, we obtained and read the agreement, performed an independent
analysis of the accounting treatment as a separate contract or modification of an existing contract, and compared our conclusions to those made by the
Company.

/s/ KPMG LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2002.

Omaha, Nebraska
February 18, 2022
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 205,635 $ 188,699
Short-term investments 28,037 51,598
Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments 233,672 240,297
Settlement and merchant reserve assets 186,267 166,031
Trade accounts receivable:
Billed, net of allowance of $4,250 and $3,628 244,317 226,623
Unbilled
35,802 37,785
Income taxes receivable 6,414 2,167
Other current assets 41,727 41,688
Total current assets 748,199 714,591
Non-current assets:
Property and equipment, net of depreciation of $111,244 and $105,073 73,580 81,759
Operating lease right-of-use assets 86,034 110,756
Software, net of amortization of $152,283 and $139,836 29,757 26,453
Goodwill 321,330 272,322
Acquired customer contracts, net of amortization of $114,166 and $105,778 57,207 48,012
Customer contract costs, net of amortization of $32,410 and $39,893 46,618 47,238
Deferred income taxes 8,584 10,205
Other assets 15,840 20,664
Total non-current assets 638,950 617,409
Total assets $ 1,387,149  § 1,332,000
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 237,500 $ 14,063
Operating lease liabilities 23,270 22,651
Customer deposits 43,546 39,992
Trade accounts payable 35,397 29,834
Accrued employee compensation 91,115 86,289
Settlement and merchant reserve liabilities 185,276 165,064
Deferred revenue 53,748 52,357
Income taxes payable 398 6,627
Other current liabilities 24,852 19,383
Total current liabilities 695,102 436,260
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of unamortized discounts of $3,406 and $5,346 137,219 337,154
Operating lease liabilities 70,068 95,926
Deferred revenue 19,599 17,275
Income taxes payable 4,058 2,436
Deferred income taxes 7,752 5,109
Other non-current liabilities 13,107 15,445
Total non-current liabilities 251,803 473,345
Total liabilities 946,905 909,605
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; 10,000 shares authorized; zero shares issued and outstanding - -
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 100,000 shares authorized; 4,704 and 5,929 shares reserved for
employee stock purchase plan and stock incentive plans; 32,495 and 32,713 shares outstanding 705 700
Additional paid-in capital 488,303 470,557
Treasury stock, at cost; 36,713 and 35,980 shares (930,106) (894,126)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gains on short-term investments, net of tax 6) 13
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments (38,347) (31,151)
Accumulated earnings 916,060 876,402
Total CSG stockholders' equity 436,609 422,395
Noncontrolling interest 3,635 -
Total stockholders' equity 440,244 422,395
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,387,149  § 1,332,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Revenue $ 1,046,487 $ 990,533  $ 996,810
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation, shown separately below) 543,211 535,597 525,122
Other operating expenses:
Research and development 134,691 122,847 127,994
Selling, general and administrative 214,694 198,279 191,329
Depreciation 24,835 22,926 21,422
Restructuring and reorganization charges 4,870 5,328 4,834
Total operating expenses 922,301 884,977 870,701
Operating income 124,186 105,556 126,109
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (14,569) (15,500) (17,748)
Amortization of original issue discount (3,021) (2,983) (2,819)
Interest and investment income, net 365 1,244 1,785
Other, net (6,015) (2,961) (1,604 )
Total other (23,240) (20,200) (20,386)
Income before income taxes 100,946 85,356 105,723
Income tax provision (28,615) (26,645) (22,953)
Net income $ 72,331 $ 58,711  § 82,770
Weighted-average shares outstanding:
Basic 31,776 32,010 32,051
Diluted 32,010 32,278 32,465
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 2.28 $ 183 § 2.58
Diluted 2.26 1.82 2.55

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

46



CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments

(in thousands)

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on short-term investments arising

during period
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Total comprehensive income, net of tax

$

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
72,331 $ 58,711 $ 82,770
(7,196) 8,368 3,418

(19) 3) 14
(7,215) 8,365 3,432
65,116  $ 67,076  $ 86,202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE, January 1, 2019

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized gain on short-term
investments, net of tax
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Total comprehensive income
Repurchase of common stock
Issuance of common stock pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan
Issuance of restricted common stock
pursuant to stock-based compensation
plans
Cancellation of restricted common
stock issued pursuant to stock-based
compensation plans
Stock-based compensation expense
Exercise of Comcast stock warrants
Dividends
BALANCE, December 31, 2019

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized gain on short-term
investments, net of tax

Foreign currency translation
adjustments

Total comprehensive income
Repurchase of common stock
Issuance of common stock pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan
Issuance of restricted common stock
pursuant to stock-based compensation
plans

Cancellation of restricted common
stock issued pursuant to stock-based
compensation plans

Stock-based compensation expense
Dividends

BALANCE, December 31, 2020

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized gain on short-term
investments, net of tax
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Total comprehensive income
Repurchase of common stock
Issuance of common stock pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan
Issuance of restricted common stock
pursuant to stock-based compensation
plans
Cancellation of restricted common
stock issued pursuant to stock-based
compensation plans
Stock-based compensation expense
Dividends
Noncontrolling interest related to
business combination
BALANCE, December 31, 2021

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Shares of C Additional Other Total
Common Stock Common Stock Paid-in Treasury Comprehensive A lated N rolling Stockholders'
Outstanding Stock Warrants Capital Stock Income (Loss) Earnings Interest Equity
33,158 $ 693 $ 9,082 $ 441417 $ (842,360) $ (42,935) $ 795,127 $ = 361,024
- - - - - - 82,770 -
- - - - - 14 - -
- - - - - 3,418 - -
86,202
(693) - - (5,068 ) (25,457) - - - (30,525)
55 - - 2,227 - - - - 2,227
513 4 - “4) - - - - -
(142) 1) - 1 - - - - -
- - - 19,919 - - - - 19,919
- - (9,082) (3,829) - - - - (12,911)
- - - - - - (29,274) - (29,274)
32,891 696 - 454,663 (867,817) (39,503) 848,623 - 396,662
- - - - - - 58,711 -
- - - - - 3) - -
- - - - - 8,368 - -
67,076
(878) - - (11,859) (26,309) - - - (38,168)
68 - - 2,523 - - - - 2,523
672 7 - (7) - - - - -
0) ) - - - - ; ; 3)
- - - 25,237 - - - - 25,237
- - - - - - (30,932) - (30,932)
32,713 700 - 470,557 (894,126) (31,138) 876,402 - 422,395
- - - - - - 72,331 -
- - - - - (19) - -
- - - - - (7,196 ) - -
65,116
(863) - - (6,258) (35,980) - - - (42,238)
64 - - 2,610 - - - - 2,610
661 6 - ©) - - - - -
(80) @) - - - - - - (1)
- - - 21,400 - - - - 21,400
- - - - - - (32,673) - (32,673)
- - - - - - - 3,635 3,635
32495 $ 705§ - 8 488,303 § (930,106) $ (38,353) $ 916,060 $ 3,635 $ 440,244

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended
2021 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 72,331 $ 58,711 $ 82,770
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities-
Depreciation 24,835 22,926 21,422
Amortization 47,966 43,947 45,700
Amortization of original issue discount 3,021 2,983 2,819
Asset impairment 1,270 11,030 438
(Gain)/loss on short-term investments and other (294) (123) (364)
Loss on extinguishment of debt 132 - -
Loss on acquisition of controlling interest 6,180 - -
Deferred income taxes 2,388 (1,033) (77)
Stock-based compensation 21,400 25,237 19,919
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquired amounts:
Trade accounts receivable, net (10,702) 14,659 (4,015)
Other current and non-current assets and liabilities (1,527) (10,715) (17,762)
Income taxes payable/receivable (10,174) 5,405 4,771
Trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities (15,607) (5,752) (10,317)
Deferred revenue (996) 5,718 5,737
Net cash provided by operating activities 140,223 172,993 151,041
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of software, property and equipment (26,562) (29,397) (37,319)
Purchases of short-term investments (66,970) (81,824) (54,258)
Proceeds from sale/maturity of short-term investments 90,452 56,454 52,135
Acquisition of and investments in business, net of cash acquired (63,626) (11,491) (17,194)
Net cash used in investing activities (66,706) (66,258) (56,636)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 2,610 2,523 2,227
Payment of cash dividends (32,587) (31,056) (29,126)
Repurchase of common stock (42,253) (38,123) (30,918)
Exercise of common stock warrants - - (12,911)
Proceeds from long-term debt 150,000 - -
Payments on long-term debt (128,438) (10,313) (7,500)
Payments of deferred financing costs (3,000) - -
Settlement and merchant reserve activity 20,277 (15,144) 42,303
Net cash used in financing activities (33,391) (92,113) (35,925)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (2,954) 2,454 1,102
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 37,172 17,076 59,582
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period 354,730 337,654 278,072
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period $ 391,902 $ 354730 $ 337,654
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for-
Interest $ 12882  § 13,681 $ 16,064
Income taxes 36,690 22,431 18,358
Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 205,635 $ 188,699 $ 156,548
Settlement and merchant reserve assets 186,267 166,031 181,106
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 391,902 $ 354,730 $ 337,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General

CSG Systems International, Inc. (the “Company”, “CSG”, or forms of the pronoun “we”), a Delaware corporation, was formed in October 1994 and is based in
Denver, Colorado. We are a purpose-driven, SaaS platform company with revenue management and digital monetization, customer engagement, and payments
solutions serving a wide variety of industry verticals. Our cloud-first architecture and customer-centric approach help companies around the world acquire,
monetize, engage, and retain their B2B (business-to-business) and B2C (business-to-consumer) customers. Over the years, we have focused our research and
development (“R&D”) and acquisition investments on expanding our solution set to address the complex, transformative needs of our customers. We are a
member of the S&P SmallCap 600 and Russell 2000 indices.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements (“Financial Statements”) are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) in the United States of America (“U.S.”).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. Our Financial Statements include all of our accounts and our subsidiaries’ accounts. All material intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Translation of Foreign Currency. Our foreign subsidiaries use the local currency of the countries in which they operate as their functional currency. Their assets
and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenue, expenses, and cash flows are translated at the
average rates of exchange prevailing during the period. Foreign currency translation adjustments are included in comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity.
Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in the determination of net income.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Our Financial Statements. The preparation of our Financial Statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our Financial Statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The more critical accounting
estimates and related assumptions that may affect our financial position and results of operations are in the areas of: (i) revenue recognition; (ii) impairment
assessments of long-lived assets; (iii) income taxes; and (iv) loss contingencies.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts for the prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the December 31, 2021 presentation.

Beginning with the second quarter of 2021, we determined that settlement and merchant reserve assets consist of restricted cash and are now included within cash,
cash equivalents and restricted cash when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows (the “Statements of Cash Flows”). Historically, we presented the change in settlement and merchant reserve assets and liabilities as part of the changes in
operating assets and liabilities on the Statements of Cash Flows. Additionally, cash flows related to our settlement and merchant reserve liabilities have been
reclassified from cash flows from operating activities to cash flows from financing activities.

Prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. These changes have no impact on our previously reported consolidated
net income, total assets, including cash and cash equivalents, liabilities, and equity. In addition, these changes have no material impact on our previously reported
cash flows from operating activities.

Revenue Recognition. Our revenue from customer contracts is measured based on consideration specified in our contracts as discussed further below. We
recognize revenue for our products and services separately if there are distinct performance obligations. A product or service, or group of products or services, has
a distinct performance obligation if it is separately identifiable from other items in the context of the contract and if our customer can benefit from the product or
service on their own or with other resources that are readily available to that customer. We recognize revenue when we satisfy our performance obligations by
transferring control of a particular product or service, or group of products or services, to our customers, as described in more detail below. Taxes assessed on our
products and services based on governmental authorities at the time of invoicing are excluded from our revenue.
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SaaS and Related Solutions
Our SaaS and related solutions include: (i) revenue management platforms and various related ancillary services; (ii) our managed services offering in which we
operate software solutions (primarily our software solutions) on behalf of our customers; and (iii) SaaS payments platform.

We contract for our SaaS based solutions using long-term arrangements whose terms have typically ranged from three to five years. These arrangements consist of
a series of multiple services delivered daily or monthly, to include such things as: (i) revenue management platforms; (ii) related products and services (e.g., field
service management tools, consumer credit verifications, etc.); (iii) digital enablement and delivery functions; and (iv) customer statement invoice printing and
mailing services. The fees for these services typically are billed to our customers monthly based upon actual monthly volumes and/or usage of services (e.g., the
number of customer accounts maintained on our solutions, the number of transactions processed on our solutions, and/or the quantity and content of the monthly
statements and mailings processed through our solutions).

For SaaS based solution contracts, the total contract consideration (including impacts of discounts or incentives) is primarily variable dependent upon actual
monthly volumes and/or usage of services; however, these contracts can also include ancillary fixed consideration in the form of one-time, monthly, or annual fees.
Pricing of products and services in these contracts is generally at stand-alone selling price, with no allocation of value between the individual performance
obligations. In situations where we do an allocation, we determine stand-alone selling price based on established pricing and/or cost, plus an applicable margin.
Revenue is generally recognized based on activities performed over a series of daily or monthly periods.

We contract for managed services using long-term arrangements whose terms have typically ranged from three to five years. Under managed services agreements,
we operate software products (primarily our software solutions) on behalf of our customers: (i) out of a customer’s data center; (ii) out of a data center we own and
operate; or (iii) out of a third-party data center we contract with for such services. Managed services can also include us providing other services, such as
transitional services, fulfillment, remittance processing, operational consulting, back office, and end-user billing services.

For managed services contracts, the total contract consideration is typically a fixed monthly fee, but these contracts may also have variable fee components. The
fees for these services typically are billed to our customers on a monthly basis. Unless managed services are included with a software license contract (as
discussed further below), there is generally only one performance obligation and revenue is recognized for these arrangements on a ratable basis as the services are
performed.

Our contracts for SaaS payments platform solutions are generally month-to-month or fixed term with automatic renewals. Services provided under these
arrangements primarily include Automated Clearing House (“ACH”) transaction processing, credit/debit card processing, web-based and telephone payment
processing, and real-time check verification and authentication services. The fees for these services typically are billed on a monthly basis.

Our SaaS payments platform are comprised of one performance obligation. Revenue for these services are based primarily on a fee per transaction or a percentage
of the transaction principal and recognized as delivered over a series of daily service periods. Transaction fees collected from merchants are recognized as revenue
on a gross basis when we are the principal in completing the payment processing transaction. As a principal to the transaction, we control the service of processing
payments on our platform. We bear primary responsibility for the fulfillment of the payment service, contract directly with the merchant, and have full discretion in
determining the fee charged to our customers which is independent of the costs we incur when we utilize payment processors or other financial institutions to
perform services on our behalf. We therefore bear full margin risk when completing a payment processing transaction. Transaction fees paid to third-party
payment processors and other financial institutions are primarily comprised of interchange and other payment-related fees paid in conjunction with the delivery of
service to customers under our payments services contracts. These fees are recognized in cost of revenue.

Fees related to set-up or implementation activities for both SaaS and related solutions and managed services contracts are deferred and recognized ratably over the
related service period to which the activities relate.

Depending on the significance of variable consideration, number of products/services, complex pricing structures and long-term nature of these types of contracts,
the judgments and estimates made in this area could have a significant effect on the amount and timing of revenue recognized in any period.
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Software and Services

Our software and services revenue relates primarily to: (i) software license sales on either a perpetual or term license basis; and (ii) professional services to
implement the software. Our software and services contracts are often contracted in bundled arrangements that include not only the software license and related
implementation services, and may also include maintenance, managed services, and/or additional professional services.

For our software arrangements, total contract consideration is allocated between the separate performance obligations based on stand-alone selling prices for
software licenses, cost plus applicable margin for services and established pricing for maintenance. The initial sale of our software products generally requires
significant production, modification, or customization, such that the delivery of the software license and related professional services required to implement the
software represent one combined performance obligation that is satisfied over time based on hours worked (i.e., hours-based method). We are using hours worked
on the project, compared against expected hours to complete the project, as the measure to determine progress toward completion as we believe it is the most
appropriate metric to measure such progress. The software and services fees are generally fixed fees billed to our customers on a milestone or date basis.

The determination of the performance obligations and allocation of value for software license arrangements require significant judgment. We generally determine
stand-alone selling prices using pricing calculations (which include regional market factors) for our software license fees and maintenance, and cost-plus margins
for services. Additionally, our use of an hours-based method of accounting for software license and other professional services performance obligations that are
satisfied over time requires estimates of total project revenue and costs, along with the expected hours necessary to complete a project. Changes in estimates as a
result of additional information or experience on a project as work progresses are inherent characteristics of this method of revenue recognition as we are exposed
to business risks in completing these types of performance obligations. The estimation process to support our hours-based recognition method is more difficult for
projects of greater length and/or complexity. The judgments and estimates made for these types of obligations could: (i) have a significant effect on revenue
recognized in any period by changing the amount and/or the timing of the revenue recognized; and/or (ii) impact the expected profitability of a project, including
whether an overall loss on an arrangement has occurred. To mitigate the inherent risks in using this hours-based method, we track our current hours expended
against our estimates on a periodic basis and continually reevaluate the appropriateness of our estimates.

In certain instances, we sell software license volume upgrades, which provide our customers the right to use our software to process higher transaction volume
levels. In these instances, we analyze the contract to determine if the volume upgrade is a separate performance obligation and if so, we recognize the value
associated with the software license as revenue on the effective date of the volume upgrade.

A portion of our professional services revenue is contracted separately (e.g., business consulting services, etc.). Such contracts can either be on a fixed-price or
time-and-materials basis. Revenue from fixed-price professional service contracts is recognized using an estimated hours-based method, as these professional
services represent a performance obligation that is satisfied over time. Revenue from professional services contracts billed on a time-and-materials basis is
recognized as the services are performed.

Maintenance

Our maintenance revenue relates primarily to support of our software once it has been implemented and placed in service. Maintenance revenue is recognized
ratably over the software maintenance period as services are provided. Our maintenance consists primarily of customer and product support, technical updates (e.g.,
bug fixes, etc.), and unspecified upgrades or enhancements to our software products. If specified upgrades or enhancements are offered in a contract, which are
rare, they are accounted for as a separate performance obligation. Maintenance may be invoiced to our customers on a monthly, quarterly, or annual basis.

Transaction Price Allocated to the Remaining Performance Obligations
As of December 31, 2021, our aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations is approximately $2 billion, which is

made up of fixed fee consideration and guaranteed minimums expected to be recognized in the future related to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied). We expect to recognize approximately 70% of this amount by the end of 2024, with the remaining amount recognized by the end of 2028. We
have excluded from this amount variable consideration expected to be recognized in the future related to performance obligations that are unsatisfied. The majority
of our future revenue is related to our SaaS and related solutions customer contracts that includes variable consideration dependent upon a series of monthly
volumes and/or daily usage of services and have contractual terms ending from 2022 through 2028.



Disaggregation of Revenue
The nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of our revenue and how revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors is most appropriately depicted by

revenue type, geographic region, and customer vertical.

Revenue by type for 2021, 2020, and 2019 was as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020 2019
Revenue:
SaaS and related solutions $ 926,290 $ 880,822 $ 896,164
Software and services 72,818 63,239 52,364
Maintenance 47,379 46,472 48,282
Total revenue $ 1,046,487 $ 990,533 $ 996,810

We use the location of the customer as the basis of attributing revenue to geographic regions. Revenue by geographic region for 2021, 2020, and 2019, as a
percentage of our total revenue, was as follows:

2021 2020 2019
Anmericas (principally the U.S.) 85% 86 % 87 %
Europe, Middle East and Africa (principally Europe) 11% 10% 9%
Asia Pacific 4% 4% 4%
Total revenue 100 % 100 % 100 %

We generate our revenue primarily from the global communications markets; however, we serve an expanding group of customers in markets including retail,
financial services, healthcare, insurance, and government entities. Revenue by customer vertical for 2021, 2020, and 2019, as a percentage of our total revenue, was
as follows:

2021 2020 2019
Broadband/Cable/Satellite 57% 58% 58%
Telecommunications 19% 19% 19%
Other 24 % 23% 23%
Total revenue 100 % 100 % 100 %

Billed and Unbilled Accounts Receivable. Billed accounts receivable represents our unconditional rights to consideration. Once invoiced, our payment terms are
generally between 30-60 days. We rarely have contracts with financing arrangements. Unbilled accounts receivable represents our rights to consideration for work
completed but not billed. Unbilled accounts receivable is transferred to billed accounts receivable when the rights become unconditional which is generally at the
time of invoicing.

The following table rolls forward our unbilled accounts receivable from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2021 (in thousands):

Unbilled Receivables

Beginning Balance, January 1, 2020 $ 33,450
Recognized during the period 248,574
Reclassified to receivables (244,574)
Other 335

Ending Balance, December 31, 2020 37,785
Recognized during the period 252,661
Reclassified to receivables (254,482)
Other (162)

$ 35,802

Ending Balance, December 31, 2021
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Deferred Revenue. Deferred revenue represents consideration received from customers in advance of services being performed.
The following table rolls forward our deferred revenue from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2021 (in thousands):

Deferred Revenue

Beginning Balance, January 1, 2020 $ (63,646)
Revenue recognized that was included in deferred revenue at the beginning of the
period 40,811
Consideration received in advance of services performed net of revenue recognized
in the current period (46,719)
Other (78)
Ending Balance, December 31, 2020 (69,632)
Revenue recognized that was included in deferred revenue at the beginning of the
period 49,052
Consideration received in advance of services performed net of revenue recognized
in the current period (53,084)
Other 317
Ending Balance, December 31, 2021 $ (73,347)

Postage. We pass through to our customers the cost of postage that is incurred on behalf of those customers, and typically require an advance payment on expected
postage costs. These advance payments are included in customer deposits in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets (“Balance Sheets” or “Balance
Sheet”) and are classified as current liabilities regardless of the contract period. We net the cost of postage against the postage reimbursements for those customers
where we require advance deposits and include the net amount (which is not material) in SaaS and related solutions revenue.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less as of the date of purchase to be cash
equivalents. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, our cash equivalents consist primarily of institutional money market funds, commercial paper, and time deposits
held at major banks. For the cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies and/or located outside the U.S., we do not anticipate any material
amounts being unavailable for use in running our business, but may face limitations on moving cash out of certain foreign jurisdictions due to currency controls
and potential negative economic consequences.

Restricted Cash. Restricted cash includes cash that is legally or contractually restricted, as well as our settlement and merchant reserve assets (discussed below).
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, we had $1.4 million and $1.7 million, respectively, of restricted cash that serves to collateralize bank guarantees and
outstanding letters of credit included in cash and cash equivalents in our Balance Sheets.

Short-term Investments and Other Financial Instruments. Our financial instruments as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 include cash and cash equivalents, short-
term investments, settlement and merchant reserve assets and liabilities, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and debt. Due to their short maturities, the carrying
amounts of cash equivalents, settlement and merchant reserve assets and liabilities, accounts receivable, and accounts payable approximate their fair value.

Our short-term investments and certain cash equivalents are considered “available-for-sale” and are reported at fair value in our Balance Sheets, with unrealized
gains and losses, net of the related income tax effect, excluded from earnings and reported in a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Realized and unrealized
gains and losses were not material in any period presented.

Primarily all short-term investments held by us as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 have contractual maturities of less than two years from the time of acquisition.
Our short-term investments at December 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted almost entirely of fixed income securities. Proceeds from the sale/maturity of short-term
investments in 2021, 2020, and 2019 were $90.5 million, $56.5 million, and $52.1 million, respectively.
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The following table represents the fair value hierarchy based upon three levels of inputs, of which Levels 1 and 2 are considered observable and Level 3 is
unobservable, for our financial assets measured at fair value (in thousands):

December 31, 2021 December 31,2020
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total

Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $ 29,305 $ —  $ 29,305 § 33,535  § —  $ 33,535

Commercial paper — 1,000 1,000 — 15,746 15,746

Corporate debt securities — — — 1,351 1,351
Short-term investments:

Corporate debt securities — 24,352 24,352 — 38,672 38,672

U.S. government agency bonds — — — — 4,642 4,642

Asset-backed securities — 3,685 3,685 — 8,284 8,284
Total $ 29,305 $ 29,037 $ 58,342 $ 33,535 $ 68,695 $ 102,230

Valuation inputs used to measure the fair values of our money market funds were derived from quoted market prices. The fair values of all other financial
instruments are based upon pricing provided by third-party pricing services. These prices were derived from observable market inputs.

We have chosen not to record our debt at fair value, with changes recognized in earnings each reporting period. The following table indicates the carrying value
and estimated fair value of our debt as of the indicated periods (in thousands):

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
2021 Credit Agreement (carrying value including $ 148.125 $ 148.125 $ g _
current maturities) > >
2018 Credit Agreement (carrying value including o o
current maturities) 126,563 126,563
2016 Convertible debt (par value) 230,000 244,950 230,000 244,663

The fair value for our Credit Agreement was estimated using a discounted cash flow methodology, while the fair value for our convertible debt was estimated
based upon quoted market prices or recent sales activity, both of which are considered Level 2 inputs. See Note 5 for discussion regarding our debt.

Settlement and Merchant Reserve Assets and Liabilities. Settlement assets and settlement liabilities represent cash collected on behalf of merchants via payments
processing services which is held for an established holding period until settlement with the customer. The holding period is generally one to four business days
depending on the payment model and contractual terms with the customer. During the holding period, cash is held in trust with various major financial institutions
and a corresponding liability is recorded for the amounts owed to the customer. At any given time, there may be differences between the cash held in trust and the
corresponding liability due to the timing of operating-related cash transfers.

Merchant reserves represent deposits collected from merchants to mitigate our risk of loss due to nonperformance of settlement obligations initiated by those
merchants using our payments processing services, or non-payment by customers for services rendered by us. We perform a credit risk evaluation on each
customer based on multiple criteria, which provide the basis for the deposit amount required for each merchant. For the duration of our relationship with each
merchant, we hold their reserve deposits with major financial institutions. We hold these funds in separate accounts and are fully offset by corresponding
liabilities.

The following table summarizes our settlement and merchant reserve assets and liabilities as of the indicated periods (in thousands):

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Settlement assets/liabilities $ 171,505  $ 170,514  $ 149,785  § 148,818
Merchant reserve assets/liabilities 14,762 14,762 16,246 16,246
Total $ 186,267 $ 185,276  $ 166,031 $ 165,064
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Concentrations of Credit Risk. In the normal course of business, we are exposed to credit risk. The principal concentrations of credit risk relate to cash deposits,
cash equivalents, short-term investments, and accounts receivable. We regularly monitor credit risk exposures and take steps to mitigate the likelihood of these
exposures resulting in a loss. We hold our cash deposits, cash equivalents, and short-term investments with financial institutions we believe to be of sound financial
condition.

We generally do not require collateral or other security to support accounts receivable. We evaluate the credit worthiness of our customers in conjunction with our
revenue recognition processes, as well as through our ongoing collectability assessment processes for accounts receivable. We maintain an allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends, and other information. We use various judgments and
estimates in determining the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable. See Note 3 for additional details of our concentration of accounts
receivable.

The activity in our allowance for doubtful accounts receivable is as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020 2019
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,628 $ 3,735 § 3,115
Additions to expense 1,102 1,481 778
Write-offs (466) (1,532) (158)
Other (14) (56) —
Balance, end of year $ 4,250 $ 3,628 $ 3,735

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at cost (or at estimated fair value if acquired in a business combination) and are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives ranging from three to ten years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their economic life or the lease term.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes. Depreciation expense for all property and equipment is reflected
in our Consolidated Statements of Income ("'Income Statement" or "Income Statements") separately in the aggregate and is not included in the cost of revenue or
the other components of operating expenses.

Software. We expend substantial amounts on R&D, particularly for new solutions, and enhancements of existing products and services. For development of
software solutions that are to be licensed by us, we expense all costs related to the development of the software until technological feasibility is established. For
development of software to be used internally (e.g., cloud-based systems software), we expense all costs prior to the application development stage.

During 2021, 2020, and 2019, we expended $134.7 million, $122.8 million, and $128.0 million, respectively, on R&D projects. We did not capitalize any R&D
costs in 2021, 2020, and 2019, as the costs subject to capitalization during these periods were not material. We did not have any capitalized R&D costs included in
our December 31, 2021 and 2020 Balance Sheets.

Realizability of Long-Lived Assets. We evaluate our long-lived assets, other than goodwill, for possible impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. A long-lived asset is impaired if estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with
that asset are insufficient to recover the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. If deemed impaired, the long-lived asset is written down to its estimated fair value.

Goodwill. We evaluate our goodwill for impairment on an annual basis, as well as we may evaluate our goodwill on a more periodic basis (e.g., quarterly) if events
occur or circumstances change that could indicate a potential impairment may have occurred. Goodwill is considered impaired if the carrying value of the reporting
unit which includes the goodwill is greater than the estimated fair value of the reporting unit.

Contingencies. We accrue for a loss contingency when: (i) it is probable that an asset has been impaired, or a liability has been incurred; and (ii) the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. The determination of loss contingencies is subject to various judgments and estimates. We do not record the benefit from a gain
contingency until the benefit is realized.
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Earnings Per Common Share (“EPS”). Basic and diluted EPS amounts are presented on the face of our Income Statements.

The reconciliation of the basic and diluted EPS denominators related to the common shares is included in the following table (in thousands):

2021 2020 2019
Basic weighted-average common shares 31,776 32,010 32,051
Dilutive effect of restricted common stock 234 268 282
Dilutive effect of Stock Warrants - - 132
Diluted weighted-average common shares 32,010 32,278 32,465

The Convertible Notes have a dilutive effect only in those periods in which our average stock price exceeds the current effective conversion price (see Note 5).

The Stock Warrants have a dilutive effect only in those periods in which our average stock price exceeds the exercise price of $26.68 per warrant (under the
treasury stock method) and are not subject to performance vesting conditions (see Note 12).

Potentially dilutive common shares related to non-participating unvested restricted stock and Stock Warrants were excluded from the computation of diluted EPS,
as the effect was antidilutive, and were not material in any period presented.

Stock-Based Compensation. Stock-based compensation represents the cost related to stock-based awards granted to employees and non-employee directors. We
measure stock-based compensation cost at the grant date of the award, based on the estimated fair value of the award and recognize the cost (net of estimated
forfeitures) over the requisite service period.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method, income tax expense is recognized for the amount of taxes
payable or refundable for the current year. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between
the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect
of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Accounting Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Effective. In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-06, Accounting for Convertible Instruments and
Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity (“ASU 2020-06”), which simplifies the accounting for certain financial instruments with characteristics of liabilities and
equity, including convertible instruments and contracts in an entity’s own equity. ASU 2020-06 also amends the related Earnings Per Share guidance. ASU 2020-
06 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and can be adopted on either a fully retrospective or modified retrospective basis. We have
elected to adopt this ASU using the modified retrospective transition method in which an approximately $10 million cumulative-effect adjustment was made to our
January 1, 2022 retained earnings balance.

In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-08, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts
with Customers ("ASU 2021-08"), which requires an entity to recognize and measure contract assets and contract liabilities acquired in a business combination in
accordance with Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. ASU 2021-18 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, with early
adoption permitted. However, an entity that elects to early adopt is required to apply the guidance retrospectively to all business combinations that occurred since
the beginning of the annual period in which the new guidance was adopted. We elected to early adopt ASU 2021-08 as of October 1, 2021. The effects of adoption
on our Financial Statements were not material.
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3. Segment Reporting and Significant Concentration

Segment Information. We have evaluated how our chief operating decision maker has organized our company for purposes of making operating decisions and
assessing performance, and have concluded that as of December 31, 2021, there is one reportable segment.

Solutions and Services. Our solutions and services help companies around the world monetize and digitally enable the customer experience by accurately
capturing, managing, generating, and optimizing the interactions and revenue associated with their customers. We generate a substantial percentage of our revenue
from customers utilizing Advanced Convergent Platform (“ACP”), a private SaaS based platform, and related solutions (e.g., field force automation, analytics,
electronic bill presentment, ACH, etc.) to the North American cable and satellite markets. In addition, a smaller portion of our revenue is generated from our public
cloud, SaaS based revenue management and payments platform serving service providers globally. In addition, we license certain solutions (e.g., mediation,
partner management, rating, and charging) and provide our professional services to implement, configure, and maintain these solutions. These solutions are
sometimes provided under a managed service arrangement, where we assume long-term responsibility for delivering our solutions and related operations under a
defined scope and specified service levels.

Significant Customers. A large percentage of our revenue have been generated from our two largest customers, which are Charter Communications, Inc.
(“Charter”) and Comcast Corporation (“Comcast”).

Revenue from these customers represented the following percentages of our total revenue for the following years:
2021 2020 2019
Charter 21% 21% 20%
Comcast 21% 22% 23%

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the percentage of net billed accounts receivable balances attributable to these customers were as follows:

As of December 31,
2021 2020
Charter 23% 20%
Comcast 20% 19%

We expect to continue to generate a significant percentage of our future revenue from our significant customers. There are inherent risks whenever a large
percentage of total revenue is concentrated with a limited number of customers. Should a significant customer: (i) terminate or fail to renew their contracts with us,
in whole or in part for any reason; (ii) significantly reduce the number of customer accounts processed on our solutions, the price paid for our solutions and
services, or the scope of solutions and services that we provide; or (iii) experience significant financial or operating difficulties, it could have a material adverse
effect on our financial position and results of operations.

4. Long-Lived Assets

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment at December 31 consisted of the following (in thousands, except years):

Useful Lives

(Years) 2021 2020
Computer equipment 3-6 $ 85,501 § 87,289
Leasehold improvements 10 25,183 25,442
Operating equipment 3-8 68,583 67,097
Furniture and fixtures 8 5,557 7,004
184,824 186,832
Less - accumulated depreciation (111,244) (105,073)
Property and equipment, net $ 73,580 $ 81,759
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Goodwill. We do not have any intangible assets with indefinite lives other than goodwill. A rollforward of goodwill for 2020 and 2021 is as follows (in thousands):

January 1, 2020 balance $ 259,164
Goodwill acquired during the period 9,083
Adjustments related to prior acquisitions (60)
Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates 4,135

December 31, 2020 balance 272,322
Goodwill acquired during the period 50,550
Adjustments related to prior acquisitions (60)
Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates (1,482)

December 31, 2021 balance $ 321,330

Goodwill acquired during 2020 relates to the acquisition of Tekzenit, Inc. Goodwill acquired during 2021 primarily relates to the acquisitions of: (i) Tango
Telecom Limited; (ii) Kitewheel, LLC; (iii) Keydok, LLC; and (iv) DGIT Systems Pty Ltd, as well as the additional investment in MobileCard Holdings, LLC.
See Note 7 for discussion regarding these acquisitions.

Other Intangible Assets. Our other intangible assets subject to ongoing amortization consist of acquired customer contracts and software. Other intangible assets
as of December 31, 2021 include assets acquired in the Tango Telecom Limited, Kitewheel LLC, and DGIT Systems Pty Ltd business acquisitions (see Note 7).

Acquired Customer Contracts. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying values of our acquired customer contracts were as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Acquired customer contracts (1) $ 171,373 $ (114,166) $ 57,207 $ 153,790 $ (105,778) $ 48,012

The aggregate amortization related to acquired customer contracts included in our operations for 2021, 2020, and 2019 was as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020 2019
Acquired customer contracts (1) $ 9,240 $ 9,963 $ 10,374

(1)Acquired customer contracts represent assets acquired in our prior business acquisitions. Acquired customer contracts are amortized over their estimated
useful lives ranging from one to twenty years based on the approximate pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are expected to be
realized, with the amortization expense included as cost of revenue in our Income Statements.

The remaining weighted-average amortization period of the acquired customer contract as of December 31, 2021 was approximately 88 months. Based on the net
carrying value of these acquired customer contracts, the estimated amortization for each of the five succeeding fiscal years ending December 31 will be: 2022 —
$11.2 million; 2023 — $9.7 million; 2024 — $8.6 million; 2025 — $8.0 million; and 2026 — $6.0 million.

Software. Software consists of: (i) software and similar intellectual property rights from various business acquisitions; and (ii) internal use software. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying values of our software assets were as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Acquired software (2) $ 84,633 § (72,675) $ 11,958 $ 75602 $ (70242) $ 5,360
Internal use software (3) 97,407 (79,608) 17,799 90,687 (69,594) 21,093
Total software $ 182,040 $ (152,283) § 29,757 $§ 166,289 $ (139,836) $ 26,453

59



The aggregate amortization related to software included in our operations for 2021, 2020, and 2019 was as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020 2019
Acquired software amortization (2) $ 2,405 $ 1,853  $ 2,229
Internal use software amortization (3) 13,316 13,216 10,641
Total software amortization $ 15,721 $ 15,069 $ 12,870

(2)Acquired software represents software intangible assets acquired in our prior business acquisitions, which are amortized over their estimated useful lives
ranging from four to eight years. The amortization of acquired software is reflected as a cost of revenue in our Income Statements.

(3)Internal use software represents: (i) third-party software licenses; and (ii) the internal and external costs related to the implementation of the third-party
software licenses. Internal use software is amortized over its estimated useful life ranging from one to ten years.

The remaining weighted-average amortization period of the software intangible assets as of December 31, 2021 was approximately 37 months. Based on the net
carrying value of these intangible assets, the estimated amortization for each of the five succeeding fiscal years ending December 31 will be: 2022 — $12.5 million;
2023 — $8.8 million; 2024 — $4.1 million; 2025 — $2.8 million; and 2026 — $1.6 million.

Customer Contract Costs. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying values of our customer contract cost assets, related to those contracts with a
contractual term greater than one year, were as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Customer contract incentives (4) $ 4,627 $ (3,007) $ 1,620 $ 4,626 $ (2,320) $ 2,306
Capitalized costs (5) 63,323 (25,136) 38,187 70,214 (33,104) 37,110
Capitalized commission fees (6) 11,078 (4,267) 6,811 12,291 (4,469) 7,822
Total customer contract costs $ 79,028 $ (32,410) $ 46,618 $ 87,131 $ (39,893) $§ 47,238

During 2020, we recorded an impairment charge of $10.3 million for the write-off of capitalized customer contract costs related to a discontinued project
implementation. This non-cash impairment charge is primarily included in cost of revenue in our Income Statement.

The aggregate amortization related to our customer contract costs included in our operations for 2021, 2020, and 2019 was as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020 2019
Customer contract incentives amortization (4) $ 687 $ 708 $ 6,018
Capitalized costs amortization (5) 17,955 13,803 12,625
Capitalized commission fees amortization (6) 2,576 2,679 2,136
Total customer contract costs amortization $ 21,218 $ 17,190 $ 20,779

(4)Customer contract incentives consist principally of incentives provided to new or existing customers to convert their customer accounts to, or retain their
customer’s account on, our outsourced solutions and are amortized ratably over the contract period to include renewal periods, if applicable, which as of
December 31, 2021, have termination dates that range from 2024 to 2026. The amortization of customer contract incentives is reflected as a reduction of
revenue in our Income Statements.
(5)Capitalized costs are related to customer conversion/set-up activities and direct material costs to fulfill long-term revenue management platform and
related solutions and managed services arrangements. These costs are amortized over the contract period based on the transfer of goods or services to
which the assets relate, which as of December 31, 2021, range from 2022 to 2028, and are included in cost of revenue in our Income Statements.
(6)Capitalized commission fees are incremental commissions paid as a result of obtaining a customer contract. These fees are amortized over the contract
period based on the transfer of goods or services to which the assets relate, which as of December 31, 2021, range from 2022 to 2027, and are included in
selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses in our Income Statements. Incremental commission fees incurred as a result of obtaining a
customer contract are expensed when incurred if the amortization period of the asset that we otherwise would have recognized is one year or less.
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5. Debt
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, our long-term debt was as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
2021 Credit Agreement:
2021 Term loan, due September 2026, interest at adjusted LIBOR plus 1.375%
(combined rate of 1.60% at December 31, 2021) $ 148,125  § -
Less — deferred financing costs (3,406) -
2021 Term Loan, net of unamortized discounts 144,719 -
$450 million revolving loan facility, due September 2026, interest at adjusted LIBOR
plus applicable margin - -
2018 Credit Agreement:
2018 Term loan, due March 2023, interest at adjusted LIBOR plus 1.5%
(combined rate of 1.75% at December 31, 2020) - 126,563
Less — deferred financing costs - (1,155)
2018 Term Loan, net of unamortized discounts - 125,408
$200 million revolving loan facility, due March 2023, interest at adjusted LIBOR plus
applicable margin - -
2016 Convertible Notes.:
2016 Convertible Notes — Senior convertible notes; due March 15, 2036; cash interest
at 4.25% 230,000 230,000
Less — unamortized original issue discount - (3,021)
Less — deferred financing costs - (1,170)
2016 Convertible Notes, net of unamortized discounts 230,000 225,809
Total debt, net of unamortized discounts 374,719 351,217
Current portion of long-term debt, net of unamortized discounts (237,500) (14,063)
Long-term debt, net of unamortized discounts $ 137,219  $ 337,154

2021 Credit Agreement. In September 2021, we entered into a new $600 million credit agreement (the “2021 Credit Agreement”) with a consortium of banks to
replace our $350 million credit agreement (“2018 Credit Agreement”).

The 2021 Credit Agreement provides borrowings in the form of: (i) a $150 million aggregate principal five-year term loan (the “2021 Term Loan”); and (ii) a $450
million aggregate principal five-year revolving loan facility (the “2021 Revolver”). With the $150 million proceeds from the 2021 Term Loan, we repaid the
outstanding $120 million balance of the term loan under the 2018 Credit Agreement, resulting in a net increase of available cash by $30 million, a portion of which
we used to pay certain fees and expenses in connection with the refinancing, and the remainder of which will be used for general corporate purposes.

The interest rates under the 2021 Credit Agreement are based upon our choice of an adjusted LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin of 1.375% - 2.125%, or an
alternate base rate (“ABR”) plus an applicable margin of 0.375% - 1.125%, with the applicable margin, depending on our then-net secured total leverage ratio. We
will pay a commitment fee of 0.150% - 0.325% of the average daily unused amount of the 2021 Revolver, with the commitment fee rate also dependent upon our
then-net secured total leverage ratio. The 2021 Credit Agreement includes LIBOR transition language in which we can elect an ABR, a Eurodollar rate, an
alternate currency term rate, or an alternate currency daily rate.

The 2021 Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative, negative, and financial covenants that places limits on our ability to: (i) incur additional indebtedness;
(i1) create liens on its property; (iii) make investments; (iv) enter into mergers and consolidations; (v) sell assets; (vi) declare dividends or repurchase shares; (vii)
engage in certain transactions with affiliates; (viii) prepay certain indebtedness; and (ix) issue capital stock of subsidiaries. We must also meet certain financial
covenants to include: (i) a maximum total leverage ratio; (ii) a maximum first-lien leverage ratio; and (iii) a minimum interest coverage ratio. In conjunction with
the 2021 Credit Agreement, we entered into a security agreement in favor of Bank of America N.A, as collateral agent (the “Security Agreement”). Under the
Security Agreement and 2021 Credit Agreement, certain of our domestic subsidiaries have guaranteed its obligations, and have pledged substantially all of our
assets to secure the obligations under the 2021 Credit Agreement and such guarantees.
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During 2021, we made $8.4 million of principal repayments on our 2021 and 2018 Term Loans. As of December 31, 2021, our interest rate on the 2021 Term
Loan is 1.60% (adjusted LIBOR plus 1.375% per annum), effective through March 31, 2022, and our commitment fee on the 2021 Revolver is 0.15%. As of
December 31, 2021, we had no borrowing outstanding on our 2021 Revolver and had the entire $450.0 million available to us.

In conjunction with the closing of the 2021 Credit Agreement, we incurred financing costs of $3.0 million. When combined with the remaining deferred financing
costs of the 2018 Credit Agreement, financing costs of $3.7 million have been deferred and are being amortized to interest expense using the effective interest
method over the related term of the 2021 Credit Agreement. Additionally, as certain lenders from the 2018 Credit Agreement chose not to participate in the 2021
Credit Agreement syndication group, we wrote-off $0.1 million of unamortized debt issuance costs and recognized a loss on the extinguishment of the 2018 Credit
Agreement.

2016 Convertible Notes. In March 2016, we completed an offering of $230 million of 4.25% senior convertible notes due March 15, 2036 (the “2016 Convertible
Notes”) to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The 2016 Convertible Notes are unsecured
obligations and pay 4.25% annual cash interest, payable semiannually in arrears on March 15 and September 15 of each year.

The 2016 Convertible Notes are convertible at the option of the note holders upon the satisfaction of specified conditions and during certain periods. During the
period from, and including, December 15, 2021 to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding March 15, 2022, holders may convert all or any
portion of their 2016 Convertible Notes at the conversion rate then in effect at any time regardless of these conditions. As a result, the net carrying value of the
2016 Convertible Notes of $230.0 million has been classified as a current liability in our Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2021. For the 2016 Convertible Notes
presented during this time frame, the settlement amount will be equal to the sum of the daily settlement amounts for each of the following 40 consecutive trading
days during the related observation period (January 12, 2022 - March 10, 2022).

Under the original terms of the 2016 Convertible Notes, we adjust the conversion rate for any quarterly dividends exceeding $0.185 per share. As of December 31,
2021, the conversion rate was 17.7621 shares of our common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the 2016 Convertible Notes, which is equivalent to an initial
conversion price of $56.30 per share of our common stock.

Under the original terms of the 2016 Convertible Notes Indenture (the “2016 Notes Indenture”), we can settle conversions of the 2016 Convertible Notes by paying
or delivering, as the case may be, cash, shares of our common stock, or a combination thereof, at our election. In November 2021, we entered into the First
Supplemental Indenture to the 2016 Notes Indenture, in which we made an irrevocable election to settle the par amount in cash. On December 15, 2021, we
notified holders of the 2016 Convertible Notes that we elected a cash settlement method for any conversions of the 2016 Convertible Notes during the period of
December 15, 2021 to March 14, 2022.

On December 27, 2021, we notified holders of the 2016 Convertible Notes that we had elected to redeem all of the outstanding notes on March 15, 2022, ata
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount. Holders may still convert their 2016 Convertible Notes at any time prior to the close of business on March 14,
2022.

The 2016 Notes Indenture includes customary terms and covenants, including certain events of default after which the 2016 Convertible Notes may be due and
payable immediately. The 2016 Notes Indenture contains customary affirmative covenants, including compliance with terms of certain other indebtedness of the
Company over a defined threshold amount.

The original issue discount (“OID”) related to the 2016 Convertible Notes was amortized to interest expense through December 15, 2021, the first date the 2016
Convertible Notes could be put back to us by the holders without conditions.

Estimated Maturities on Long-Term Debt. As of December 31, 2021, the maturities of our long-term debt, based upon: (i) the mandatory repayment schedule for
the 2021 Term Loan; and (ii) the settlement date of the 2016 Convertible Notes, was as follows (in thousands):

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
2021 Term Loan $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 118,125
2016 Convertible Notes 230,000 — — — —
Total long-term debt repayments $ 237,500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 118,125
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Deferred Financing Costs. As of December 31, 2021, net deferred financing costs related to the 2021 Credit Agreement were $3.4 million and are being amortized
to interest expense over the related term of the 2021 Credit Agreement (through September 2026). The net deferred financing costs are presented as a reduction
from the carrying amount of the corresponding debt liability in our Balance Sheets. Interest expense for 2021, 2020, and 2019 includes amortization of deferred
financing costs of $1.9 million, $1.9 million, and $1.8 million, respectively. The weighted-average interest rate on our debt borrowings, including amortization of
OID, amortization of deferred financing costs, and commitment fees on the revolving loan facility, for 2021, 2020, and 2019, was approximately 5%, 5%, and 6%,
respectively.

6. Leases

We have operating leases for: (i) real estate which includes office space and our statement production facilities; (ii) our outsourced data center environment, as
discussed further in Note 11; and (iii) operating equipment. Our leases have remaining terms of up to nine years, some of which include options to extend the
leases for up to an additional ten years. For leases commencing prior to 2019, we used the noncancelable term to calculate the related right-of-use asset and
corresponding lease liability. The exercise of lease renewal options is at our sole discretion. Additionally, certain of our leases include payments that are adjusted
periodically for inflation.

We have made an accounting policy election not to recognize on our Balance Sheets, leases with an initial term of twelve months or less, for any class of
underlying asset. We have also made an election for real estate leases beginning in 2019 and later, not to separate the lease and non-lease components, but rather
account for the entire arrangement as a single lease component (a practical expedient allowed under ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“ASC 842”)). For our
outsourced data center environment agreement, we have concluded that there are lease and non-lease components, and have allocated the consideration in the
agreement on a relative stand-alone price basis. Due to the significant assumptions and judgements required in accounting for leases (to include whether a contract
contains a lease, the allocation of the consideration, and the determination of the discount rate), the judgements and estimates made could have a significant effect
on the amount of assets and liabilities recognized.

We sublease certain of our leased real estate to third parties. These subleases have remaining lease terms of up to seven years and certain subleases have renewal
terms that can extend the lease for up to an additional two years.

The components of lease expense were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020
Operating lease expense $ 26,131 $ 26,360
Variable lease expense 4,530 4,518
Short-term lease expense 582 625
Sublease income (2,596) (2,066)
Total net lease expense $ 28,647 $ 29,437

Other information related to leases was as follows (in thousands, except term and discount rate):

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020
Supplemental Cash Flows Information:
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of operating
lease liabilities $ 23,272 $ 21,130
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease
liabilities 3,909 37,987
Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 59 months 69 months
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 3.30% 3.62%
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable leases as of December 31, 2021 were as follows (in thousands):

2022 $ 25,483
2023 22,338
2024 20,925
2025 14,877
2026 5,206
Thereafter 12,231
Total future minimum lease payments (1) 101,060
Less: Interest (2) (7,722)
Total $ 93,338
Current operating lease liabilities $ 23,270
Non-current operating lease liabilities 70,068
Total $ 93,338

(1) For leases commencing prior to 2019, minimum lease payments exclude payments for real estate taxes and non-lease components.
(2) We use our functional currency adjusted incremental borrowing rate for the discount rate.

As of December 31, 2021, we have two operating leases for office space that have not yet commenced of approximately $13.6 million. These operating leases will
commence during 2022 with lease terms through 2029 and 2033, respectively.

7. Acquisitions

Forte Payment Systems, Inc. On October 1, 2018, we acquired Forte Payment Systems (“Forte”), a leading provider of advanced payment solutions, for a purchase
price of approximately $93 million (approximately $85 million, excluding cash acquired). This acquisition accelerates our ability to offer a comprehensive suite of
next generation payments solutions that enables our customers to provide a differentiated customer experience while also strengthening our position in the revenue
management and payments sector and grow our footprint into new verticals. The purchase agreement included provisions for $18.8 million of potential future
earn-out payments. The earn-out payments were tied to performance-based goals and a defined service period by the eligible recipients and were being accounted
for as post-acquisition compensation. In 2021, a recipient notified us they would be voluntarily resigning during the year. Under the terms of the earn-out
provisions, the entire earn-out terminated upon exit of the recipient. As a result, in 2021, we reversed $2.4 million that had been accrued related to the potential
earn-out payments, and the earn-out was terminated.

Tekzenit, Inc. On January 2, 2020, we acquired Tekzenit, Inc. (“Tekzenit”) for a purchase price of approximately $10 million. This acquisition allows us to
accelerate our go-to-market approach serving customers who are focused on improving their customers’ experience while transforming their business. The
purchase agreement includes provisions for additional purchase price (‘“Provisional Purchase Price”) payments in the form of earn-out and qualified sales payments
for up to $10 million over a three-year measurement period upon meeting certain financial and sales criteria. Of the Provisional Purchase Price amount, $6 million
is considered contingent purchase price payments, of which $1.5 million was accrued upon acquisition. The remaining $4 million is tied to certain financial and
sales criteria over a defined service period by the eligible recipients and is therefore accounted for as post-acquisition compensation. As of December 31, 2021, we
have not accrued any amounts related to the post-acquisition compensation payments due to the uncertainty of payment.

Tango Telecom Limited. On May 5, 2021, we acquired Tango Telecom Limited (“Tango”), a leading supplier of convergent policy control and messaging
solutions headquartered in Limerick, Ireland. We acquired 100% of the equity of Tango for a purchase price of approximately $13 million, or approximately $11
million, net of cash acquired. This acquisition will allow us to deliver digital monetization solutions to our customers and allow our customers to more effectively
manage voice and data transactions. Coupled with our charging and digital monetization capabilities, we possess an end-to-end solution for converged voice and
data services across 3G, 4G, and 5G networks.

As of December 31, 2021, the purchase accounting for the Tango acquisition was complete. We recorded acquired customer contracts of $7.0 million, acquired
trade accounts receivable of $3.4 million, acquired software of $2.0 million, and goodwill of $1.5 million and liabilities assumed primarily included deferred
revenue of $1.5 million.
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Kitewheel, LLC. On July 1, 2021, we acquired Kitewheel, LLC ("Kitewheel"), a leading provider for customer journey orchestration and analytics, headquartered
in Boston, Massachusetts. We acquired 100% of the equity of Kitewheel for a purchase price of $40.0 million, with $34.0 million paid upon close and the
remaining $6.0 million to be paid in equal annual amounts over the next three years. This acquisition will allow us to expand our customer engagement business,
providing real-time, meaningful end-to-end customer experiences for leading brands.

As of December 31, 2021, the purchase accounting for the Kitewheel acquisition was complete. We recorded goodwill of $30.8 million, acquired customer
contracts of $6.6 million, acquired trade accounts receivable of $3.1 million, and acquired software of $3.2 million, and liabilities assumed primarily included
deferred revenue of $3.5 million.

MobileCard Holdings, LLC. In 2018, we invested in MobileCard Holdings, LLC (“MobileCard”), a mobile money fintech payment company that enables omni-
channel digital payments and financial inclusion in Latin America. As of June 30, 2021, we held a 15% noncontrolling equity interest with a carrying value of
approximately $8 million included in other non-current assets in our Balance Sheet. In July 2021, we purchased additional LLC units from a third-party for
approximately $4 million and contributed cash of approximately $2 million. As a result of these transactions, we have a 64% controlling interest in the company.
Beginning in the third quarter of 2021, the results of MobileCard are consolidated in our results of operations. We preliminarily recorded goodwill of $9.6 million
and are in the process of reviewing the valuation analysis and calculations necessary to finalize the required purchase price allocations.

Upon obtaining control of MobileCard, the fair value of our pre-exiting equity investment was remeasured resulting in a $6.2 million non-cash loss as of the
acquisition date, which is reflected in other income (expense) on our Income Statement. The fair value was based upon transaction price as it best represented what
a market participant would be willing to pay for the LLC units. The non-controlling interest of $3.6 million is recorded in total stockholders' equity. We will
record 100% of the profits and losses until the cumulative losses have been recovered. Profits will then be allocated based on equity sharing ratios.

Keydok, LLC. On September 14, 2021, we acquired Keydok, LLC (“Keydok™), a digital identity and document management platform provider, headquartered in
Mexico. We acquired 100% of the equity of Keydok for a purchase price of $1.0 million, which includes provisions for up to $18.0 million of potential future
earn-out payments. The earn-out payments are tied to performance-based goals and a defined service period by the eligible recipients and are accounted for as
post-acquisition compensation. The earn-out period is through September 30, 2025. We have recorded goodwill of $1.0 million, however, are in the process of
obtaining the necessary information to finalize the required purchase price allocations. As of December 31, 2021, we have not accrued any amounts related to the
potential earn-out payments due to the uncertainty of payment.

DGIT Systems Pty Ltd. On October 4, 2021, we acquired DGIT Systems Pty Ltd ("DGIT"), a provider of configure, price and quote (CPQ), and order management
solutions for the telecommunications industry. We acquired 100% of the equity of DGIT for a purchase price of approximately $16 million, approximately $14
million paid upon close and the remaining escrowed funds of approximately $2 million to be paid over the next four years, subject to certain reductions, as
applicable. This acquisition includes provisions for up to approximately $13 million of potential future earn-out payments. The earn-out payments are tied to
performance-based goals and a defined service period by the eligible recipients and are accounted for as post-acquisition compensation, as applicable. The earn-out
period is through September 30, 2025. As of December 31, 2021, we have accrued $0.3 million related to the potential earn-out payments.

The preliminary estimated fair values of assets acquired primarily include goodwill of $7.5 million, acquired customer contracts of $5.1 million, and acquired
software of $3.6 million. The estimated fair values are considered provisional and are based on the information that was available as of the acquisition date. Thus,
the provisional measurements of fair value set forth above are subject to change. Such changes are not expected to be significant. We expect to finalize the
valuation and complete the purchase price allocation as soon as practicable but not later than one year from the acquisition date.
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8. Restructuring and Reorganization Charges

Restructuring and reorganization charges are expenses that generally result from cost reduction initiatives and/or significant changes to our business, to include
such things as involuntary employee terminations, changes in management structure or skillset, divestitures of businesses, facility consolidations and
abandonments, modifications of leases, impairment of acquired intangible assets, and fundamental reorganizations impacting operational focus and direction. The
following are the key restructuring and reorganizational activities we incurred over the last three years that have impacted our results from operations:

During 2021 we implemented the following restructuring and reorganizational activities:

*We reduced our workforce by approximately 100 employees, primarily in North America, as a result of organizational changes and efficiencies. As a result,
we incurred restructuring charges related to involuntary terminations of $3.4 million

*We modified one of our real estate leases resulting in an earlier termination date. As a result, we incurred restructuring charges related to the accelerated
depreciation of furniture and fixtures and leasehold improvements of $1.2 million.

During 2020 we implemented the following restructuring and reorganizational activities:

*We reduced our workforce by approximately 80 employees, primarily in North America, as a result of organizational changes and efficiencies. As a result,
we incurred restructuring charges related to involuntary terminations of $4.2 million

During 2019 we implemented the following restructuring and reorganizational activities:

*We reduced our workforce by approximately 70 employees, primarily in North America, as a result of organizational changes and efficiencies. As a result,
we incurred restructuring charges related to involuntary terminations of $2.5 million.

The activities discussed above resulted in total charges for 2021, 2020, and 2019 of $4.9 million, $5.3 million, and $4.8 million, respectively, which have been
reflected as a separate line item in our Income Statements.

The activity in the business restructuring and reorganization reserves during 2021, 2020, and 2019 is as follows (in thousands):

Termination Facilities
Benefits Abandonment Other Total
January 1, 2019, balance $ 1,402  $ 2,934 $ - 8 4,336
Charged to expense during period 2,499 - 2,335 4,834
Cash payments (3,551) - (1,987) (5,538)
Adjustment for asset impairment - - (438) (438)
Adjustment for adoption of ASC 842 (1) - (2,934) - (2,934)
Other 472 - 90 562
December 31, 2019, balance 822 - - 822
Charged to expense during period 4,152 - 1,176 5,328
Cash payments (4,042) - (504) (4,546)
Adjustment for asset impairment - - (672) (672)
Other 1 - - 1
December 31, 2020, balance 933 - - 933
Charged to expense during period 3,419 - 1,451 4,870
Cash payments (3,516) - 210 (3,306)
Adjustment for asset impairment - - (415) (415)
Other (2) (161) - (1,246) (1,407)
December 31, 2021, balance $ 675 % -3 - 3 675

(1)With the adoption of ASC 842 on January 1, 2019, the facilities abandonment liabilities of $2.9 million were offset against our initial lease right-of-use
assets on our Balance Sheet.

(2)As noted above, during 2021 we modified a real estate lease resulting in an earlier termination date. As a result, we recorded accelerated depreciation
expense of furniture and fixtures and leasehold improvements of $1.2 million.

As of December 31, 2021, $0.7 million of the business restructuring and reorganization reserves were included in current liabilities.
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9. Income Taxes

Income Tax Provision. The components of net income before income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Domestic

India

Foreign other
Total

The income tax provision consists of the following (in thousands):

Current:
Federal
State
India
Foreign other

Deferred:
Federal
State
India
Foreign other

Total income tax provision

2021 2020 2019
$ 98261 $ 77,721 $ 93,510
5,873 6,245 4,769
(3,188) 1,390 7,444
$ 100,946  $ 85356 $ 105,723
2021 2020 2019
$ 17,012 $ 17,760 $ 16,616
5,835 5,373 2,910
959 1,788 1,004
2,443 2,990 2,515
26,249 27911 23,045
2,294 (497) (1,943)
344 (1,031) 624
368 (387) 36
(640) 649 1,191
2,366 (1,266) 92)
$ 28615 $ 26,645 $ 22,953

The effective tax rate in India of 22.6%, 22.4% and 21.8% in 2021, 2020 and 2019 respectively, differs from the statutory rate of approximately 29% due primarily
to certain operations occurring within a Special Economic Zone (“SEZ”). Under the terms of SEZ, CSG qualifies for a reduced income tax rate on operations

within the SEZ for a period of up to 10 years, beginning in 2018.

The difference between our income tax provision computed at the statutory Federal income tax rate and our financial statement income tax is summarized as

follows (in thousands):

Provision at Federal rate of 21%
State income taxes, net of Federal impact
Research and experimentation credits
Stock award vesting
Tax uncertainties
Section 162(m) compensation limitation
Foreign rate differential
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets
Withholding tax
Other impact of foreign operations
Statutory rate change
Other

Total income tax provision

2021 2020 2019
$ 21,199 $ 17,925 $ 22,202
4,882 3,430 2,792
(2,062) (2,705) (3,314)
(538) (540) (3,661)
69 (403) (56)
1,610 4,494 978
592 462 930
1,427 1,002 (495)
2,305 2,572 2,408
(468) 621 227
(299) 71 (10)
(102) (284) 952
$ 28,615 $ 26,645 $ 22,953

We have undistributed earnings of approximately $60 million from certain foreign subsidiaries. We intend to indefinitely reinvest these foreign earnings, therefore,
a provision has not been made for foreign withholding taxes that might be payable upon remittance of such earnings. Determination of the amount of unrecognized
deferred tax liability on unremitted foreign earnings is not practicable because of the complexities of the hypothetical calculation.
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Deferred Income Taxes. Net deferred income tax assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020
Deferred income tax assets $ 56,065 $ 59,895
Deferred income tax liabilities (25,250) (33,099)
Valuation allowance (29,983) (21,700)
Net deferred income tax assets $ 832 § 5,096

The components of our net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020
Net deferred income tax assets:

Accrued expenses and reserves $ 9,470 $ 12,587
Stock-based compensation 3,807 3,285
Software (1,435) (1,532)
Client contracts and related intangibles (5,993) (5,199)
Goodwill (11,563) (9,109)
Net operating loss carryforwards 31,548 26,893
Property and equipment (6,136) (8,816)
Deferred revenue 3,578 4,020
State taxes 2,020 1,804
Contingent payments (123) (1,017)
Foreign exchange gain/loss 1,064 1,406
Operating lease right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 1,768 1,962
Unrecognized tax benefit 522 446
Credits and incentives 951 612
Other 1,337 (546)

Total deferred income tax assets 30,815 26,796
Less: valuation allowance (29,983) (21,700)

Net deferred income tax assets $ 832 $ 5,096
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We regularly assess the likelihood of the future realization of our deferred income tax assets. To the extent we believe that it is more likely than not that a deferred
income tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is established. As of December 31, 2021, we believe we will generate sufficient taxable income in the
future such that we will realize 100% of the benefit of our U.S. Federal deferred income tax assets, thus no valuation allowance has been established. As of
December 31, 2021, we have deferred income tax assets net of federal benefit related to state and foreign income tax jurisdictions of $4.0 million and $36.7
million, respectively, and have established valuation allowances against those state and foreign income tax deferred income tax assets of $1.8 million and $28.2
million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, we have an acquired U.S. Federal net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforward of approximately $18 million and $24 million,
respectively, which will begin to expire in 2024 and can be utilized through 2033. The acquired U.S. Federal NOL carryforward is attributable to the pre-
acquisition periods of acquired businesses. The annual utilization of this U.S. Federal NOL carryforward is limited pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. In addition, as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, we have: (i) state NOL carryforwards of approximately $41 million and $49 million,
respectively, which will expire beginning in 2022 with a portion of the losses available over an indefinite period of time; and (ii) foreign subsidiary NOL
carryforwards of approximately $116 million and $107 million, respectively, which will expire beginning in 2024, with a portion of the losses available over an

indefinite period of time.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. We are required to estimate our income tax liability in each jurisdiction in which we operate, including U.S. Federal,
state, and foreign income tax jurisdictions. Various judgments and estimates are required in evaluating our tax positions and determining our provisions for income
taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate income tax determination may be uncertain. In addition, we may be subject to
examination of our income tax returns by various foreign, federal, state, or local tax authorities, which could result in adverse outcomes. For these reasons, we
establish a liability associated with unrecognized tax benefits based on estimates of whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This liability is adjusted
based upon changing facts and circumstances, such as the closing of a tax audit, the expiration of a statute of limitations or the refinement of an estimate.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of our liability for unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

2021 2020 2019
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,393 $ 1,540 $ 1,668
Additions related to prior acquisitions 1,508 160 —
Lapse of statute of limitations (151) (313) (420)
Additions for tax positions of prior years 36 111 322
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (62) (105) (30)
Additions for tax positions of current year 205 — —
Balance, end of year $ 2,929 $ 1,393  $ 1,540

We recognize interest and penalty expense associated with our liability for unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense in our Income
Statements. In addition to the $2.9 million, $1.4 million, and $1.5 million of liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019, we
had $0.7 million, $0.6 million, and $0.6 million, respectively of income tax-related accrued interest, net of any federal benefit of deduction. If recognized, the $2.9
million of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2021, would favorably impact our effective tax rate in future periods.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction, various U.S. state and local jurisdictions, and many foreign jurisdictions. The U.S., U.K., India, and
Australia are the primary taxing jurisdictions in which we operate. The years open for audit vary depending on the taxing jurisdiction. We estimate that it is
reasonably possible that the amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by up to $0.6 million over the next twelve months due to completion of audits
and the expiration of statute of limitations.
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10. Employee Retirement Benefit Plans

We sponsor a defined contribution plan covering substantially all of our U.S.-based employees. Participants may contribute up to 100% of their eligible pay,
subject to certain limitations, as pretax, salary deferral contributions. We make certain matching, and at our discretion, non-elective employer contributions to the
plan. All contributions are subject to certain IRS limitations. The expense related to these contributions for 2021, 2020, and 2019 was $12.4 million, $12.1 million,
and $11.3 million, respectively. We also have defined contribution-type plans for certain of our non-U.S.-based employees. The total contributions made to these
plans in 2021, 2020, and 2019 were $6.1 million, $4.8 million, and $4.1 million, respectively.

11. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies

Service Agreements. We have an agreement with Ensono, Inc. (“Ensono”) to provide us outsourced computing services through September 30, 2025. We
outsource the computer processing and related services required for the operation of our ACP platform. Our ACP proprietary software and other software
applications are run in an outsourced data center environment in order to obtain the necessary computer processing capacity and other computer support services
without us having to make the substantial capital and infrastructure investments that would be necessary for us to provide these services internally. Our customers
are connected to the outsourced data center environment through a combination of private and commercially provided networks. Our ACP platform is generally
considered to be mission critical customer management systems by our customers. As a result, we are highly dependent upon Ensono for system availability,
security, and response time.

Guarantees. In the ordinary course of business, we may provide guarantees in the form of bid bonds, performance bonds, or standby letters of credit. At
December 31, 2021, we had $2.4 million of restricted assets used to collateralize these guarantees, with $1.4 million included in cash and cash equivalents and $1.0
million included in other non-current assets. We have bid bonds and performance guarantees in form of surety bonds issued through a third-party of $6.5 million
that were not required to be recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We are ultimately liable for claims that may occur against these guarantees. We have
no history of material claims or are aware of circumstances that would require us to pay under any of these arrangements. We also believe that the resolution of
any claim that may arise in the future, either individually or in the aggregate, would not be material to our Financial Statements.

Additionally, we have money transmitter bonds issued through a third-party for the benefit of various states to comply with the states’ financial requirements and
industry regulations for money transmitter licenses. At December 31, 2021, we had total aggregate money transmitter bonds of approximately $16.6 million
outstanding.

Warranties. We generally warrant that our solutions and related offerings will conform to published specifications, or to specifications provided in an individual
customer arrangement, as applicable. The typical warranty period is 90 days from delivery of the solution or offering. For certain service offerings we provide a
limited warranty for the duration of the services provided. We generally warrant that services will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner. The
typical remedy for breach of warranty is to correct or replace any defective deliverable, and if not possible or practical, we will accept the return of the defective
deliverable and refund the amount paid under the customer arrangement that is allocable to the defective deliverable. Our contracts also generally contain
limitation of damages provisions in an effort to reduce our exposure to monetary damages arising from breach of warranty claims. Historically, we have incurred
minimal warranty costs, and as a result, do not maintain a warranty reserve.

Solution and Services Indemnifications. Our arrangements with our customers generally include an indemnification provision that will indemnify and defend a
customer in actions brought against the customer that claim our products and/or services infringe upon a copyright, trade secret, or valid patent. Historically, we
have not incurred any significant costs related to such indemnification claims, and as a result, do not maintain a reserve for such exposure.

Claims for Company Non-performance. Our arrangements with our customers typically limit our liability for breach to a specified amount of the direct damages
incurred by the customer resulting from the breach. From time-to-time, these arrangements may also include provisions for possible liquidated damages or other
financial remedies for our non-performance, or in the case of certain of our revenue management platforms, provisions for damages related to service level
performance requirements. The service level performance requirements typically relate to system availability and timeliness of service delivery. As of December
31,2021, we believe we have adequate reserves, based on our historical experience, to cover any reasonably anticipated exposure as a result of our nonperformance
for any past or current arrangements with our customers.
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Indemnifications Related to Officers and the Board of Directors. We have agreed to indemnify members of our Board of Directors (the “Board”) and certain of our
officers if they are named or threatened to be named as a party to any proceeding by reason of the fact that they acted in such capacity. We maintain directors’ and
officers’ (“D&Q”) insurance coverage to protect against such losses. We have not historically incurred any losses related to these types of indemnifications and are
not aware of any pending or threatened actions or claims against any officer or member of our Board. As a result, we have not recorded any liabilities related to
such indemnifications as of December 31, 2021. In addition, as a result of the insurance policy coverage, we believe these indemnification agreements are not
significant to our results of operations.

Legal Proceedings. From time-to-time, we are involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations in the normal course of business.

12. Stockholders’ Equity

Stock Repurchase Program. We currently have a stock repurchase program, approved by our Board, authorizing us to repurchase shares of our common stock
from time-to-time as market and business conditions warrant (the “Stock Repurchase Program™). During 2021, 2020, and 2019, we repurchased 733,000 shares of
our common stock for $36.0 million (weighted—average price of $49.13 per share), 624,000 shares of our common stock for $26.3 million (weighted-average price
of $42.13 per share), and 576,000 shares of our common stock for $25.5 million (weighted-average price of $44.17 per share), respectively, under a Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Rule 10b5-1 Plan.

As of December 31, 2021, the remaining number of shares available for repurchase under the Stock Repurchase Program totaled 3.6 million shares.

Stock Repurchases for Tax Withholdings. In addition to the above-mentioned stock repurchases, during 2021, 2020, and 2019, we repurchased and then cancelled
approximately 130,000 shares, 254,000 shares, and 117,000 shares for $6.3 million, $11.9 million, and $5.1 million, respectively, of common stock from our
employees in connection with minimum tax withholding requirements resulting from the vesting of restricted stock under our stock incentive plans.

Cash Dividend. During 2021, 2020, and 2019 our Board approved total cash dividends of $1.00 per share, $0.94 per share, and $0.89 per share of common stock,
totaling $32.7 million, $30.9 million, and $29.4 million, respectively.

Warrants. In 2014, in conjunction with the execution of an amendment to our current agreement with Comcast Corporation (“Comcast), we issued stock warrants
(the “Warrant Agreement”) for the right to purchase up to 2.9 million shares of our common stock (the “Stock Warrants™) as an additional incentive for Comcast to
convert customer accounts onto ACP based on various milestones. The Stock Warrants have a ten-year term and an exercise price of $26.68 per warrant.

Of the total Stock Warrants issued, 1.9 million Stock Warrants have vested and been exercised. Comcast exercised their remaining 0.4 million vested Stock
Warrants in December 2019, which we net cash settled under the provision of the Warrant Agreement. The fair value of the Stock Warrants were $24.6 million
(weighted-average price of $56.12 per share), resulting in a net cash settlement of $12.9 million. The difference between the net cash settlement and the $9.1
million carrying value of the Stock Warrants was recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital.

As of December 31, 2021, 1.0 million Stock Warrants remain issued, none of which were vested. The remaining unvested Stock Warrants will be accounted for as
a customer contract cost asset once the performance conditions necessary for vesting are considered probable.

Once vested, Comcast may exercise the Stock Warrants and elect either physical delivery of common shares or net share settlement (cashless exercise).
Alternatively, the exercise of the Stock Warrants may be settled with cash based solely on our approval, or if Comcast were to beneficially own or control in excess
0f 19.99% of the common stock or voting of the Company.
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13. Equity Compensation Plans

Stock Incentive Plan. In May 2020, our stockholders approved an increase of 3.6 million shares authorized for issuances under the Amended and Restated 2005
Stock Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”), from 21.4 million shares to 25.0 million shares. Shares reserved under the 2005 Plan can be granted to officers and other
key employees of our company and its subsidiaries and to non-employee directors of our company in the form of stock options, stock appreciation rights,
performance unit awards, restricted stock awards, or stock bonus awards. Shares granted under the 2005 Plan in the form of a performance unit award, restricted
stock award, or stock bonus award are counted toward the aggregate number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2005 Plan as two shares
for every one share granted or issued in payment of such award. As of December 31, 2021, 4.6 million shares were available for issuance, with 4.2 million shares
available for grant.

Restricted Stock. We generally issue new shares (versus treasury shares) to fulfill restricted stock award grants. Restricted stock awards are granted at no cost to
the recipient. Historically, our restricted stock awards have vested annually primarily over two to four years with no restrictions other than the passage of time
(i.e., the shares are released upon calendar vesting with no further restrictions) (or “Time-Based Awards”). Unvested Time-Based Awards are typically forfeited
and cancelled upon termination of employment with our company. Certain Time-Based Awards become fully vested (i.e., vesting accelerates) upon a change in
control, as defined, and the subsequent involuntary termination of employment, or death. The fair value of the Time-Based Awards (determined by using the

closing market price of our common stock on the grant date) is charged to expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.

We also issue restricted stock shares to key members of management that vest upon meeting pre-established financial performance objectives (“Performance-Based
Awards”). The structure of the performance goals for the Performance-Based Awards has been approved by our stockholders. Certain Performance-Based Awards
become fully vested (i.e., vesting accelerates) upon a change in control, as defined, and the subsequent involuntary termination of employment. The fair value of
the Performance-Based Awards (determined by using the closing market price of our common stock on the grant date) is charged to expense on a straight-line basis
over a two-year performance period.

During 2020, market-based awards for 0.1 million restricted common stock shares were granted to certain members of executive management which vest upon
meeting pre-established share price targets over a four-year period ("Market-Based Awards"). The Market-Based Awards become fully vested upon a change in
control, as defined, and the subsequent involuntary termination of employment. The fair value of the Market-Based Awards (determined using a Monte Carlo
valuation method), is charged to expense over the estimated service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award is, in-substance, multiple
awards.

A summary of our unvested restricted stock activity during 2021 is as follows (shares in thousands):

2021
Weighted-
Average
Grant
Shares Date Fair Value
Unvested awards, beginning 1,041 $ 41.31
Awards granted 692 48.82
Awards forfeited/cancelled (90) 43.47
Awards vested (437) 41.56
Unvested awards, ending 1,206 $ 45.22

The weighted-average grant date fair value per share of restricted stock shares granted during 2021, 2020, and 2019 was $48.82, $40.86, and $41.69, respectively.
The total market value of restricted stock shares vesting during 2021, 2020, and 2019 was $21.0 million, $32.8 million, and $17.0 million, respectively.

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. As of December 31, 2021, we have an employee stock purchase plan whereby 1.7 million shares of our common stock have
been reserved for sale to our U.S. employees through payroll deductions. The price for shares purchased under the plan is 85% of market value on the last day of
the purchase period. Purchases are made at the end of each month. During 2021, 2020, and 2019, 64,342 shares, 68,552 shares, and 54,949 shares, respectively,
were purchased under the plan for $2.6 million ($36.63 to $48.98 per share), $2.5 million ($32.20 to $42.35 per share), and $2.3 million ($30.76 to $48.99 per
share), respectively. As of December 31, 2021, 89,366 shares remain eligible for purchase under the plan.

72



Stock-Based Compensation Expense. We recorded stock-based compensation expense of $21.4 million, $25.2 million, and $19.9 million, respectively, for 2021,
2020, and 2019. As of December 31, 2021, there was $35.6 million of total compensation cost related to unvested awards not yet recognized. This amount,
excluding the impact of forfeitures, is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.1 years.

We recorded a deferred income tax benefit related to stock-based compensation expense during 2021, 2020, and 2019, of $4.9 million, $5.8 million, and $4.3
million, respectively. The actual income tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from the vesting of restricted stock for 2021, 2020, and 2019, totaled $4.4
million, $4.0 million, and $3.9 million, respectively.

Modifications to Stock-Based Awards. In August 2020, we entered into a Separation Agreement (the “Separation Agreement”), with our then-current President and
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) which included a provision that accelerated the vesting of approximately 198,000 shares of unvested restricted stock on
December 30, 2020. This modification resulted in a reversal of stock-based compensation expense in 2020 of $2.7 million. The fair value of the modified award of
$8.4 million was recognized ratably from the date of modification through the resignation date, all of which was recognized in 2020.
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em 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

em 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
As required by Rule 13a-15(b), our management, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), conducted an evaluation as

of the end of the period covered by this report of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15(e). Based on that
evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

As required by Rule 13a-15(d), our management, including the CEO and CFO, also conducted an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting, as
defined by Rule 13a-15(f). Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting is located at the front of Part II, Item 8 of this report.

Our management’s evaluation excluded: (i) MobileCard Holdings, LLC, which beginning in July 2021, we held a controlling interest in; (i1) Keydok, LLC, which
we acquired on September 14, 2021; and (iii) DGIT Systems Pty Ltd, which we acquired on October 4, 2021. At December 31, 2021, these acquisitions had $30.7
million and $27.3 million of total assets and net assets, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2021, our Consolidated Statement of Income included total
revenue associated with these acquisitions of $1.5 million. In accordance with guidance issued by the SEC, companies are allowed to exclude acquisitions from the
assessment of internal controls over financial reporting during the first year subsequent to the acquisition while integrating the acquired operations.

(c) Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Our independent registered public accounting firm issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December
31,2021. KPMG LLP’s report is located immediately following Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting at the front of Part II, Item 8
of this report.

(d) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Except as described above under 9A.(b) with respect to the MobileCard Holdings, LLC, Keydok, LLC, and DGIT Systems Pty Ltd acquisitions, there were no
changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 or
15d-15 that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2021 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

em 9B. Other Information

None.

em 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspection

ot applicable.
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PART III

em 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

See the Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, from which information regarding directors is incorporated herein by reference.
Information regarding our executive officers will be omitted from such proxy statement and is furnished in a separate item captioned ‘‘Executive Officers of the
Registrant’” included at the end of Part I of this Form 10-K.

em 11. Executive Compensation

See the Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, from which information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference.

em 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

See the Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, from which information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference,
with the exception of the equity compensation plan information which is presented in Item 5, “Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

em 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

See the Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, from which information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference.

em 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

See the Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, from which information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

em 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedules, and Exhibits:
(1) Financial Statements
The financial statements filed as part of this report are listed on the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 41.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

None. Any information required in the Financial Statement Schedules is provided in sufficient detail in our Financial Statements
and notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits
Exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index on page 76.

The Exhibits include management contracts, compensatory plans and arrangements required to be filed as exhibits to the Form 10-K
by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

(b) Exhibits

The Exhibits filed or incorporated by reference herewith are as specified in the Exhibit Index.

em 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description

2.10(8) Implementation Agreement between CSG Systems International, Inc. and Intec

3.01 (1) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (P)

3.02 (13) Amended and Restated Bylaws of CSG Systems International. Inc.

3.03 (2) Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of CSG Systems International, Inc.

4.01(1) Form of Common Stock Certificate (P)

4.10 (12) Indenture dated March 15, 2016, between CSG Systems International, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company.
N.A.. as trustee

4.50 (17) $350 million Credit Agreement dated as of March 5, 2018, among CSG Systems International, Inc., as Borrower, the Subsidiary
Guarantors Party hereto, Bank of America. N.A.. as Administrative Agent, Collateral Agent, Swingline Lender and Issuing Bank.
Wells Fargo Bank. National Association, as Syndication Agent, Compass Bank and HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as Co-
Documentation Agents, the Lenders Party Hereto, and the Other Issuing Banks Party Hereto Merrill Lynch, Pierce. Fenner & Smith
Incorporated and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners

4.60 (33) $600.0 million Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated September 13, 2021, among CSG Systems International, Inc.. as
Borrower. the Subsidiary Guarantors Party Hereto, Bank of America, N.A.. as Administrative Agent, Collateral Agent. Swingline
Lender and an Issuing Bank, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. as Syndication Agent, BBVA. USA and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Co-Documentation Agents. the Lenders Party Hereto. and the Other Issuing Banks Party Hereto BofA Securities.
Inc. and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as Joint [.ead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners

4.90 (24) Description of Capital Stock

10.02 (9) Second Amended and Restated 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. as adopted on May 17, 2011

10.04 (26) CSG Systems International. Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. as amended on May 21. 2020

10.05 (9) CSG Systems International, Inc. Performance Bonus Program, as amended on August 14, 2007

10.06 (5) CSG Systems International, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. as amended August 14. 2007

10.15 (7) Form of Indemnification Agreement between CSG Systems International, Inc. and Directors and Executive Officers

10.16 (4) Indemnification Agreement between CSG Systems International, Inc. and Mr. Ronald Cooper. dated November 16, 2006

10.26* (15) Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Charter Communications

10.26A* (15)

10.26B* (15)

10.26C* (15)

Operating, LLC

Second Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Third Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating. LLC

Fourth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating. LLC
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10.26D (16)

10.26E* (16)

10.26F* (16)

10.26G* (16)

10.26H* (16)

10.261 (16)

10.26J* (17)

10.26K* (19)

10.26L* (19)

10.26M* (19)

10.26N* (19)

10.260* (20)

10.26P* (20)

10.26Q* (20)

10.26R* (20)

10.26S* (21)

10.26T* (22)

10.26U* (22)

10.26V* (22)

10.26W* (22)

First Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Charter
Communications Operating. LL.C

Fifth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating. LL.C

Sixth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Eighth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Ninth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Tenth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Eleventh Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating. LLC

Thirteenth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Fifteenth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Seventeenth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LL.C

Eighteenth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LL.C

Seventh Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating. LL.C

Twelfth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Fourteenth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Nineteenth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Twentieth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Twenty-Second Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating. LLC

Twenty-Fourth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Twenty-Fifth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating. LLC

Twenty-Sixth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating, LLC
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10.26X* (22) Twenty-Seventh Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26Y* (22) Twenty-Eighth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26Z* (23) Twenty-Third Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AA* (23) Thirty-First Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AB* (23) Thirty-Second Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating. LLC

10.26AC* (23) Thirty-Third Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AD* (23) Thirty-Fourth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating. LLC

10.26AE* (24) Thirty-Fifth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AF* (25) Thirty-Seventh Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating. LLC

10.26AG* (25) Thirty-Eighth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AH* (27) Twenty-First Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AI1* (27) Thirty-Ninth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating. LLC

10.26AJ* (27) Fortieth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AK* (29) Forty-First Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AL* (29) Forty-Second Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating. LLC

10.26AM* (30) Forty-Fifth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AN* (30) Forty-Sixth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating. LLC

10.26A0%* (30) Forty-Seventh Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating, LLC

10.26AP* (31) Forty-Eighth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating. LLC

10.26AQ* (31) Forty-Ninth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC
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10.27A% (24)
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10.271* (33)

10.273* (33)

10.27K*

Forty-Ninth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Fifty-First Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating. LLC

Fifty-Second Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Fifty-Third Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Fifty-Fifth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

Fifty-Seventh Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc.
and Charter Communications Operating. LLC

Fifty-Eighth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating. LLC

Fifty-Ninth Amendment to Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and
Charter Communications Operating, LLC

CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable Communications
Management, LLC

CD Addendum to CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC

First Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC

Second Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast
Cable Communications Management, LLC

Third Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC

Fourth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC

Fifth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC

Fifth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC

Eighth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC

Seventh Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast
Cable Communications Management, LLC

Ninth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC

Tenth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC
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10.82 (29)
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10.85 (19)

21.01

23.01

31.01

31.02

32.01

Eleventh Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast
Cable Communications Management, LLC

Twelfth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems. Inc. and Comcast
Cable Communications Management, LLC

Thirteenth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast

Cable Communications Management, LLC

CSG Systems, Inc. Wealth Accumulation Plan, as restated and amended effective December 6, 2017

Adoption Agreement to CSG Systems, Inc. Wealth Accumulation Plan, executed September 13, 2018

CSG Systems International, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan

Employment Agreement with Bret C. Griess. dated February 19. 2009

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Bret C. Griess. dated November 19, 2015

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Bret C. Griess, dated November 17. 2016
Separation Agreement with Bret C. Griess. dated August 26. 2020

Amendment No. 1 to Separation Agreement with Bret C. Griess, dated December 31, 2020

Employment Agreement with Kenneth M. Kennedy, dated March 1, 2016

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement with Kenneth Kennedy. dated November 17. 2016
Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement with Kenneth M. Kennedy. dated November 8., 2017
Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement with Kenneth Kennedy. dated January 1, 2021
Employment Agreement with Rolland B. Johns, dated May 17. 2018

Employment Agreement with Brian A. Shepherd. dated August 26. 2020

Employment Agreement with Elizabeth A. Bauer, dated May 20, 2021

Employment Offer Letter with Hai Tran, dated November 16, 2021

Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensation
Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensation

Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensation

Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensation

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of KPMG LLP

Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-18-028815.html?hash=31b634f4939a2c733df3eb980a6adfb4c1234fbb2ef1688b103e5ea05abff6ff&dest=csgs-ex1039_111_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-18-028815.html?hash=31b634f4939a2c733df3eb980a6adfb4c1234fbb2ef1688b103e5ea05abff6ff&dest=csgs-ex1039a_110_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001021408-02-010915.html?hash=f002d3f55d7c0e3245f2049c2d9ba12c80d69a08084ef72d82f54ad21c927b88&dest=dex1050_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001193125-09-037527.html?hash=2e5fa31c2118e4e0f4c198ff4cbc0d4f0adb794eb08a0d39b2a7d5c7203c90f2&dest=dex1051_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-15-011006.html?hash=77b70abffc6eeb495acea4b878674215dec02d77b7531095615aac39fec78420&dest=csgs-ex1051a_21_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-16-029519.html?hash=a94354147bb0a7cd8c3ee22c94a8e50baa8c85126f51a8d56a4c25d9eb2442ea&dest=csgs-ex1051b_8_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-20-041893.html?hash=0cdd1e7c41cd88dca4b67515682ba3a8afbdce4a9af5c570ae1db0dea5867621&dest=csgs-ex1051c_8_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-21-006874.html?hash=df1c2ce291e65c486439cc3089fbe54017d046898f35969cd19ecb1fa29670b9&dest=csgs-ex1051d_367_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-16-013881.html?hash=3f7eb34aeee4556f54ffe809b011f006a9fb322ef3c8db1a4a2d1f975e005618&dest=csgs-ex1053_7_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-16-029519.html?hash=a94354147bb0a7cd8c3ee22c94a8e50baa8c85126f51a8d56a4c25d9eb2442ea&dest=csgs-ex1053a_6_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-21-006874.html?hash=df1c2ce291e65c486439cc3089fbe54017d046898f35969cd19ecb1fa29670b9&dest=csgs-ex1053b_365_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-21-006874.html?hash=df1c2ce291e65c486439cc3089fbe54017d046898f35969cd19ecb1fa29670b9&dest=csgs-ex1053c_366_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-18-014015.html?hash=00719b0f021725f0b1ee0edc56d8858369001c33966c036eb2f8292861bbf531&dest=csgs-ex1054_45_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-20-041893.html?hash=0cdd1e7c41cd88dca4b67515682ba3a8afbdce4a9af5c570ae1db0dea5867621&dest=csgs-ex1055_6_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-21-041434.html?hash=2a61c437918283167c54ac4e16fb46863cc41dbb8f7cd36dccfd1d9a6276271f&dest=csgs-ex1056_30_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-21-058666.html?hash=26a32c6b02b3c1903f8e1aaf940bb2c0b1f4be7eda70e0282d14ddcd665d7ad9&dest=csgs-ex1057_25_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-20-051017.html?hash=7f60ee7a1d17bea854aa2eaabb0c681f143f5724d7ffcfcc892776d11832da57&dest=csgs-ex1081_184_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-20-051017.html?hash=7f60ee7a1d17bea854aa2eaabb0c681f143f5724d7ffcfcc892776d11832da57&dest=csgs-ex1082_209_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-21-006874.html?hash=df1c2ce291e65c486439cc3089fbe54017d046898f35969cd19ecb1fa29670b9&dest=csgs-ex1083_364_htm
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001564590-18-019087.html?hash=a08f05bacebf7083160482ae43c51e812a77246d642a1b43ee561eb2b081ed80&dest=csgs-ex1085_145_htm

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags are
embedded within the Inline XBRL document

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

(1)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registration Statement No. 333-244 on Form S-1.
(2)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 1997.
(3)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002.
(4)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated November 16, 2006.
(5)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2007.
(6)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated February 19, 2009.
(7)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2010.
(8)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2010.
(9)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated May 17, 2011.
(10)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated November 19, 2015.
(11)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated February 25, 2016.
(12)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated March 9, 2016.
(13)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated May 26, 2016.
(14)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated November 17, 2016.
(15)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2017.
(16)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.
(17)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2018.
(18)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated May 17, 2018.
(19)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2018.
(20)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2018.
(21)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2019.
(22)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2019.
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(23)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2019.
(24)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.
(25)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2020.
(26)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated May 21, 2020.
(27)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2020.
(28)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated August 26, 2020.
(29)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2020.
(30)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020.
(31D)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2021.
(32)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2021.
(33)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2021.
(34)Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated November 29, 2021.

* Portions of the exhibit have been omitted pursuant to an application for confidential treatment, and the omitted portions have been filed separately with the

Commission.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
By: /s/ BRIAN A. SHEPHERD

Brian A. Shepherd
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 18, 2022

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ DONALD B. REED Chairman of the Board of Directors February 18, 2022
Donald B. Reed

/s/ BRIAN A. SHEPHERD Director, President and Chief Executive Officer February 18, 2022
Brian A. Shepherd (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ HAI TRAN Chief Financial Officer February 18, 2022
Hai Tran (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ DAVID N. SCHAAF Chief Accounting Officer February 18, 2022
David N. Schaaf (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ DAVID G. BARNES Director February 18, 2022

David G. Barnes

/s/ GREGORY A. CONLEY Director February 18, 2022
Gregory A. Conley

/s/ RONALD H. COOPER Director February 18, 2022
Ronald H. Cooper

/s MARWAN H. FAWAZ Director February 18, 2022
Marwan H. Fawaz

/s/ RAJAN NAIK Director February 18, 2022
Rajan Naik
/s/ JANICE 1. OBUCHOWSKI Director February 18, 2022

Janice I. Obuchowski

/s/ FRANK V. SICA Director February 18, 2022
Frank V. Sica

/s/ HATYAN SONG Director February 18, 2022
Haiyan Song

/s/ SILVIO TAVARES Director February 18, 2022
Silvio Tavares

/s/ TSE L1 YANG Director February 18, 2022
Tse Li Yang
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Exhibit 10.26AW

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE EXHIBIT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH (I) NOT MATERIAL AND
1) WOULD BE COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. SUCH EXCLUDED INFORMATION IS IDENTIFIED BY BRACKETS AND
MARKED WITH (**¥),

FIFTY-SEVENTH AMENDMENT
TO
CONSOLIDATED
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS OPERATING, LLC

This Fifty-seventh Amendment (the “Amendment”) is made by and between CSG Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation
(“CSG”), and Charter Communications Operating, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Customer”). CSG and
Customer entered into that certain Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement effective as of August 1,
2017 (CSG document no. 4114281), as amended (the “Agreement”), and now desire to further amend the Agreement in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment. If the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment are in conflict
with the Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Amendment shall control. Any terms in initial capital letters or all capital
letters used as a defined term but not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. Upon execution
of this Amendment by the Parties, any subsequent reference to the Agreement between the Parties shall mean the Agreement as
amended by this Amendment. Except as amended by this Amendment, the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement shall
continue in full force and effect according to their terms.

WHEREAS, CSG and Customer wish to extend the Term of the Agreement, provide financial consideration for the extension of the
Term and to modify certain terms that are a condition of the extension of the Term.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, CSG and Customer agree to the following as of the
Amendment Effective Date (defined below), unless an alternate date is otherwise agreed in a subsection below:

1. The Parties wish to extend the Agreement through December 31, 2027. Therefore, Section 1.2 of the Agreement entitled
“Term” shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

1.1.Term. Unless earlier terminated pursuant to Section 6.1, this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and remain
in effect thereafter for an initial term expiring on December 31, 2021 (the “Initial Term”). The Parties acknowledge and agree
after the Initial Term, a subsequent term shall commence January 1, 2022 expiring on December 31, 2027 (as may be extended
due toa [********** sk skoskosk under seskokeoskeoskoskok sk ok and/Or due toa seoskeoskeoskeoskeoskeoskeosk skeoseosk skosk skoskosk under skeskoskoskoskoskosksk sk the “Subsequent
Term”). After the
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Subsequent Term, this Agreement will automatically be extended for one additional one-year term (the “Additional Term”),
subject to Customer processing no fewer than [**********] Connected Subscribers, excluding Print and Mail Services, on
[Frx* F*x xkxk] - CSG will determine such number of Connected Subscribers and provide to Customer written notice of such
determination (which may be provided by email to Customer’s Group Vice President Billing, Strategy and Operations or
equivalent). Customer may, at any time, but in no event later than [****** (**) ****] after receipt of such notice, provide to
CSG a written notice of non-renewal to CSG, and in such event this Agreement will not automatically be extended.

“Term” means the Initial Term, Subsequent Term, and the Additional Term, if applicable.
2.Section 2.7(b) (Ownership; Customer Property) shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

Customer Property. All documents, data and files necessary to provide billing services to Customer’s subscribers which are
provided to CSG hereunder by Customer, including the result of CSG’s processing of the foregoing (“Customer Data”), are and shall
remain Customer’s property, and upon request of Customer for any reason or Deconversion of any Connected Subscriber, such
Customer Data shall be returned to Customer by CSG provided that Customer will pay all unpaid charges for any Deconverted
Connected Subscriber. Customer Data to be returned to Customer includes: Subscriber Master File (including Work Orders,
Converters and General Ledger), Computer-Produced Reports (reflecting activity during a period of ninety (90) days immediately
prior to termination), House Master File, and any other related data or files held by CSG on behalf of Customer, all of which will be
in its standard deconversion format (including available historical data) unless another format is reasonably requested by Customer.
Following the Deconversion of any Connected Subscriber, CSG will maintain the Customer Data with respect to such Deconverted
Connected Subscriber for no less than twenty-four (24) months in such format that will permit CSG to comply with this Section
2.7(b). Such Customer Data will be provided subject to CSG’s reasonable, standard fees for such services, or other mutually-agreed
fees. Customer Data will not be utilized by CSG for any purpose other than those purposes related to preparing, offering or
rendering the Services to Customer under this Agreement.

3.Section 3.2 Technical Services, is modified by adding the following after the first paragraph:
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CSG shall provide an additional [*# ekt aokack dookaoks Gokdors) sfsct% of Technical Services ******4*] yhich
Customer may utilize for consulting, implementation, project management, training, and other mutually agreeable tasks (including
development services, but not including any activity for which a specific fixed charge is identified in Schedule F of the Agreement,
as amended, or any SOW, LOA or TSR) for use by Customer’s information technology and customer care department or, upon the
approval of a Group Vice President Billing, Strategy and Operations or equivalent of Customer, any other Customer department (the
“Additional Technical Service Hours [******]”) Any Additional Technical Service Hours [******] not used in the [********
****] in which it is provided shall be forfeited as it may not be carried over to a subsequent [******** ****] The charges for all
Technical Services provided by CSG during the Term will first be applied against the Additional Technical Service Hours Credit and
then against the Technical Service Hours Credit unless expressly agreed by a Group Vice President Billing, Strategy and Operations
Vice President or equivalent of Customer pursuant to an applicable Statement of Work or other document as provided in this
Agreement.

4.Section 5.2 Invoices and Payment shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

1.2. Invoices and Payment

. Customer shall pay undisputed, unpaid amounts due hereunder within [*##*###sk (xk) 2343341 after the date of invoice.
Any amount not paid within [*¥#¥*#*ksk ki) *x%x] after the date of invoice shall thereafter bear interest until paid at a rate
equal to the lesser of [*** and ******** percent (***]%) per month, not compounded, and the maximum rate allowed by
applicable law. Customer shall pay all amounts due in United States currency. For an invoice (including parts of an invoice)
to be considered “disputed”: (a) Customer will notify CSG in writing (including by email) to the attention of a member of the
CSG billing department and (b) such dispute must be in good faith. Neither Customer’s failure to dispute the accuracy of any
invoice within [*##*¥F3k3k (k) #4341 of the invoice date, nor Customer’s payment of any invoice, shall be deemed to
constitute Customer’s agreement to the accuracy of the amounts charged therein.

5.Section 5.3 Adjustment to Fees is modified by deleting the first sentence at the beginning of the paragraph and replacing it
with the following:

CSG and Customer agree the [****** Adjustment to Fees scheduled for ***¥*¥* *%** gha]] be ******] excluding any
necessary adjustments to Fees for Materials. Effective [***###* ** *x¥* and for each year during the Term, all fees included in
this Agreement, except ********* ag defined below, shall be increased ****¥#*¥* [y the Hakack ek () sedokototor 3okackack® (¥%09%) of
an amount equal to the *¥¥¥¥dk sk of the *kdkdckack dxdodox (ok) Fxkx%*] prior to CSG’s notice, of the published (“CPI”)
Consumers Price Index, All Urban Consumers, All Items, U.S. City Average 1982-1984, published by the U.S. Department of Labor
or any successor index (“[****** Adjustment to Fees”) or (y) **##* #ixsisisk (¥]04)

6.The last full paragraph of Section 6.1 Termination shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
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In the event of termination or expiration of this Agreement, this Agreement (other than Customer’s conversion, exclusivity and
minimum fee obligations) shall remain in full force and effect until the last Connected Subscriber is Deconverted. For the avoidance
of doubt and without limiting the foregoing, Customer shall be authorized to exercise all of its rights and licenses under Section 2
and CSG shall be required to perform all Services contemplated in this Agreement with respect to each Deconverted Connected
Subscriber until such time as such Connected Subscriber is Deconverted. Upon the Deconversion of all Connected Subscribers, all
rights granted to Customer under this Agreement (or the relevant rights applicable to a portion of the Agreement) with respect to the
terminated Products, Deliverables and Services will cease, and Customer will promptly (i) purge all terminated Software from the
Designated Environment and all of Customer’s other computer systems, storage media and other files; (ii) destroy the Product(s) and
all copies thereof; (iii) deliver to CSG an affidavit which certifies that Customer has complied with these termination obligations;
and (iv) pay to CSG all undisputed fees that are due, invoiced, and unpaid pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Customer may retain one copy of the Software, Products and Deliverables with its legal counsel solely to provide a record
of such Software for archival purposes. For purposes of this Agreement, “Deconvert” (and derivations) refers to the act of removing
a Connected Subscriber from Customer’s Subscriber Master File and Ledger Activity Report. Once a Connected Subscriber is
Deconverted, it will no longer be counted as a Connected Subscriber for purposes of Schedule F.

7.Section 6.2 Transition Assistance shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

6.2 Transition Assistance

. Provided that Customer has paid CSG any and all then-owed undisputed, invoiced, and unpaid fees and expenses due
hereunder as of the date of termination, expiration or transfer (as applicable), upon (a) expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement by either Party for any reason, or (b) Customer’s transfer of Connected Subscribers to a third party, CSG will
promptly provide Customer with all Deconversion and Transition Assistance reasonably requested by Customer (which may
include, for example, Customer Data and for the fees provided in Schedule F, continued billing services, Products, Services and
support, if requested, until such time as the Deconverted Connected Subscribers are active and enabled for billing through a
successor billing platform) until the earlier of expiration of the Term or the effective date of termination, provided however
Customer Shall not be entitled to the [********** seosk skeoskeoske sk sk sheosk skoskeok on a skoksk kg skeskok skokoskoksk for any sk sfeoske st sfeske sk skeoske seoske skeosko skeskeoske sk
*kdAxA*E*E*], In addition, provided Customer has paid CSG any and all then-owed undisputed, invoiced, and unpaid fees and
expenses due hereunder as of the effective date of termination or expiration (as applicable), Customer shall have the option of
requesting Transition Assistance (which may include, for example, Customer Data and, for the fees provided in Schedule F,
continued billing services, Products, Services and support, if requested, until such time as the Deconverted Connected
Subscribers are active and enabled for billing through a successor billing platform) for [*##### sk (k) Hiki4%] from the date
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the foregoing, the Parties agree that CSG will prepare and provide to Customer deconversion files upon the request of
Customer; provided, however, that CSG may hold any deconversion files requested by Customer for any purpose other than
a Deconversion in accordance with this Agreement for a period of up to [**** (*) ****] after the effective cutoff date of
such deconversion files (“Transition Assistance™). Customer shall not receive a second set of deconversion files for the
same set of system principals, which set of deconversion files will reasonably enable Customer to Deconvert and transition
to another billing provider, until either (x) Customer has paid the Basic Services Charge with respect to the Minimum
Commitment and the Subsequent Term Minimum Commitment or (y) this Agreement has expired or been terminated (or a
termination notice has been served) and Customer has fulfilled its obligations to pay any applicable Termination Liability or
payment obligations provided in Section 1.2 Term for the Additional Term as applicable.

8.Section 6.4 Discontinuance Fee shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
6.4 Discontinuance Fee

. (@) Non-Print and Mail Processing. The Parties have mutually agreed upon the fees for non-Print and Mail Products and
Services provided hereunder based upon certain assumed volumes of business activity, and the Term of this Agreement. Customer
understands that without the certainty of revenue promised by the commitments set forth in this Agreement, CSG would have been
unwilling to provide the Products and Services in accordance with the terms set forth herein. Because of the difficulty in ascertaining
CSG’s actual damages for a termination of this Agreement by Customer without cause or other breach of this Agreement by
Customer resulting in termination of this Agreement by CSG, Customer agrees that, upon termination of this Agreement in its
entirety for reasons other than by a Party pursuant to section [****] or by Customer pursuant to section [***(*), (*), (*) or (*]), in
addition to all other amounts then due and owing to CSG for Products and Services previously rendered, Customer will pay to CSG
(as a liquidated damage and not as a penalty) an amount equal to (i) the [ ok Sk (<o) sk * by (ii) the
sk ook skeoskoske sk sk skeoske skeskoke skok Ofthe sk seosk skeskosk skok sk skeskosksk skeskoskoskeskok sk **********] or during the Addltlonal Term’ the payment Obligations
provided in Section 1.2, Term (the “Termination Discontinuance Fee (Processing)”). Customer agrees that such amount is a
reasonable estimation of the actual damages which CSG would suffer if CSG were to fail to receive the business contemplated in this
Agreement. The Parties agree that, excluding any other undisputed amounts due and owing to CSG at the time of such breach, the
liquidated damages for non-Print and Mail Products and Services set forth in this section 6.4 shall be available to CSG only as set
forth expressly in this subsection (a) to section 6.4, and such liquidated damages shall be CSG’s sole and exclusive remedy at law or
equity for termination of this Agreement prior to the Term. For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties hereby confirm that Customer
has met the Minimum Commitment prior to the end of the Initial Term.

(b) Print and Mail. The Parties have mutually agreed upon the fees for Print and Mail Services provided hereunder based upon
certain assumed volumes of business activity, exclusivity restrictions and the Term of this Agreement. Customer understands that
without the certainty of revenue promised by the commitments set forth in this Agreement, CSG would have been unwilling to
provide the Print and Mail Services in accordance with the terms set forth herein.
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Because of the difficulty in ascertaining CSG’s actual damages for a termination of this Agreement by Customer without cause or

other breach of this Agreement by Customer resulting in termination of this Agreement by CSG, Customer agrees that, upon
termination of this Agreement in its entirety for reasons other than by a Party pursuant to section [****] or by Customer pursuant to
section [***(*), (*), (*) or (*]), in addition to all other amounts then due and owing to CSG for Print and Mail Services previously

rendered, Customer will pay to CSG (as a liquidated damage and not as a penalty) an amount equal to (i) [**#*# k% sk
sieoskeoseoskoskoskok skokoskokoske skesleoskeskeoskoskoskok skokoskesk skekeskeskeskeosk during the skksk (*) seskoskoskoksk lmmedlately preceding the skeoskeoskeoskeosteoskoskoskoskeoskesk sheskeoskesk seoskoskoskokoskoskoskoskosk by

(11) the Kk Ofthe seskoskoskosk sk skoskokoskoskosk skokokokosk shoskokokokoskoskok skokosksk skokokoskoskokokokok skockokokokokoskockokk skskockok provided in Schedule F deskoskok the sk ook ok sk sk skoskok ok

FHddx kxR kkx* provided in Schedule F *¥**¥¥**¥%* by (jif) the *#*****x% *k*x%%] i the Term (the “Termination
Discontinuance Fee (Print and Mail)”). Customer agrees that such amount is a reasonable estimation of the actual damages which
CSG would suffer if CSG were to fail to receive the business contemplated in this Agreement. The Parties agree that, excluding any
other undisputed amounts due and owing to CSG at the time of such breach, the liquidated damages for Print and Mail Services set
forth in this section 6.4 shall be available to CSG only as set forth expressly in this subsection (b) to section 6.4, and such liquidated
damages shall be CSG’s sole and exclusive remedy at law or equity for termination of this Agreement prior to the Term.

9.Section 9.2 shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

9.2 No Consequential Damages/Limitation of Liability.
(a) Except for the Parties’ [************ LR R R R S R L R L S I S R S o and TSk hhd kb hdh ket

(excluding a **%*#¥kk *didik wk%%*]), under no circumstances will either party be liable to the other party for any
consequential, indirect, special, punitive or incidental damages or lost profits, whether foreseeable or unforeseeable, based
on claims or those of its customers, arising out of breach or failure of express or implied warranty, breach of contract,

misrepresentation, negligence, strict liability in tort or otherwise. For purposes of this Section 9.2, a [*¥¥%#*¥&¥ wkdkxk
KhdLx Shall mean the LR R R R R S T R L S R R R or FhfhdhThhdhd ki x tO LR R R T S R L S R L S SR S R o or KhEThhdL %

kkdkhhdbk kdkhd as a result Of wkddk whdbkkdh e kd Of the terms provided in fdedhddd Hhdk khdkhdbhhd Tk kh bbbkt n With
KhTXXIL XX XXTXhATd AXXTXhdd SXXTNhTThdd Hhdd Hhd XXX d HXdhd TXhd X Xhdd Ah NN or Thdk KhdhhdL vxk
9 9
LR *******]
.

(b) Except fOl‘ [******* ********, the Parties’ fedhfhdhdhd okt kdhhdhd S ***********, any fedhdhdd Of the
Khdhdd kb h bt provided in dhdhkdw ***, Kk AL Tk d ke dkx and *****’ and the fhkhhdn described in Kk hhdn

*, in no event will the aggregate liability that either Party incurs to the other Party under the Agreement exceed the

amounts actually paid or *****¥* py ****¥*¥* ypder the Consolidated Agreements and the Agreement ***¥ %% %%
KhEThhd ANk dw (**) ThFhNAhE kAN preceding the claim (excluding any FhdhkhAhd ****, whEhNEL or Fhdk KhdhkdLx Of

kkdhhdn hereunder fOr Kbk bk bk kdbh b nt and any dekdkkd hkkd in kkdkdd Of kkdd Skkdnk prior to Sllch Kk

(*7‘:) *****] period “Liability Limit”)) CSG and Customer agree [******** FhFTXAL AT Nhd AL XATNh TN ANk Nhk Of
Fedhdhhdbhdd Thhdh bbb bbb hh Lhdhd Lhhhuh Sk hn Shk Shdk Nk KhLhRd
9 9




Exhibit 10.26AW
Fkdkddkkdkdk gpg FxEdE kE kkkkkk kkkdkd*] not subject to the limitations set forth in subsection (a), but rather subject to
the terms of this subsection (b).

(¢) The existence of one or more separate events resulting in liability under this Article 9 or Article 10 shall not
enlarge the foregoing limitation of liability, provided that in the event of a claim or claims triggering the [**** %% ®dkdkdx
wkkkkdkkkkd* hereunder for cumulative liability that exceeds **********¥* percent (**%) of Liability Limit permitted
under Section 9.2(b) (the “***** *&*&***>) quch Liability Limit for #*%¥%%¥%%¥%%% *dxdx® shall thereafter ** **%** #*
kkdkhdn (*/*) Of its fdhhdb b hdbbd Lhdbkhdbk kbt and Tkl Tkl Lkdhdk Hkdd Lkdk Kdbkhd Tk Lkkdkhh Ak Hhdk kAN kLNt

Tk dkkdkdkkk kkdkdd ek kdk Hkx%E within ** %% (%) ¥*%F after both Parties have knowledge of the occurrence of the
kkdd *******’ With no kb d bbb hd hbh ket and subject to dTdhbd bbb dd Lhdhdk Xk Ahkd Ltk **********] in

accordance with Section 6.2.

(d) The aforementioned exclusions and limitations of damages shall be independent of, and shall survive, any
failure of the essential purpose of any warranty or limited remedy stated herein, and shall apply even if a party has been
advised of the possibility of such damages. Despite the foregoing exclusion and limitation, this Section 9.2 will not apply to
the extent that applicable law specifically requires liability, any breach of the license restrictions provided in Section 2.2,
or to any obligation to pay the Termination Discontinuance Fee (Print and Mail), Termination Discontinuance Fee
(Processing), Assignment Discontinuance Fee (Print and Mail) or the Assignment Discontinuance Fee (Non-Print and
Mail).

10.Section 12.3 shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
12.3 Print and Mail [***%**¥k*xk]

. (a) During the Term of this Agreement, the Parties agree that CSG shall be Customer’s [#### ¥ skt skt
of Print and Mail Services for Connected Subscribers. Further, CSG and Customer agree CSG shall be Customer’s [**** *%**
Rk ko] of Print and Mail Services for any acquired subscribers for which CSG provided print and mail services prior
to acquisition which are substantially similar to the Print and Mail Services provided under this Agreement. If during the Term or
any extension thereof, Customer acquires subscribers receiving print and mail services from an entity other than CSG prior to
acquisition, Customer agrees such subscribers shall be migrated to CSG’s Print and Mail Services as soon as commercially
reasonable after the termination or expiration of the agreement with such entity, but in no event later than [***#** () ****] after
such agreement has terminated or expired. In the event Customer identifies a technical issue that exists or arises within the
aforementioned [****** (*¥*) ****] and which jeopardizes such migration to CSG’s Print and Mail Services as provided herein, the
Chief Information Officers of each Party or their designees (in the case of Customer, the Group Vice President Billing, Strategy and
Operations or equivalent and in the case of CSG, the Vice President of the Strategic Business Unit) shall meet within [¥** (¥%*)
HkdkARk k% *] to provide a mutually agreeable solution and timeframe for such migration, which shall not exceed [****** (**)
wd#kx*] The Parties agree the terms of this Section 12.3 Print and Mail [*#*#*#*#*¥*] gha]] only be applicable to Affiliates (as
defined in Schedule A) that Customer Controls (as defined in Schedule A). The Parties agree that solely for the purpose of this
Section 12.3 Print and Mail [***********] and Schedule F under the Minimum Commitment, Subsequent Term Minimum
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Commitment and Additional Term as applicable, Print and Mail Services shall include and be limited to statement composition and
the printing and mailing, through the United States Postal Service (“USPS”), of Customer’s monthly billing statements for video,
high speed data and residential and commercial voice services.

(b) In the event of a breach of this section 12.3, Customer agrees to pay, in addition to all other amounts then due and
OWing to CSG’ an amount equal to [*** gk sk skeoskoske skok sk skeskoskeoskeoskoskesk skeskokesk skeskosk sheskeskoksk skeskoksk skeskoskesk skeskeoskokeskokeskosk sk sheskeskok skosksk skeskeskokesk skeskoksk

skoskoskokokoskoskoskok kokesk skokokokeoskoskoskok skekesk skokokokoskoskosksk skesk skokokokoskoskoskok thlS Section 12 3 and Customer Shall use ltS sfoskoskokosk sk skoskoskokok sk skoskoskokokeskoskoskok ok

sheodkeoskoskoskeoskosk sk skekeskok skekeskoke sheoskeoskoskeoskok skoskok or skokeskokoskosk sk shosksksk skek skok ***********] In addition’ Customer agrees to nOtlfy CSG Wlthln a
commercially reasonable time of Customer’s discovery that it is not in compliance with the terms of this section 12.3 Print and Mail
[Fxdsaskckix] of this Agreement. Said notice shall include the number of additional subscribers and the date they were acquired by
Customer. Further, the Parties agree that CSG shall not terminate this Agreement for a breach of this section, unless Customer has
not made payment in accordance with Article 5, “Payment Terms,” of this Agreement.

11.Section 12.7 Sale of Assets shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
12.7 Sale of Assets.

In the event that Customer sells, divests or otherwise transfers all or substantially all of its assets, or Charter becomes
subject to a change of Control, prior to the expiration of the then current Term to an unrelated third party (a “Successor Entity”),
Customer shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assign or transfer this Agreement to the Successor Entity. In the event that
such Successor Entity does not assume this Agreement, regardless of whether by contract or operation of law, or otherwise include
the Connected Subscribers under this Agreement in such Successor Entity’s separate agreement with CSG, which must be executed
within [*¥** (¥) ****** of Customer’s change of Control, ¥ ks sk sckakackdk doxkox sxdkrkr®**] and Customer agrees to
pay to CSG (as a liquidated damage and not as a penalty), in addition to any other undisputed amounts due under this Agreement, an
amount equal to the product of: (i) the then [*### kst sk sokotikiokk sk (1) fhe *kkkitiok sk ok ook fokkok
sk skeoskoskeoskosk sk sk and the skeoskeoskeosieosteoskeoskeoskokosk skeoskeoskeoske skeseoskeskeoskeoskosk skeskeoskeskokeoskoskeoskeskok skokeoskeokeskoskoskoskoksk skesk (111) sfeskoskeoskeoskeoskosk skeoskoskosk skeskeoskoskoskoksk (**]%) (for purposes Of
this Section 12.7 the “Assignment Discontinuance Fee (Non-Print and Mail)”). For clarification, the Parties agree Customer’s
payment obligations provided in Section 1.2 Term shall apply to the Additional Term in the event of a sale as provided herein during
the Additional Term. In addition to the Assignment Discontinuance Fee (Non-Print and Mail), Customer agrees to pay CSG (as a

hquldated damage and not as a penalty)’ an amount equal to (1) [********’* skoskoskokoskoskosk skokokoskeoskoskok skekeskoskosk skokeskeskokokoksk skokokok skekeskokoskok

skeskoskoskok skeskoskokokoskoskosk skokeokesk skoskotkokoskoskokokok skeskoskokokokoskekokok skekeskesk provided il’l Schedule F skeskoskosk the skeoskeoskoskoskoskoskoskoskok skeskeskoskok skekeskoskokokokskekosk skokokesk
provided in Schedule F (iii) the @iv)

(**]%) (for purposes of this Section 12.7 the “Assignment Discontinuance Fee (Print and Mail)”’). Customer agrees that such

amounts are a reasonable estimation of the actual damages which CSG would suffer if CSG were to fail to receive the business
contemplated in this Agreement as a result of events occurring under this section 12.7.
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In the event that CSG sells, divests or otherwise transfers all or substantially all of its assets, or CSG otherwise becomes
subject to a change of Control, CSG shall assign or transfer this Agreement to the transferee upon notice to Customer and Customer

will consent to such notice in advance; provided, however, if such assignment or transfer will be made to any [*** ¥ k% *kkx
sieoskeoseoskoskeoskoskoskosk sheokeoskeosieskeskosk skeskoskeskeoskeoskoskeosk skoskeskoskeskeskeosk skekeskokeskeoskeskosk skeskeskeokeskeoskeoskeosk seskeokeskoskeosk skeseoskeskoskoskoskok or skeoskeoseoskeoskeoskeoskoskosk shoskeoskeosk skoskoskosk (e g skskskosk skokoskokoskoskosk
b b b =2 b 2

***********’ *********’ ***’ ********’ *****’ ******, ***’ *******’ and ****]’ in eaCh case to the extent Such entities
participate in the foregoing commercial sectors), or with any of their Affiliates or successors (each a “Charter Competitor”), CSG
may not assign or transfer this Agreement without the consent of Customer, which will not be withheld or delayed unreasonably. If
CSG assigns this Agreement to, or becomes subject to the direct or indirect control of, any Charter Competitor, and Customer has a
reasonable basis for objecting to such assignment, Customer may terminate this Agreement at any time within the [**#*** ()

***%* period following such assignment or change of Control and convert the Connected Subscribers to another provider, with no

12.Schedule A Definitions shall be modified to include the following definition for Subsequent Term Minimum Commitment:

“Subsequent Term Minimum Commitment” means [**********x%*% Qubscriber Months during the ***¥#¥#k*k *x%*] each as
may be adjusted in accordance with the Agreement.

13.Schedule A Definitions shall be modified to include the following definition for Subsequent Term:
“Subsequent Term” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.2.

14.CSG and Customer agree that Schedule F, section entitled “[*******%%% *dkxkkdk *x***]” shall be deleted in its entirety
and replaced with the following:

[ * *****]

As an [FHFEdERERIE o HddcRdok Skl ] to CSG from a vendor other than CSG and thus make such subscribers Connected Subscribers under this
Agreement (for purposes of the [ ] #**** and the BSC Rate Table, the “Converted Connected Subscribers”), CSG agrees, unless

otherwise provided in Schedule F, "Fees," under the BSC Rate Table, to provide Customer with an [**#####is sk oqg] to $h*sskk sk dxxxk for
siesteosieske skeoskeosiesieskeoskeoskeoskeosk seskeoskeoskeoskesioskeoskeoske seskeosleskeoskeoskeoskesioskosk (eCskeosie seoskeskeoskeskeoskeoske sk seskeosk skeoskeoskoskeoske sk *****”) ldel‘ltlﬁed 111 seskeskeoskeoskeoskoskosk sk skoskoskoskoskosksk sk (*) kbbb kbt The

skeoskoskeoskeoskoskoskeoskeskosk skokoskokoskeskoskoskosk skokokosksk Sha“ be payab]e Wlth respect to seseskosk skokoskoskeskoskoskoskok skokoskokoskokokokok skeskokoskokokoskokoskk ldentlﬁed in skokoskokoskeskeoskosk skoskokoskskosksksk *. (*)
sk Sk ) okkok seksklk fropm the **%%* in which the applicable subscriber becomes a Connected Subscriber through ook sk s
skesk skskosk sksk skskokskoskskoksk sksksk sksk sk oskoskoskoksksksksksksk skskskoksk as prOVlded in skskoskoskokskskk *’ skkoskoskkokok *. (*) Fedkhhhhd ekt (“********* ****”)’ and SuCh
skeskoskoskokoskosk skoskoskokokok Wlll be skskoskokokoskosk sksk skok skokekeskoskokok skokokoskekeok skolkokokokoskesk skekokolkokokoskoskisk skekokosk for the sfe sk sk sk sk sk skeskeoskoskoskok skokoskeskoskoskosk in Wthh the Subscribers became
Connected Subscribers‘ Upon the eXpiratiOn Ofthe skoskoskoskoskeoskeskeoskosk ****’ the shesleoskoskoskeoskeoskeosteskesk skeoskoskeskeoskeosteskoskosk skeskeokokok Shall cease. sheokeoskeskeostesteskeoskoskosk skeoskeoskeosteskoskoskeoskosk skekokosksk
Rk e may be Rk g eIk etk skl for which the subscriber becomes a Connected Subscriber through the
end Ofthe skskoskok skokeskoskoskokokok skoksksk in Wthh the skeskoskoskoskeosieoskeoskoskosk skokokoskoskoskoskoksk skokoskskesk iS applicable. The skeskeoskoskoskeoskeskoskoskosk skokokoskoskoskokokosk skokoskskesk may 0n]y be sfeskeoskoskoskok

wHFEEEE the end of the **** *kkkxkkk dkx* and will no longer be applicable to subscriber conversions that occur after **¥### i % Fixk = The
sfesfesiesie sk ke sfeskeoskosk siesteskeoskeoskeoseoskoskesk skokokokok is Only applicable to sfesfesiesie sk ke sfeosesk seosiestesieoske ke skeoskoske sfeoskeoskosk sk sk skeoskeoskeskeosk ldentlﬁed in sfeskesieskokokosieosk sk oskeoskoskokokoksk *' (*) R S

*kFkkkdkk  For Clariﬁcation purposes, seskoskoskok stk ok skoksokskokskokk
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Fsdokckokdokkokk ghall not include * ¥ % kHksk sskkstokstoksdokkk hich **%kkskkk kkdkkdkk ynder this Agreement for the *¥kksskksdok ok dokoskokok sokok dokoskok

Example 1: If there were [*** sfesfe st sie sfeske sk (*********) deskeokokotokokokok skotokokokoksdokok siolokskoksloksokokok 1 skokoskokskok ****’ then CSG WOuld provide q dksckskkdkok
sesksdokskokokokok skokokoksk skokokskoksok seksokskoksk skskokskokek Of$********** (********* destckckotokokkok Sokokokskokokolok Siolokekokerekekoiokek ¢ $******) Wthh Wlll be apphed as a

skeskokokoskoskosk skokoskoskoskokok skskskokoksk in the skeoskoskoskoskoskoskokok skokoskoskokosksk (i.e.’ the sk skokeoskokoskosksk skekokskskskosk in Wthh they are skoskeskokoskosksksk ko skokokokskskskoskok ***********) and
continuing each month at the same amount through the **#¥#s#kik k]

EXample 2: Ifthere were an [********** skskoskok skokeskokokosksk skekokskskskekok (*******) sfeskeoskeoskeoskoskoskokok skoskeoskokokoskoskoskosk skokoskoskekokskoskskoskok in skoskeoskokoskoskskoskok ****’ then CSG
WOuld prOVide qn Fekssksskksokok solokoslokslolskokok Skololoiololololok siolokolok skolololstolor skololoiolokok sokokolokok 0f$*>k******* (******* X $******) Wthh will be apphed as

a Stk kekokokskokok skekoekekok the sesksdeokokskok skokskok ok sk and seskskeokskokokoskok sk skekoksk skkokskok at the same amount through the seskoskokok ok sk ****, resulting in an
steskostokskokoskokok skolokokostoksoksior seokoelokskoiokoskok skelololesk skeloketoksiok seolkolokskorosk skekokskokok Of$**********]

CSG prOVideS Customer the [********** stesksdok ok skoksk skskokskok for the seskosdeoskoskostok ok skok seokskokskokskokok pursuant to the terms Ofthe sesksdeokskokskokok skok kskoksk entitled
cesfesiesfeostesk stk sfeokosioksk skoloksk skekokskokokokoksok stk siekotokestolkok skelololokskokokokoksk skok skolekoiokesioksk skelolkoslokskoiokokok skoelokoksokskor (CSG#*******) and Shall sekoskokokstoksk sksk skok skok

sfeskestesieshoreske sieskok sfeokoseokoskeokokoskok ****4 CSG shall have the rlght to stesfesfesiestesie seskeske sheoteskesfestesteosieskoieske sieskeotesteieskoteolesk skelelesteolke stesleosteolosloloskoiok siesletolololok skeloletoleostok seololokskor

stk ook skokok skeok ok skok ok the ddetokskokokokok okskokokkokskek Kokl 1 the event that Customer secksteokskoksk skok skdokskokskokokkok (aS steskosdeok stk skokokokok sk skok skokoksdokskok sokskokskokokkok
belOW) any COnneCted Subscribers. SuCh steskesteokosokskokok sksk skeskok soksokskoiokostoksk skoelokesoksokskok skokskokok skelokokostolkesoksk skelokoslokokok siolokoiokskok skelkekokskor Wlll be Calculated by
sfesfe sfe s sfe s sfe ke sk skesk the stesfestesiosok seskesokesek sk stk skl sfeokosoteskestoleostoleosor seoloskoiesteoiololole stekokoloskoksokoskokok at the time Of steshe sfe s sfe sk sfe sk sk ke sk by $****** and sfeskeskeokskeokeoskeosk seokosk
sesksdeokskokokoskok skokokoksoksk skskoksokskok sokskokskek skokokokokdokskoksk skskoksk sk soksokskokokskoksk skekokdokskokskok skokskoksk by SuCh amount sesksdokskoksk skekok skokskokokokokskoksk skok skkok

In the event this Agreement is terminated, except for the limited scenario in which CSG terminates this Agreement without cause prior to the expiration
of the [¥¥*¥**¥k* *x%*] Customer shall neither be entitled to a refund nor any further payment of the [**¥# ¥k sxskakxskahxsk skx%*] hecause it shall
not have met the conditions of this Agreement necessary to [¥##* ## skt stk kkk*] If CSG does terminate this Agreement without

cause prior to expiration of the Incentive Term, then, in addition to any other rights and remedies Customer may have for such termination, [*##¥**
skkokokosk sksk skoskokoeskskokoksk sk skok skekoekokoskosksk skoksksksksk as skeskokoskoskoskoskokoksk sk sksksk *********: the skskeskokokosk sksk skokoskoskokokokoskosk skeokokokskskekokok skekeskokokokskoskekoksk sk skoksk skekekok sksk

stesfe sfe sk sfesiesfe st sk steske e sk steske sfeskeskeoskeskok by $****** st sk sfe sk ske st sk sfeske sk by the sesteskotesieske shok stk setesoteosleostoleostok sk ekl skeleskeotolokokskok ****] subject to any limitations and
s

reductions as described above if [*## kst sekdoioacioioionk gre Hiior Aotk ook Seskiickisiok delortsiiicrtok Jevels corresponding with resulting levels at
each skoskoskokoskskoskoskokok skskskk at the skskokok sksk ***********]

15.CSG and Customer agree that Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection I. Processing, Subsection A. Video, High
Speed Data, and Residential Services section entitled Minimum Commitment shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced by
the following:

A.Video, High Speed Data, and Residential Voice Services

1. Minimum Commitment and Subsequent Term Minimum Commitment. Subject to section (i) Acquisition, and Divestiture described below,
CuStOIner haS agreed to process a [******* sfeskesiesieskok Of sfesie ke sk st sfe sfeskoskeoseske ki ke sk skeoseskesieskeosk skokeoskeseskesk fOr the period Of skeskesieskokosk sksk skoskeoskok through sfe sk sk ke sk sk skosk

bl
*%% kx%%  For the Subsequent Term, Customer has agreed to process a **¥¥# ¥k sikskick of dxskiowsiksk sokkxd* equal to the H¥xkkxksrsk dokxk

skskeoskoksksksk **********. Ifcustomer fails to aChieVe the skeoskesteostokokoskskoskok skokoskeosk skokokoskoskekok skokokokokokoskskskosk during the sfskeskoskoskoskoskoskokok ****’ Customer Shall pay
CSG an amount equal to (1) $****** sk sk sk sk sk sk skok ok by (11) the steoskeoskeoskoseoskoskokokeoskosk skokokoskoskosksk skok skoskosk skeskoskoskoskokokoskoskosk skoksksk skeskokosieoskoskosk skokoskoskeosk skokoskosk sk

cesesfeskstok sokskokok skekokok skekokokskoksk skekoksokskokskoksk *******”) SuCh seskosdeokoskoskok ok sk skkoksk skkokskokskok sokskokokoskokskok sk skskoksokskok Sha]] be invoiced no later than sokok
sesteskok sfeokeskotokostokosok ekl skelok stk skeleok sieokekotokekokskokrsk ****] and
5



Exhibit 10.26AW
paid in accordance with Section 5.2, "Invoices and Payment," of the Agreement and shall be in addition to any other amounts due pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Agreement.

i)Acquisition and Divestiture. Customer and CSG agree [**# ¥k koo koo ddsddkddrx®* shall be ********* in the case of an
FhdRRIRERE* of subscribers for whom CSG is providing Products and Services, *## ks sdxskoox ko sdoxskok sokskkkx* under another agreement

that are skoskeoskeosioskoskoskeoskokoskokosk sk skokokoskoskeskok skok skekok skekekekok skeksk skokoksk skekokoskoskoskskesk deﬁned in SeCtiOn 123 (a) and SuCh Subscribers are skskeskokoskoksk skeokokoksk skekokok
skeoskeoskeoskokoskoskoskosk skok skeskoskokokoskoskoskosk skeskoskoskoskoskokoskoskskosk The amount Ofthe ddckkckkokok ) the sk dkskoksok sokslok sokololslolok skolokoskokokokokokok Wlll be shoskeoskeokoskoskoskoskoskok sksk

seskoskoskok stk dokskok sokskokskok skokskokokkok (**%) sk sdeoksk skeokskoksk skek skelkokskokokskok skekoskoksokskokskokok at the tlme they are sesksdeokokokok skokekoksk skekoksk skekoksokskokskok as
sfesteskotosk stk sk steokostolkskokskokoskokok kekokoksk the seskosiokoskok sk solkosoksk skesoksokokoiok skoekoiolekok skelkoekokoskokskokrsk to stesk sk skokskok **’ ****’ and steskskokskok the result to the seokoskokok ok
sestekestokotokkokok skokolok sololokoslolosk skolokstokskokoRsdok The sfesiesteoske skt sk stesieske shesfesieske shestesiesteoiesek steokosteokoskokoskeoskoko sk Shall be Fkkdokk 1 the case of g F*Fkkkkkkdk of

sfeskoskokok ok skok ***********. The amount Ofthe stk stk ok skokok to the stesksdeokskokskokokosk shokokosk skokokskokskok steokskoksokskokok sk WIH be determined by sk skoskosk stk ok skok
sekskokosksk skokoskokokskok (**%) sk skl skelokskoksk skek skelokskokeskokokosk skokokoioksoksiokskok at the tlme that SuCh are sk seoksiokoskok sokoskoioksoksok sololokskokoskokoksok skokeloksk skeloksk

sfe sk sk st sk sfeske sk by the sesieseoteskeok shok seolkoskokosk siesleokosleolololol steolelolestok stelololokoiskeolok skl skelokoskekolkoskok **, ****’ and sfesiesteoste st s stesiesteoke sfesieske shetestestesieske skestesiesk shesteoke skeskeskeoleskoksk

11)[******** st sk sfe sk sk sfeske sk ********. Should Customer experience a sfesteskeostesesfeske stk sfeske sieskeostesieosieoke sk seokosk resulting il’l a sfese stesie stk sfeskeskeok sfeokskok Of ek sfeskosiok sfeokoskok
seskoskoskok stk dokskok sdokskokskoksk (**%) Of seskoskokoksteok ok steokosokskokskokokkok during any sesksdeokoskoskok ok ok sokskokskok (**) ek sk skkokskoksk Ofthe seksdeokokskok sk skkok sk (“********
sfeskeoskoskeosk stk sk skoskok sokoskokok skok ******”)’ Customer shall have a sekoskoskok ok sk skekokskok to seskeosteokskokskok skosketoksokskoksk skoekokskokskokok (defined as fOllOWS) Where the
sfesteseotesiestesieske skesfeske sfeskestesieske skl sleteskeostolestolkesletosk ks skeske skeske shetestesteosiestokskokskeok percent (**%) Ofthe stesestesiese shestesiesteoieske sieske shesfestestesiesieteskeok sheokeskeosteoskeskeoieoskokskok as Ofthe st sk sk sk sfe ke sk
ek seoksk skekokskokskokok skekokokskokskok stokskoksokskokokokok skekokokskok (“******** stesksdeok ook skok sk skokoskokokskok **********”) cesfeskosfeoskok stk sk skoskok ok skok ko2 shall mean
Customer may, seskskok skokskokskok skoksk **** seskstokskor soksk skelokskoksk sksk skeskokskokoskokokskokk b the seskoslokoskok skokskokokosk sk skl skelokekokokoiok skoekokoksolskok sokesokskokskokokok

sfe st sfe sk ske sfeske sfeske sk Customer is ************* sfe st sk st sk sfeoske sk to sfesteskeoteskeosteskeosk skeksk ******** stesfe stesiesfesiesfeske sk sfeskeskokeskeosk excludlng any sfesteskeosteseosteske sk sheskeseosteskeoskeok sk
seskoskoskok stk seokskok sokskokskok and sesksdokskokok skokokokskoksoksk skok skdokskokskokokokok ****, as long as SuCh sk skoskosk skeok ok ****** seskoskokskokok skskokokokokskok sk *, =I<>l=>l<>l<7 and

sekoskokok ok **’ ko (“******** steskosfeokskokosksk skokoksk ******”); prOVlded hOWCVer Sh()uld Customer seskoskotokstoksk skkok stelkeskoksk sketokskokskokek sksk skskoksk ********,
lt seskesteoiesk skl stk sfeskeofolestolkeosieok sk sfeslesteoleosloloskeok skoleske sielolesleok skl stk stk steskeoteoskeoskoleoskokskokskeok as lt iS a sfesiesteoskeskokeskeoske sheokeskeokosk to sfesiesteosteskeosteske sk sfeskeskeosteskeskeoke sk In the

event Customer exercises its ¥ ¥k s s ook skt Customer agrees to 1) *¥% * doxsdsdowdiox sk *+* (defined below) and ii) a
skoskeoskokokokosksk skokoskoskoskoskokok skekoskokokosksksksk skoksksk 1 skoskeoskokoskoskoskoskok skokoskoskokoskoskosksksk skoksk skekok].
, provided the 1:

Qu[HHR R R S R SRR SRR SRR oy st 1) @ FHRIEIRIGE Rk o ko
5
stk ok g el ok koo,
b.Customer exer(:lses the ** sk kok Tk R () sk of the *kksksk sk sk ok ok o
R R R SRR kiR g SRRk ik ek by providing CSG wrritten notice (¥R sk sk skt ok
A A S SRRSOk SRRSO OR R SRR SRR R
5
C.If the #ksksiokse ks pogy |t fp # %k ok koo sk (hsksksokok) skoskoksoksoR skl skl ol ok Cugtomer
. b

SR S SRR SR S SRR R S S ek SR () SRR SRR SRR . S R Sk Sk ok
HkE KKKk,

5
dssioRior sckirior ke provided in Schedule F s s st sk sofior sk sl ot sk gp ok koo ion ok
as provided in ¥#*E5E5% * g5 part of the **#*# itk sk ik,
e.CSG becomes the *### ks sk of sk kodok S R R Rk R ok R for al] ##*#kkkx
SRR SRR SRR Sl Skl ook ok skiolk kil provided that in the event FERERR sk ook ok ok ok %
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s
seckskeoksdok sk skok sktokskok steoksk skeloksokskoksk skskokskokokdokskoksk skskokskokokok shokekotokskoksk sk sk skokesk skeskokokokokskoksk skskok sk Ofthe sesksdeokskokoksk skokoksokskoksk skekoksdokskokskok
s
stesk skeskeokokostokskok stokosoksokskorskokok in seskstok sfokoskoksoksk (ll) seskostoksk skolokoskokskeokok skekotokostoksk skeloksokskorskokek in steskoskeokskokosk sk * Cesfesfeskoskokskok
*********/********** ******** > for Wthh the estskostokokokokoskoksk skolokskokokdokskokskok §1 SUCh Fkdkkkdk qra *** Fcdokcdokdok 11 the dkdkkkkk
steskoskok ok skok durlng the sk ook skokokok ******** sdokskok ******7 dedetokskokokokok ok Skolokskokokokok SiolelolokelokekoRk ek g Such *******7 and (111) seokok skskokskok
steskesteskosiok ok skokskokskokok or seskosk skokokskoroskokok skekokokostokskokskorsk as ek skekeok stekotokskokskok skoksk skskokskok.
>
£ eskskesiodokodok sokolok skl sololololololok Skolokstoksiokok skkok - Tha COkskoslkoiokokolok skokolokstokskok ok shall mean the sesfesfesiosioke sk skt sfefeskeosfeosiestolkeseok stekoskokoskokokeoskoksk
steskoskosk stk ok ok (******** ek seoksdokskok skok soksk skelokskoksk sksk skeloksokokokoksk skoekokskoksokskokskok as Ofthe desksk ckok skokok skekokoksokskok soksokskokskesk skokskokoksoksokskok
(based upon the ks ookl soloksiok ok okl solokokokskokok ********) Fak f the Fdddcksdoksokok skokockoksdoksdolok solokolok solsloksokkskokok 14 the
stecksteoksdokskok skokskokskokoksk skokokstoksokskoksk skekokskoskok ok ko (resulting Ceskesteoksok sokskokskokskokok *********”) sk ok skok stk ok ok by the sesksdokskoksokskok skok skoksk
steskesteskeosk skotokostoksokoskokosk skekokosk skekoiokoskolkosk skekokoskokskokskokosk as Ofthe end Ofthe steskesteoskostokskok sokoskokoskokoksk skoetokosoksokoskokoksk skokokeskoksk or stk sk sk stk sk skokskok in the
stesfestesieske sheotesiesteokesteieske skeosteokosoiske siesk sieslolkesleoieslolosk sk steoleoslolkoskoioskek shekosletolololosk sielolkeskoksk the sfesiesteosieshotesieske sheokeostesfeskeosteolesk skelelkesk skelekesteoksk sk sieslolksleolok siesleokokokololok
may stk sk to dedok kckok sockckokckolokok skokckskoiokekek okl {py kelokelok slelolelololek seloloiololoiololoiokek skoekokolkekokolkoiokek by the sesksdeokskok skok sdokskokskok skokskok skoksk
steskesteskosk skt stokseokskokokosk skokokoioksokskor solkoekokskolokosk skolekotolksoksioksk skelok solololskoiolkok skeokekotkoksokk through skskeskokokoksksk kok o skekeskk. and
5 s

The seskesfesie sfeske skt sefeskeoskeokoskokskok Shall be stesfesfesiesoiesieosk sk sfekesk siesleolkesteoieske ksl skeskeolesleok sfeoleoslolesleok shokeskeolokololoskor to sesiesteske sfesieske sheosfeoloskokoseokoskokok skokokok skeskeokokekolkosk
stk sk ook skokok ok as sesksdokskorskok skok sk oskelokskoksk sksk skekeok skekoekoksokskok sokskokskokoksk skokokstoksokskoksk skekokskokokskoksok seokskoksk sksk sketeok skokestokskoksk skslokskokskok skokoskokokdkok
steskesteskostokskokoskok seokoskokokstokskok sk (“******** steskesteoskosokskok skokskokoskokokskok ****”). The seskosteokskokokosk skokokokokstoksk skeloksokskokskosk skokskok shall be calculated as
the sfesiesteoteskeodke shok sfeokesoiosteoleskololosk skeloleostok sfeleotolkosor solkokokskeok to sesfestesie skt shefeskeosfesiesteoieseokesk sieskoieske sieskeotesleoteskok seteskeotoleostolkeoslokosk sieskokskok on the st sfeske sk sk sk ke sk
steskskeok ok ook sokskokskokokkok skokkokskok sk by the seskosdokokokok ko steokstokskoksk skskokskokokok skeokokokokskok stokeskoksokskokokoskok skekkok skekekoksoksokskok sokeskokokskok ok sk or
sfesteskosteosk ok sokoskokokosk skokok skekoiolkeskok stelokolosoksk skeloksiokokokoksok sk skelokskoksk skokokskokoskok ifelected Wlthl]’l the steskosteokskokskok sokskokoskokok sk skekoksk ******]

By way of example and for demonstrative purposes only (rounded):



[****** sfesfeskokoskeoskok sololkokoskolokokokokosk skolokokskok *******]

sekoksk skokorskoskoskokoksk skokoskskoskokokskskkok (******** skoskokokskoskokok

skeskokoskoskokor skoekokorosksksk skokskoskoioksk skokokskoskokokskokskok skokskok skokeskokskskskkoksk
**********]

[********* sk ki sk sk skokok sk ok *********]

st skoRsskskokok skolok sololololRokaRer koo skokok ok ook
R R SR G RR RE lok k
AR R ok o R ) ok Rk
R

[***** sheskeok sk skockokok ok *********]

[******** EEE LT TS ***]

skoskoskoskoskokosk skoskoskoskoskokosk skokokoskokoskosk skokokokokok skokoskosksk skokokok skosk skoskoskokoskoskok ok
**********]
[t st R SRR SRR S R K SRR |

[**** sfeskeotoskeoskoskokoskosk skeoskoskokokoskokokokok kokokokokok skoksk skl skokokokokskokokok
sfeskesk sk sk okok sk skoskok *********]

R |

stesteskeskoskoskoskokok skokoskokolokoksk skokokolokokolok skokokokokokokoksk skokokok skok skokokskok
******]

[

sksteskokoskoskokokok skokoskokokokskskokosk skok sk skokokskkok
[ ]
[

EEEEEE LS
[
[*********]

[**********]
**D

[**1%

[k

[******]
[******]

[k
[

**D
[*]
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[**% skskskokoskoskokokskoskokoksksk skokskskskok ***********]
[***** skkoksk *****]

skoskokokok sk (***** sk sieosteokokokokokoskolok siolokok siokokokolok
) Rk
(ko s sk soksokaR) ok kR R ook ko

$ seskokoksksk skokokok $****** stesteskosk sk skokokokok skokoskokokoskskokok
*****]

sesfeskokoskoskok skolokokskok skololokoskok stokokokoskokolkokokok skokolokoksk skskok

[ofsdr kot stk ook ok k]

[****** * kk ******]

[*** [ Rk skokskokokokok skokskskokokok skokskokokokok
sksdoskokoskoskokokosk sk ok skokokok skokoskoskokok sk kokok **********]

By way of example and for demonstrative purposes only if during the [####### sk ok dkxx4%] (rounded):



[tk stk ok kR ok Sk ]
R

skeskokoskoskokor skoekokorosksksk skokskoskoioksk skokokskoskokokskokskok skokskok skokeskokskskskkoksk
**********]

[********* sksfesfeosk sk sk skokoskok *********]

stk skeokskskskokok skokok skolololololololok stk skl skok slolok solokokokokokokoksk
SeotototookokoRoR ok Clokskokok sololok ook ok Rk sokokokokokok ook
[k sttt ok ok oo

[******** skoskoskok ok skockok ***]

[****** skskotoksksksk skokoskoskokskskskokoksk skokokskskk *******]

[tk skttt sk kobok otk ok R ok Sk k)
R
R |

stk oot koo ol SRR Sk ok ok 0k
[t kb ok R ]

[t sk kbR ok ]

[t s sk ittt st sk ool sk okl
]

[**********]

[*/*]
[*/*]

R Rk

[kt

[k
[

[
[kEE]

**]
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[0 3 sk ks stk ok ok ]

otttk R RRRokokok ok okokkoRRaRR Rk Kok skokok
ot ok sokskkokokokokolok olokoRRer skskskskskokok skolololookoRok
A ]

R
ook doloRsokskoR ok ok sk dokk)
skeskokskskok (***** * kk ******) skoskoskok sk sk skoskoskosk skoskokok
ok
G bk Gtk sk R
ok ]

[******* seskokoskskok skokokokskok sokokokskokoksksk sk skokokokskk kekok
Kk ******]

skoskoiokskoskokoksksk sk skokoskskokok skekokok sksk skoksk skokoksksk kok
stesteskeokoskoskeoskokokosk skeoskokokokosk skokokokokokokok sololokskolkokok skokoskok
******]

[ s sk sk

stk [ kskokokok skkookaok koo kR Rk Rk
R |

16.CSG and Customer agree that Schedule F of the Agreement shall be amended as set forth below in subsections 16. a.
through 16. j. effective January 1, 2022:

.

Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection 1. Processing, Subsection A. Video, High Speed Data, and Residential

Services, subsection i) Basic Services Charge (“BSC”) for Non-Rated Video, Non-Rated High-Speed Data and
Residential Voice Services (per Connected Subscriber) (Note 1) shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced by the

following:

i)Basic Services Charge (“BSC”) for Non-Rated Video, Non-Rated High-Speed Data and Residential Voice Services (per Connected
Subscriber) (Note 1). Customer shall pay CSG the BSC monthly calculated pursuant to the tiers in the table immediately below, which
corresponds to the total number of Connected Subscribers in such month.

BSC Rate Table



Exhibit 10.26AW

Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
Tier I Up to [¥#*******] Connected Subscribers [rorsk] A Rkl
Tier II [k (o Hkxkkxk**] Connected Subscribers [k ] ) k|
Tier 111 [FAHFHEHEEE o FF*AFEFEXE] Connected Subscribers it | Y ikl
Tier IV [********** to **********] Connected Subscribers [*******] $[******]
Tierv [********** to **********] Connected Subscribers [*******] $[******]
Tier VI [FHHHHAAHIIK (o kAR RE] Connected Subscribers [k ] Y Rkl
Tier VII [FHHHHAAIIK (o FkRARRAAREE] Connected Subscribers [k ] Y Rkl
Tier VIII [FHHHHAAIIK (o FkRAARAAREE] Connected Subscribers [k ] Y Rkl
Tier IX [k g kdkkxkkxkk] Connected Subscribers [k ] Y Rkl
TierX [********** to **********] Connected Subscribers [*******] $[******]
Tier XI [FrwsskxEk] and greater Connected Subscribers [#rk] R Rk

Note 1: These tiers are incremental and not cumulative, meaning the first [********* Connected Subscribers processed monthly will be billed at the **** * *¥**; the
next *¥*¥***¥x% Connected Subscribers processed monthly will be billed at the **** ** **** ‘otc For example, if there were **¥¥¥#k sksiink (Hoksdoiokkddrk)

Connected SubSCriberS in a Certain *****’ thel'l CSG W()uld inVOiCe $************ (********* X $****** 4 Rk ck Rk X $****** 4 Rk ck kR X $****** +
skesfeskokokoksk ok ok X $****** 4 ckskskskskokskkok X $******])

a.Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection I. Processing, Subsection A. Video, High Speed Data, and Residential
Services section entitled “The Monthly BSC for Video and High Speed Data, and Residential Voices Services includes the
following,” shall amended to include the following items and, thus, shall no longer be invoiced separately to Customer:

44 [rwssiorion sopionk ool kR S ok R ek S oo e Rl el o (R R
stk ok sokskok skokokoolok okokor sekskeieklolok skokok otk sototsssiioiokokok ok ook sotokokarasiioiololok kool ook siololololololololok ok soksaskskolok skok skokokokkokok
() s ok ook R oo R R R R o R R
deodok koo sokskkkokokok oloololok ok ekl skololok solololoolok ook kil siololololokokolok ook siolololololokoololoRok ook seleiolololok skoloolok ook ok skokekokokokok ok
R T L
dodokkRRRR Kk kKK

45 [rsitior sk solottor (il ool sk SR Sk ook oo ek (i ool sk SR S R () el ool ool koo
ook otk ok

46 [FHE (i) bk ok

47 FFFrE kR kakskoksorRaok RokoRkk ok RkaoRk sk Rk

48 FFFAE ok kR ARk Rk ok

4 ik sdpiiior otk (koo ook )

§()FkE Hkk kR Rk

S ko otk skl ook ool (o e el (o) Skl ool skt

5k sk ko ok Gl RR R R E )]




Exhibit 10.26AW

a.Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection I. Processing, Subsection A. Video, High Speed Data, and Residential
Services, subsection ii) PDB Access shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

i)PDB Access
Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
a.PDB Access Fee - fOr VidCO al’ld/Or [*** steskskeoskoskokoskok sk skokskoskoskokokokokkok (per skeskosfoskoskokokskok **********]) (NOte 1) [*******] $[******]
b.Configuration and Setup Fees [k sk [HHHH*]

Note 1: In addition to the PDB Access fees, as set forth in Section a of the above table, the existing BSC for Non-Rated Video, Non-Rated High-Speed Data and Residential
Voice Services will apply to the accounts associated with PDB Access.

b.Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection I. Processing, Subsection A. Video, High Speed Data, and Residential
Voice Services, Subsection v) Ancillary Residential Voice Services, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

v)Ancillary Residential Voice Services

| Description of Item/Unit of Measure | Frequency | Fee |
a.Third Party Communication Software for Voice Services (per [***#¥¥*¥xx% xx%*]) (required for Voice Services) [tk sokok] [eokskkdesokn ok sokk]
(Note 5)_
b.Customized Alternative Third-Party Voice Access Support Fee (Note 6) [k N ekl
c.New or Updates to Calling/Usage/Rating Plans (Note 1) [ FFxrkE ] [
d.Updates to existing Service Order Distribution and RDS Interfaces (per [****** per ****]) (Note 2) [FH* k] G ko]
e.Configuration Changes and Testing in relation to existing voice environments (per [**%¥¥¥ per **¥*]) (Note 2) [k k] G okokokkk]
f.MSAG Process
1.MSAG Process
.Setup, Verification, and Certification (Note 3) [ FHxrkE] Gkt
.Load OfMSAG Guide ﬁle (per [****, per sk skl skl skokeoleok skeoleokolok skokolkololokolokok skokokolokok skokolokok kokok (**) [*** *******] $******]
***x%%] provided in section h below)
2.MSAG Validation Support for all Customer Markets Launching ACP for Voice (per [***]) (Note 4) | ] iieeiaiaiekoll|
g.Vertex Tax Access (Sales and Use Tax) (Note 7)
1.Startup [ k] |
ACP Voice Support Fee (Note 8 [******* Fee sfeskoskok kol skok skokok *********: [*******] $[*********]

*SODI Maintenance (up to **%* () #¥ixkskikr)
=SODI Operations Support (up to *#% (¥) *¥**kkkkk)
“MSAG Suppon (up to skokokokok kR (**) skokskok sk lOadS)
*Automated Third Party Verification Maintenance (up to **%* () *¥¥#¥x&x%])
h.Voice Data Storage [FREE] ] il
i.CDR Repository Fee (Note 9) (Note 10) [k kE] Y Ikl
wHdkRR R Poo FHkkikir dak dakkkkkrx].
*CDR Repository Database Support (up to [¥** (¥) **¥*k***])
*CDR Production Support (up to [**¥¥kk sk (k) dxkkok])
*Processed Records-Gated & Filtered
*EPS Processing
Note 1: Quote relates to services requested by Customer beyond those provided in the initial installation.
Note 2: All updates to existing service order distribution and RDS interfaces and configuration changes and testing in relation to existing voice environments, the associated fees,
and applicable lead times shall be set forth in a mutually agreed upon Statement of Work.
Note 3: Relates to the setup and implementation of the MSAG process between CSG, Customer, and Customer’s chosen third party vendor.
Note 4: CSG will provide MSAG validation to Customer’s markets launching the CSG® ACP for voice address database.
Note 5: Notwithstanding Section 5.3 of the Agreement, Third Party Communication Software for Voice Services shall not be subject to fee increases per third party vendor
agreements beyond those applicable under Section 5.3 of the Agreement.
Note 6: Support Fee includes troubleshooting of issues related to this custom configuration in conjunction with Customer and the third party vendor including one or all of the
third party locations ([**#*#*#* gn( ***kkkkk4])
Note 7: Customer is responsible for third party vendor agreement and any associated fees.
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Note 8: The Services comprising the ACP Voice Support Fee shall continue to be subject to the parameters, capacity and terms of use provided in the Agreement for the
provision and use of such Services to Customer. In the event Customer requests use of the Services beyond the parameters, capacity or terms of use provided in the Agreement
or additional items or changes are requested by the Customer to the Services listed within section 5.h. provided as part of the “[*### ¥ dxk sk dox dokxxddksr*]” within
the table above, Services shall be made available pursuant to a mutually agreed upon Statement of Work and amendment to the Agreement. Reimbursable Expenses are
additional.
Note 9: The Services comprising the CDR Repository Fee shall continue to be subject to the parameters, capacity and terms of use provided in the Agreement for the provision
and use of such Services to Customer. In the event Customer requests use of the Services beyond the parameters, capacity or terms of use provided in the Agreement or
additional items or changes are requested by the Customer to the Services listed within section 5.j. provided as part of the “[ ¥k sk sokoirsior sk Fdokdokxx*%]” within the
table above, Services shall be made available pursuant to a mutually agreed upon Statement of Work and amendment to the Agreement. Reimbursable Expenses are additional.
Note 10: [*******] CDR Processing Fee includes records usage processing for up to [¥*### ok ook soksdion stk sokdokodok xxs® and ***** to the CDR Repository
per ¥****] Customer will be invoiced $[****** per ****** in the event Customer’s *¥¥¥# ¥k sk jpy g Hkskadok sk doxcdokdok dokoxsdd**] in accordance with terms
and conditions of the Agreement.

c.Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection II. Interfaces, Subsection C. CSG SmartLink® BOS (SLBOS) and Event
Notification Interfaces (ENI) (Note 1) (excluding subsequent notes), shall be amended to delete and replace subsection 4 as
follows:

C.CSG SmartLink® BOS (SLBOS) and Event Notification Interfaces (ENI) (Note 1)

Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
1.Installation and Startup (Note 2) [ ko] [H*]
2.Interface Development and Technical Services (Note 3) [ ko] [FHrx]
3.Interface Certification Services for Non-Supported Third Party Applications (per ***********xx) (Note 4) [ k] [FHHxx]
Processing Capacity Tiers
4.SLBOS and ENI Transactions per Second ("TPS") (Notes 5-8) Frequency Fee
a.Processing Level Phases
i.Initial Transition Phase: Supporting up to [*****] [HeEE] N e |
ii.Final Transition Phase: Supporting up to [***%%*] [rEE] b R |
b.Additional TPS (per [*¥*##*##%k%%] TPS) (Note 9) [k G HkHRR K]

Note 1: CSG will support only the current release plus the three (3) prior releases of SLBOS at any given time as such versions are defined by CSG, in its sole discretion. If
Customer desires to continue maintenance coverage and CSG support, Customer shall be required to upgrade its production version of SLBOS, so as to maintain currency
within its application and ensure CSG’s ability to support Customer’s version of the interface.

Note 2: All installation and startup services and the associated fees shall be set forth in a mutually agreed upon Statement of Work.

Note 3: [*****] relates to interface development services and technical services requested by Customer relating to the client side integration of Customer’s third party
applications. All interface development services and Technical Services and the associated fees shall be set forth in a mutually agreed upon Statement of Work.

Note 4: Any interfaces, accomplished by Customer through any allowable and available SLBOS API and/or ENI API, must be certified by CSG prior to integration of such
interfaces. The standard interface certification services shall be quoted using a [*¥*# ik (k) sk pop dkdkdddttdt*  Additional fees will be charged to **** ¥+
skskk ***********(S) intO seskoskosk skokoskoskoskokoskokok ok ***********; SLlCh hOurS can alSO be sockokokok skokoksk skokosk skolkokok skokokokskokkok (*****) sokkoskok Of skeokoskokoskoskokskok skokokskokokokok and/or

kol dottiok otk otkolok skl ootttk (ko) sk of doklelektark skl referenced in Section 3.2 of the Agreement. The fees set forth above for interface
certification ** *** #****4*] any Technical Services that may be requested by Customer in relation to the client side integration of Customer’s third party applications.
Any services in relation to the client side integration of third party applications and the associated fees shall be set forth in a mutually agreed upon Statement of Work. CSG
will not unreasonably withhold certification of any interface.

Note 5: CSG agrees to Support a [********** siesiesk sieoskeoskokokokokokoskok skolkokokok approach in relation to Customer’s s sk skokoskoskok *********/********** e sk skoskosk sk kok as prOVidCd by
skesksfeokokokksk ok SCCtiOn *_ (*) sfeskeskok ok skoskokokok ********_ Addltlonally, Customer haS the skeskeskoloksk ko skolkokoksk skok Sskolokok kol skolok skololokok siokokskekokolololor skelokololoiorskokoek skekokolok skelololor at skokok

kAR Rk kxSl okl ok upon Customer providing CSG with **¥¥¥% (k%) **** prior notice (e-mail shall suffice). CSG will begin invoicing
Customer for the sfeskeosiesieste kst steoskokoskokokokok stolkokokokololokolol skeolololeok sioleokolole skolololeololole skok sielok stekoiolokokorosk in the e sfe skeoskeoske sk skoske sk sk kol sk skokok following the sesfesk skl skl skl sokololokoiok skokokolokoskokok

*xxxxxx Customer will then continue to be invoiced for the *¥¥ ¥ #kskkddddodk skkdk through the *¥¥*¥#*4k dkdidk 4ok ik *k4* For clarification purposes, once at the
seskskokok skokokokokokskskok ok *****, Customer skeskok skokok skkokskokok skl skokok skokokekokokok skolkokokokskoskokokok *****. As part Ofthe skeokokokoksk skoksk skokokskskoskskokokok ******’ CSG has agreed to provide
customer W]th a sfeskoieosteostokok sfekokololok skoleok skolek siolekolololeok sieoleokololokolololok skolokokok (“***** 3fe sfe sk e sk sfe skosksiesk ******”). Such sfesteoskesteste sk stk kol steokokosk skokokoskokok iS Outlined in the sesfeskokoske skokskokok
and Wlll be siesteokostosiokor sk skoleok siololok skoelolololokok siolok siolololololok sielolololololokokok skolololok skololokololok siolokokoiolkok siolkok skok ******‘ For clariﬁcation purposes’ the methodology fOr measuring
steskesfeskokokokok 3k skokokoksk Skokok Skokokoskskokskokokok skolokoksksk Wlll apply steskosfokoskokokokokok skoksk skokskokoskok skek skokekokolololoRk Skok kel & *****. For further Clariﬁcation’ steskoskeoskokokoskskokok skoksk skokskskok Wlll
COntinue to be invoiced as applicable seskoskoskokoskokoskokok skolkok skolokoloksk slok skelolokolokskokskok skok siolokolokskokoskolok kol (********* sk skokskoksokokokokk Skt *]).
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Fededkddedhddk Hdkdkdk I*********/***** I***** wedkdedkhddhdh whkdkndk
sctsoRkoR fokoRko [ ek kR ok ok ok Gk [k
eskeoskokok *****] */*/**** sfesteskosiesiekok siekokokolokokolok siololokokok ok ****] */*]

Note 6: Customer’s SLBOS TPS prOCeSSing Wlll be [******** seskok skokokokokokoksk skok sk skokokokokokskokok skokokoskokokokok skokokksk at the seokok skok skoksk skokokskokok Of*****, ****’ seckokokokskokokok and

AR of ach FHFF ARk A Aok (op Ak HaHIAHAIAIE AAAK) of the Agreement and the Transition Assistance Period. For the purpose of determining the ***
seskoskeoskoko ok skokosk skokokokok koskok skokok ok skok to the seskokok skokokskokkokok *******, the skeskoskokoskokosk skokokoskok skoskok skoskokoskokoskoskokoskokok ok (as measured sekoskokokok skokok dekdek % *****) on seskeokok (*) skoskosk ok skok sk ok

sHokkok for skokskok skok skoksk skokokskok (*) sk skoskosk ok Ofthe then_ending skoskoskoskok ko Wlll be skkoskokoskoskoksk skok skokokskoksk sk skokskok skk skokokskokskok (**) sk sfok skosk sk ok (the Cesfesksokskokoskskok skokok skokokoskoskokskokkokk
****”)‘ CSG sha” provide a copy Ofthe sfe st skeoske st skokosieske skeoskosteoskokoskokokoksiok skelokok to Customer no latel‘ than the e sfeskokok (*th) sfesfeskokoskeoskokok skekok ofthe siesfesteoskeoske steoskoskosteoskokoskoskokokoske skolkokokokoskosiok ok
siekok sekok ek siolok siololokoiolokok siokokokolokok The sfesteokosiosieok skokok Value on the sesteskoiosteostokokoke ook skolkokokokokolokokokok skokokok (“*********** seskeok *****”) Wlll be the sk Value used to detemline
the skkosk skokoskokoskoskokskok sk skokskokok skokokskokoskokokskok skekolokosk skokoskoksoksk skoksk skolkok skokokosk skokoskokoskokoksk skokskokskokk (“*** ***”)_ CSG Wlll begin iHVOiCng Customer fOr the skoksk ok in the kokoskok sk
sk kot kR sk sk sk kR sk skl For clarification purposes, ¥R ks gha] ok ke sk sk sk sk skokkiokkok of the %k sk ok ok
sfeskeoieosteste siokotokokolokokolkok kol sek skoleokok selok slekololok as prescribed by the sfeskoieosteosteokoiosiokok seolokolole skolololkok Slok sedesest e skolkoslolokokolokok *****]

Note 7: TPS [****** measurements will consist of average measurements taken over **¥%% (¥¥) ****x* jnteryals. The ****** interval will be calculated from :** to :**
each **** (e.g., from **:¥* to **:**)  During any *** (*) **** period, the total number of transactions will be counted and then be divided by **##* #xkskoksk Hkk

FokAARAK (RHAEX) to create the *¥**¥***] TPS measurements.
Note 8: SLBOS “[********” Shall include any st skeosiesteosteokoioske skokokokokokolokokokok skololok sioke skoelolololololokok siok sioke kol sioloiololok ek siololololololor siololok siololololor sk skolololokololok sioke sk siolokoiok skokokolok

steskosfeskoskokokokokokok  skokokskokokokokok skokolokokskokokoskokoiok skolokokskokokokolok Wlth (1) seskok skokoskokok skokokokok skokokokskokoskokokokokk (11) sk sk skokokokok skokokok (111) any stesksk skekoskokskokokok skok sokolokokoskskok skokokokok skokokokok
> 5 >
sk skokokokoskokskokokoskok skokokoskokoskokokoskoksk skokoskok skokolkoksk skoksk skokskolokoskoksk skok ********’ unless noted Otherwise or (lV) sheskoskokoskokokoskokskokosk sokokokokskokskokok skokoksk skoksk skokskok ***********'

Note 9: CSG agrees to provide Customer with a ####### skt stk of Grittrs por TPS until the *####k% of f) kit (4o skt stk the sk ok g
R R g jdentified in FRFEERER K Section *, (*) FHRERRR R skl o i) o ok k]

d.Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection II1. Payment Procurement, Subsection A. Direct Solutions, Subsection 2.
Statement Processing (excluding subsequent notes), shall be amended to delete and replace subsections a and b as follows:

A.Direct Solutions (Print and Mail)_
| Description of Item/Unit of Measure | Frequency ] Fee ]
2. Statement Processing (Note 32)

a.First Physical Page (Duplex, Black Print Only). Includes laser imaging, mail handling and | M el
automated insertion of statement page and remittance envelope (if any). Excludes Materials and postage
(per [*********, per sfe sk ks siek *********])'

b.Additional Physical Page (Duplex, Black Print Only). Includes laser imaging and automated | N Kol
insertion of statement page. Excludes Materials (per [**¥¥ ¥k sk ' por ko sokdikixk4x]). (Note
5)

e.Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection II1. Payment Procurement, Subsection A. Direct Solutions, Subsection 3.
SmartColor Printing (excluding subsequent notes), shall be amended to delete and replace subsection b as follows:

A.Direct Solutions (Print and Mail)_
| Description of Item/Unit of Measure | Frequency | Fee |
3.SmartColor Printing

b.Print Processing Fee - up to and including twenty percent (20%) ink saturation (per [*******%*
**%%7]) (Note 10)

[*******] $[******]

f.Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection II1. Payment Procurement, Subsection A. Direct Solutions, Subsection 8.
Materials (excluding subsequent notes), shall be amended to delete and replace subsection a as follows:

A.Direct Solutions (Print and Mail)_



Exhibit 10.26AW

Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee

8.Materials (Note 32)
a.Paper — 20# or 24# Plain White, with or without perforation*
1.Connected Subscribers
2.Non-ACP Subscribers [r] Y ekl

* CSG haS Communicated and Customer aCknOWledgeS CSG Wlll inCur [********** skesfokok skokok skok skok skokskokoskokolok skok skekokokokokokokosk siekokokokok skekok skekolok skekolokokskoksk ****_ Asa
result’ CSG and Customer agree and acknowledge the seskeosieoskok sioskokoskokokok skokolokokolokok skok solokok skokokokskokskokok are Subject to sekok skokokok skokolok skokokoskokskokok during the seskeskosk sk skok skokokok
**%% through the * ek *xx Aickieieiikk] - CSG shall provide Customer any revised pricing consistent with and as provided in Section 5.3 Adjustment to Fees.

g.Schedule F, Section 1. CSG Services, Subsection V. Advanced Reporting, Subsection A. CSG Vantage shall be amended to
deleted and replace subsections 1 and 2 as follows:

A.CSG Vantage®
Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
1.Vantage User Access (per [*#¥% #/x#sxwix%]) (Notes 6-9) [k k] Y R
2.Vantage User Maintenance (per [**#* *¥/*¥%%%%%%]) (Notes 6-9) [ M e |

Note 6: Includes delivery of Third Party Software required to access the Vantage database.
Note 7: A Vantage User ID may include [*** (*) or e sfe skoskoske sk skok ********. FOr example’ a ko (**) sfe sk ks ik ok User ID lnay Submit up to sksfesk (**) sfe skeosesfe st skeoke s sk sk sk stk sk skeoskokoskeoskok
under a sfeskeosieosteoskok sieokokokokokok Skokolok **]

Note 8: Vantage User ID and Vantage User Maintenance will [¥** be subject to the *##### ¥ skt pyrsuant to Section ***] of the Agreement.
Note 9: CSG agrees to prOVide Customer as [**** sk skoksk skoksk skoksk (*) sekosk skokokokokskok skokokosk slokoskokokosk skoksk skokskokskokokskokskok for sockokskok skokoksk skokokokokskoksk skokokokok skolkoksiokskok skokokokskok_kokoksk

sfe sfe skosieosie sk sk she sk skoskeosieoskokoskoske ksl sk koikokokokskosiok (*****) (per sesieskok **/per *******) (******** siesieskokosiosiekok siek siolokokok sokokolok siolokokokolokosk required to sesfeskosiosiosk siosleske siokolokoiolok siolokokoskolokok A
Vantage User ID may kkkk ok (F) op Fkkkkik skl k- For example, a ok (k) skokkotkok ook ko okl ok may submit up to ok () skl okl kol ok

. s
under a **FFFE HHdkAkx dkxx *x]) If Customer desires additional Vantage User ID/Sessions in excess of such permitted ratio, Customer may purchase such additional User
ID/Sessions in accordance with the fees set forth in Sections 1 and 2 of the table above.

h.Schedule F, Section 2. CSG Products, Subsection I. Call Center shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced by the
following:

I.Call Center
Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
A.ACSR with ACSR Module of High Speed Data, Order Workflow, CIT and Third Party Software [k k] Quote based on
5[****** kkk ****]
B.ACSR Remote Server Configuration, Software Installation, and Testing (per [******]) [k k] Quote based on
G ok kR ]
C.ACSR (Web-Enabled) Installation (per [****]) (Note 2) [k k] Quote based on
G ek ke ]

Note 1: Includes CSG’s standard installation services.
Note 2: ACSR (web enabled) installation services fees shall be capped at $[*#** ik pep sk (pop %k ikikk])

17.CSG and Customer agree to amend Schedule H, EXHIBIT H.5 — SERVICE LEVELS, by deleting H.5 in its entirety and
replacing it with Exhibit A which is attached hereto and hereby incorporated by this reference effective December 1, 2021.

18.CSG and Customer agree and acknowledge in order for Customer to meet the Subsequent Term Minimum Commitment,
Customer will need to convert additional subscribers as outlined in Section 3. Conversions for Subsequent Term Minimum
Commitment which shall be added to Schedule G, STANDARD IMPLEMENTATION AND CONVERSION SERVICES, as

follows:
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3. Conversions for Subsequent Term Minimum Commitment.

(a) Account Migration/Conversion Schedule. CSG and Customer agree to the conversion of subscribers, pursuant to a
duly executed Statement of Work, onto the CSG platform in the amounts, time frames and for the sites as provided below
which will result in additional Connected Subscribers:

B ORISR
ThXRRTRTRTR Tk
[ s s ek
R KRR
[k sk sk sk | [k sk sk | [ /% k%) Seokokok ok dokokk
Additional Connected Subscribers* |[PRAFRFAFIRS

**The [****** seskokosksk skokokokskskokskoksk skekok skeok skolokokskokoksksk ksk skkok (*) Or FFF K ks kokkoksdokdkok ok ok dokskokoksk kokokskok G kool ok ****, however *¥% F#ddkk stk

dokkkkkkkkkk gre to he FRkKEEEK ok kokk ok skkkk *****] Additional fees may apply to suppon [*** (*) Or F¥kk wkkckskokskokkok sokskokskk dokokokk kkk *******, but not
be limited to *##dkskskstdkkdkok sk ookt dok ook dolokokoroododolkok sk skokokoioskodok solokokokodololok sokdRelokk g d Rk *********]
. .

*Conversion or migration of a subscriber shall be [*#* %% ks sokior sk stk stk g drkkbiok sokddokrrtks* ag defined in the Agreement.
Represents Subscriber counts as Of seokskok *’ ****. In the event Customer sekosfeokskok sk soksoksokskoksoksk skokok skekok skeokskokslokskokskok ok skeloksokskokskok sk ***********, the Pal‘ties
agree to seskosioksk shokoskok sokekok skeleoksfor stolokolokolokolkokokorsk to sfesfesiesieoskeosiokosieok ok sheokoleokosle sielok skoeloksorsoksoksle skl seolololok siololor seloeloloelolololololoek sioksk siok soksioksk sk sokskok *********, hOWeVer

A A R IR ok okl dololor sororolaiors k] to this Agreement unless this Agreement otherwise requires.

(b) [********** *****. ek skokok skoskckokok ko oskoeckokokok skesk skokok skoskokokokokoskockokok skoskokokokokoksk skokokokoskskokok ksk skokokokoskoskok *(*) seckokokoksk skok kok
seseckoskokok sksk sk skokokoskokok okok skokokokokoskockokokok skeskoskokokoksk sk skokkeskockokok kek skokok (“********** *****”)* sesksk skokok skokokokokoskskok *****: (*)
skeskoskoskokokoskoskosk skok skeskoskokokokoskeokoskokok skeskokokokokokoskoskok skoekeskeskosk skokesk shelkokokokesk skok skekeskoskosk skekeskeskokokorsk skelolkokokoskosk skokokekeskoskokokosk sk skekeskeskokokokokesk
seseskockokok skoskockokokokokoskokok keokoskockokok skeskockokokokosk skokok kokeskokokokok skeckokok skeokockokokokoksk skok skokosk skokokokoskoskokokokok skockokokkokoskck skokk skockok kokoskockokok
sesfeskoskokokokosk skok okokosk skokokokosksk skok keskoskokok skeskoskokokokokosk skokokokokeoskosk skokokeoskoskokokokosk skoskok skeokeoskoskokokokokosk skokokeokeoskosk skokokeoskoskoskokokokosk skokokokoskosk skokokokeskoskok
deskeck ckokokokockokok cskkoskek skokokoskekokokok skck ckokok skekokokokokskoeckokok ckkeckokokokoksk ckokok skkck ckokokkoskok skokokoskekokok skekockok skk skekokok skskoskokokokokokekok skekkekok
seskesk skokokoskoskoskokokokoskoskoskokok skeskoskokokokokosk skokokokosk skokokokokoskoskok kok skoelkokoioteskosk skl skeskokokokoskoskoskokok steskoskokokokoteoskosk skokokeskosk skokokoskoskoskok skokesk skokokokeskoskoskokok
deseskokokoskokosk skokokokoskoskokokok skskookok skokeoskockokokokk skokokokokosksk skokokokoskokok skokeoskokokokokk skokokokk skokok skokoskekokokok skeckok skokokockokokokokokok skokokokskckokokk skekokokok
ek skokok skeskoskokokokoskokoskok skokoskoeskokokokoksk skokokokosk skokokokoskekoskok skekesk skekokoksk skokokokeskoskokok skeskesk skeokokoskesksk
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dokok dokokk ok skakokoksk ok ok ckokskekokokkoloksk dokskaokokskokok skaokokskakokokkok sk ok sokskaolokskokok kokok sk skokakok skakokoksk dokok okokskokokokkokok

seseskoskok skokoskockokokokoskoskokokok skeskockokok skeskockok skokokoskok skok skeskokokok skeskokokokokoskockokokok skoskockok skokesk skokokokeoskoskokok skeskosk skokok skoskokok skeskeskokokokokoskoskok
sestesieoskoskoskoskosk shesk stttk skeskosk skekokeskoskeskeotetok sieokoskololkosk skesk sk sestesteototeoieoieokolkok skeskeskeskesk stk sieokesk skl steokeoteoiesk skesk shesleskoskeslestesteotokeok skekeskeskesk sk
seskesk skokokokoskoskokokokosk skokokokokoskoskok skokeosk skokok skeskokokokokoskoskosk skokeotesksk skokokoskosksk skok skeskokokok skeskokokokokesk skokokokosk skoskok skesk skokokokoskeskoskokokok sk
deskeockokokokokoskokok skokskoskokok  keckoekokokokkosk ckokokoksk ckokokok skekokokok skeckok skok skckokokokkoskeckok skok skoekok skokeskoekokokokksk skok cskkockeckokokoksk skekokokk skekok
steskeoskoskokoskoskeoskoskosk skokeskoskoskokokokoskosk skokokeokoskoskoskokosk sksk skokokesk skokokokoskokokokokokokosk skokokosk skl skekeskokokok skesk skekokok sk skeokeok skekokokokokoskoskokok skekeskokokok skeskosk
seskskokokoksk skok skokosk skoekokokokoskoskokokok skckockokokokoksk skokoksk skook skokoskoskockokokokokckokok skk skokok skkeskockokokok skek skok skeoskockokokokokoskockokok skskockokokk skeskokoksk kek
seskeoskoskokokoskoskosksk skok skesk skokokoskeskosk skokekeskokokok skeskosk skokokesk skolokokeskekoskokok skesk skolkokokoskesk skokok skeskokokor skeskolok skekeskoololkokekesk sk skekeskokokorosk skeskokokokoskeskosk

By way Ofexample, [** skok o oskok skeoskokokokokoskoskokok kokoskok skokok skokokok skeskokok kokesksk ko skeskockok skokosk skokokok skook skokeok skokokokok sksk skokokeskoskokok skeskoskok
sestesiesieosieoskosk sksk sheskosk seteoteoteoieokosk skelokokoskeskokosk etk sioleokolokokesk sk seteoteoteoiesioliosk skesk sk sesteosteoteoiesieosioloslok sheskoskeskeotestetoteok sioleoskesk skeskeskoskeseokek skokosk
seskoskokokokoskoskoskok skokeoskosk skokokeoskoskokok skekoskokokokokokosksk skokosk skokok skekeskokokokokoskosksk skokeokosk skokokokokoskokokokosk skokokok ekl skl skekokokokoskosksk skok skeskokok skekeskeskok
Aeskockokokosk skokok skokoskoeckokokokoksk skokokokosk ckokokokkockok  skokoskoeckokokokok skck skokok skoekokokok skoekokokokkockok skokokosk skokokokokockokokokk skekok skokskoeckokokokksk skokokk skekok
seskockokokokokoskookok skkosk skokok skeskokokokokokockokok skeokoskock skokokokockokokokokosk skokokok skeckokok sksk skokokokokockokok skk skockokok skeskockok skok skoekokokokokoskokok skk skokokokokosksk
seskoskoskokokoskoskosk skokoskeskosk skokokoskeskokokokokosk skok skekeskokokokok skeskokokorskekesk skokokeskoskosk skokekesk skokokoskoskosk siokokoskoskokokokoskeskoskosk (***** skeskoskoskosko sk skoskoskoskokok skesk

AnOther eXample iS 1f1t iS [********** sestestesk skokosk skockoskosk skl steokeokok skeok skeskeskesk sk steoteokeokolkeolokosk skl seteoteoieokokosk skesk skeskesk sekeoteokokoskosk
seskoskokokokoskosk skokokok skokokokokosksk skok skeskoskokokokokosk skok skokesk skokokokoskoskokokokok skokokokokeoskoskoskok skokesksk skok sk skokokokokesk skok kekesksk skokokoskosk skokokokoskoskok kk skoekokokok
Aeskockok skokoskokokokosk skockokokokokoskockokok skk skokokokokoskokokokokkoskok skokk sk oskokokokoskokok skokoskockokokokkokok skokoksk skokokokokoskeokokokk skckokok skk ckokokokkoskok skokok skekokokk
seskoskoskokokosksk skok skekesk skokokoskesk skokokokoskoskoskok skeskoskosk skokoskeskoskokokokoskoskosk skokek skekolkokokeskoskoskosk skekesksk skoksk skokolkokokosk skelkokokesk skekokokosk skeskokok skek skek skekeskeskekskok
stestesieosioskoskoskoskoskoskoskoskosk stk skeok skekokoskoskeskoskeskekokokok ************) sesestesk sk skokokokoskoskeskoskoskok stokokok skekolokoskoskesk setototokokokokoskosk skekeskesk ek

sesteskeoskoskosk skoskoskoskosk *****)* sestesieoskeoskeoskoskoskeosk sk sk steokeskeoskeosloskoskosk sheskoskestesteteoteoiesieske skeskeskeske shesesestestoteke siolkeskeoskoskeoskeskoskeskosk sk sieokesieosteoskeskoskeoskeskoskeskeokeok koo sk
seskoskokokokosk skokokokoskoskoskokokok skeskokok skekoskokokokokokoskosk skokokesk skok kekeskokok skekesk skokokokesk skokok skeskokokokokoskoskokokokokeosk siokokokekoskoskokosk skeskoskok skoteskoskokok kkesk
seskoskok skksk skokokskosksk *****)* seskskokokoskoskoskokok sksk skokok kekokolkokokokoskoskosk skokekeskoskok skkesk skokok skeskokok skeokeskokokokokokoskosk skokokeskoskoskokok skeskokokok skesksk
Aeskockokokokosk skokok skosk skokok skeoskeskokokokok skookok skeokoskockokokokokoskockok skokoskockokokokokosk skokokok skockokokokokoskockokok sksksk skokok skeskokokokokosk skokokoksk skokokokoksk skok koskskokokokok
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For clarification purposes, [**## #iik sk sk skt ok soooior ool sololoooior o solooooor oo

(C) [****7‘:*7‘:* Thhhfdhhhd Thdkkn ckck ckokok skoekokokok skekok skokesk skokokokokokoskok skeokeskoskokokok skeskosk skokoskeskosk skok skeskokokokokeoskoskoskok skesk sk skokokeskoskoskokokokosk

Aeskokokok skskok skokok skoekokokokosksk skokokokockok skokkoskck sk skokoskoekokokoksk shokokokokockockokok skokockokokokoksk skok skokeskoeckokokok skeckokok skokeoskockokokokokoskok skokokskokok

seskoskoskokoskoskosk sk skeskoskokokoskosk skokokosk sksk skokekeskoskokokokosk skesk skekesk skekokokoskesk skokokosk shelolkokokeskoskokok skekoskokokorskekoskokok skeskesk skokok skeskokoskokskesk sk skekesk skokek

deskockokok skoskockok skokoskoeckokokokoksk skok skeokeoskockokokok skockockokokokosksk skokok skeckokokokokoskockokok sksk shokokokokoskockokokok skck skokokeoskoskokokok skeckok skokokosksk skokokokskokokokoksksk  kok
etk skokoskoksk sksk sk skokokokokokok skekoskeskoskokok sk skekololokoskosk sk steolokeokokololkosk skeskeskoslkeoteotok siokosk skoelololokoskesk seteoteotokoskok skl skl skeokosksk
seskoskokokokoskosksk skok skeskok skokeosk skokokokok skoskokok skeskoskokokokokosksk skok skeskokokokokosk shokokokokoskskok skokosk skokokokoskoskokokokok sksk skokeokoskoskokokokoko sk sk skeokeskoskokokokokosk skokok

deskokokokokosk ckokokok skekokokokokoskek ckokkokockokokok sk ckokokokokskek ckok skskek skokokokock skokokokockokokokk skekokokokkoskek skok skekekokok skskoekokokok skeckokokokkskekokok skkskekokokkok

seskoskokok skoskokokokokosk skok skeokeskoskokokok skeskokokok skeskokokokokksk skokokosk shokokokokosksk skokokoskosk skokokekoskoskokokok sk skokokokeskoskoskokokokosk skokokokokoskoskok skk skoskok skekeskosk

19-CSG and Customer agree the [***** Kkdkkdt ****’ as deﬁned by each ke Tk kb nd *****, Shall be fdhdhkdbhk dkk
Thfehdhdd Kk Kdhhhdhdh K XA NhATN ShF XA NhET Nk With the TRTXXIL TXXXXXTXXT00 XXX hETNh Hdd TXdhd FXdd A hd it nt (‘k*)

kddkkd for wkdkkkhdb kbt kbt Of wekdkk wkdkhd *******. Such Kdkdkkdd kkdkdn Shall fekdkkkdd kb khd dkkd With the

Tdhfehdk dhhd bk Khdhk kdhh Khhhhd Nk %k In the event ThfhdhThd AhbhhThdddt & HXdhd XX XA XX AN AL NAETL XA N or

Tedefedheded hhdd fohd hdhhdfhdfh fhdhhdk pl‘OVlded pursuant to the Fededd hdhhdhkn ***’ Fedhedddhd ek dhdhdd hdk hdhfhddhdh vk

kk hfkhb kb k and Fhd Tkhd Ak kAR AL AN KhXk Kk ANk kANt or the Fhdd Thhd Thhhh Xk Nhd L AhhhNk Kk vk k%

LR R R o *‘k*‘k***. In the event Tk hhddh Kk hh Nt a Fedededed hdhh kdhfehddhdh kdd xhdhhd v kdhhd hhkdd ek ki

kdkdhhdb ok d kbbb bk vk pl‘OVlded in the khdhkd ekt ***, the Thdhh bk bd Lhdbkk Kk hdk kd Fkkd *****].

whkdwhk

P A
Sk Fekdddkk Tk kkk dkkok Sk kR Rk kR R RR
Item [Fsssinsn sk wnik] ) SRRSO S [Fss sk i) G|
stk gokskRkk kR kR ok ok
ok CSG doc no. [*¥**** & ) Rk
] ) KRR i Y Rk k| Gk kK]
CSG doc no. [*###%*] ) KRRk Y Rk k| Gk kK]
[t ook skt ok CSG doc no. [*#*##*] ) k| ) Rkl Pk k] ) Rk
Total L s i | Y sy Y e ) ey

20.CSG and Customer agree to work in good faith to execute an Amended and Restated
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Agreement within [ s s (i) dayg of eX i of ghe ki sk k]

21.Pursuant to Section [***** Customer and CSG have mutually agreed to a **¥¥¥*%¥¥k* ddkdk kkkdiddk gp *kdkddkd¥] of
this Amendment.

[Signature Page Follows]

THIS AMENDMENT is executed on the days and year last signed below to be effective as of the date last signed below (the
“Amendment Effective Date”).

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)
OPERATING, LLC (“CUSTOMER”)

By: Charter Communications, Inc., its Manager

By: /s/ Michael Ciszek By: /s/ Gregory L. Cannon
Title: SVP- Billing Strategy & Operations Title: SVP, General Counsel & Secretary
Name: Michael Ciszek Name: Gregory L. Cannon

Date: Nov 2, 2021 Date: Nov 2, 2021
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EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT H.5-SERVICE LEVELS
During the Term and any Transition Assistance Period, CSG shall provide the Products and Services to Customer in

accordance with the performance standards described in subsection (a) (each, a “Performance Standard”) and
subject to the remedies set forth in this Exhibit H.5.

a. Performance Standards

(i)Business Function (also identified as “Service Components”) Processing and Availability. The following terms shall
apply to the Performance Standard described in this subsection (a)(i):

1.This Performance Standard will apply to and be measured relative to the Service Components in Table E, as [********

kkkk kkhkkkhkk khkk kkkkkkhkkkkhk [,k *kkk kkkkkk *.kk kk ()% *k.kk kk (k% H khkkkkkkhkkk kk khkkkkkkk kkhkkkk khkkk kkkhkkhkkkkkk].
(™) of *: (**)to™: (**) with the I:

Table E

[******* *********] [********]
[********** ********] [******* *k khkkkkkk khkhkkhhkk hkkhkkhhk khkkhk kkhk kkhkkhkk khkkhkkhkk kkhkk *kkkkk ********]
[********** **********] [******* *k kkkk * k% %%k kkk * k% * kkkk kkk kkk * *k*k ]
[***** **********] hkkkkkhk kk hkkkk hhk kk khkhkkhk khhkhkhkkhk khhkhkhkkhk kkhkkhhkk khkkhkk khk khkhkkkhkkh hkkkkkk *khkkkk *%
khkk khkkk khkkkkhkk kk kkhkkhk hkhkhkkhhkhhkhk kk khkhkkhhkk hkkhkkhkkhkk kkkkk %% ********]
[x *k%k *kkk kkkkkkkhkkhkkk *k kkkkkkkx * k% *kk *% *kkkkk kkkkkkhk kk kkkk *kkkkk Kx****]
*kk kkkk *kk * kkk ****]
[********* ************] [******* k% hkkkkkkk kkkkk kk kkkkkk (***) *%k kkk kkk kkkk (***) *khkkkk kkhkkkhkkkkk
[********* *kkkkk **********] [******* *k kkk kkkkkkkkk hhkkkk hhkkkkhkhkhkk kk hhhhkkk khhkhkkhhhkdx *kkhhkkxdk k% *hkkx *kkkhkkkk *******]

[*** kkkkkkhkdk dhk kkkkhkhk khk hkdkdhkhhhhhr hk khkk hhhkhkdhhkd khkhkhk khkhhkhhhhdr kk * Fhkhkhkhhkhdr khkhkhk hkdkkd (** kkkkhkdk khk kkkkkkhkkk

(*)(*)(*) *****) *kkkk kk kkhkkkk k kkkkkkk ************'l"

2 [** kkhkk khkkk hkk khk kkkkdkk Kk kkkhkhk hkhkhkhkhhkhk) *k khkkkkhkd *kk dkdkkhkhkkx ***0/0 *k khkkhkhkk kkkkhkkhk khkk hkk hhkkk hkdkk kkk kkk *k kxk

kkkkk kkkk kkk kkkk (*) *hkkkk (** khkkkkhkkhkkh kkk khhkkkkk kkkk khkk khkhkkk kkkkkkkkkkk *******) khkkkk kk khkk khhkkkkkkkk kk kkkk *****]
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3 [*********** khkkkk kk hkhkkhkk k khhkhkhkhkhk khkhkhkhkhhkhhhhkk kk hkk khkhkhkhkhhkk khhhkhhkkkk *****].

a [** khkkkkk khkk hk khkhk khhkhhkhkhk khkhkhkhkhhhhkk hkhhkk kk hkhkkhkhhhkkk (*)(*)(*) *****].
. )

b [**%_**O/o *k khk kkkkkkkhkhkkhk khkk kk hkkkkkhk kkhk kkkkkhkk khkkkkkkkhkk hkkhkkk *k kkhkkhkkhkkkk (*)(*)(*) kkkkk kkkkkk khkkkkkk

khkkkkk kk kkk khkkdhkdk kk hk khkkkkhkhkhkd hkhkkhkk hkk hhkhkkhhhk dk khkhkhkk *kk *k hkk kdkk *hkkkkkhkkhkk (****. %k kkkkkkk kkkk **% *k kkkkk
khkkkkkkhkkhkhkhk khkk kk khhkkkhkhkkhk kkhk khkhkhkkhkhkhk khkkhkkhkk kkhkkhkkhkhkk kkkk kk kkhkkkk kkhkkkkhkkkkk (“***********”) *k kkk kkhkkhkkkkkk (*)(*)

(*) kkk hkk k khkkhkkhkk kkkkkkhkkhkkkx (***** *kk hkk hkkkk *k kkk (** kkkkkkkkkhk kk kkkkkx *k%x *****) *kkkk hkk *****])). and
’

C [*** kkkkk kkhkk khkk khkk khkhkhkhkhkhk khkhkhkhkhkhkhkhkhhk kkhkk kk kk kkkkk **0/0 kkkkkhkkh khkhkk khkhkhkhkhkhhkIkh khkhkhkhk khkhkkh khkk khkkk khkkkkkhkhkhkkk kkkk
(****** kkk kkkkkkkkkk kk k khkkkkkkk kkkkkkk ************) *k kkkkkkkk kk k kkkkkkk kkkkk (*) *kkk kkkkkkkk kkkkkhkhkkkkk kkkkk k%

*kk *****]

[** * kkkkkkkkkkk kkkkkkkkk kk k kkkkkkk kkkkkkkkkkkk (*** *k%k ***********)* *kk kkkkkkkkk khkkkkkk kkkkk kkkkkkk (“****”) *kkkk k%

khkkkkk kk khkk khkk khkkhkkhkkdkdk kk *k kkk kkkxk *]

4 [** *kkkkhkk kkk kk kkkk * hkkkkhkk khkkhkkhkkx *% **% *k khkkhkhkhkhkkk hkhkhk khk khkkhkdkx *k *khkk *khkkhkhkk *kkkx *k *hkkhkhx *khkkkhkd hkxkrhrhikk

dkkkkhkhkhkk hk khkkkkkhkkk (*)(*)(*) kkkk khkkhkhk khkkhkhk khhkhhkk kk hkdk hhkkhkkdh dk khkkhhddx * khdhhhhhkhhd khkhkkhkhkdk dk hkhkhkdhkdhk (*)(*)(*) *k k%

*kkkkkk kk kkkkkkkkkkkk kk khkkkkkkkk kk khkkkkkk (*) (*) k% kkkkkkkkkk (*)(*)(*) (* Uhkkkkkkhkkdx khkkkkkk *****‘l")

5 [*** khkkkkkkkkkhk kkhkkkkkk kkk kkkkk kk kkkk kkkkkkkkkk (*)(*) *k kkkkkkkk kk khkhkkkkk khhkkkhkhhkkk kkkkkkhkkhkkhkhk kkhkkkk kkk k% kkkkkkkkkkk
Kkkkkhkhkk khk khkkk hk khkhhkhkk hkhkkhkhhhhkhhhd hkhkhhkhhkdk kkkx khkhhhkd hkkkdkddk khkhkhdx dhkk *khkhkd khkk khkhhdkdkddx dhkhhhhkhdx *%k *kkkx *kkkkkkx

**********]

6 [** dkkk dkkkk kk k khkkhkkhk khkhhkhhkhhhhhkd dhhkk khkkhhdhk kk khk kkhkkhkdh dhkdhkhhkdk dhdkhhhkhhhkdh dk kkkkhkhkhkx (*)(**) d*kkkhk kk khkk khkkkkkk kkkkdk k%

kkkkkkkk kk kk kkkkkk khkkkk kk khkk khkkkhkkhk kkhkkhkhkk kkk kkhkkhkkhkkkk kk kkkk kkk kkkkk kk kkkkkkkk kk kkkkk ***]

(ii)[******* khkkkkkk khhkkhkhkhkhkk khkkkkkhkkhk khkhkhkhkkhk khkhkhkkhkhkk hkkhkkhhkk kk kkk kk kkhkkk kkkk k.kk k% (**) kkkk kk khkkkkkkkk kk khkhkk hkkkkIk kkkkk kkk

kkkkkhk kk khkk khkhkkhkhkdIk khkhkhkk k% k% khkhkd hkk khkhkdkddx *khkhk k% *hkkhk khkhkhhhhddx *kk *kkdkd khkkhkdkd *kxkxkxk (*****%) *k kkk kkkkk
dkhkhkhk kk k khkkhkh hkkkhkk khkkhkk hkhkhkdk kkkkhkhk kkkkk k.kk k% **) khkkk kk hhkkkkhkhhk kk khkk khkkdk khkkhkkik kkhkdk hkhkkk khkk khkkkkk kk dkkx

kkkkkkkkkkIk kkhkkkkk kk kk kkhkkhkk kkk kkhkkhkkkkk kkkk kkk kkkkkkk kkkkkkk (***%) kk kkhkk kkhkkkk kkk khkkkk kkk kk khkkkkk kkk kkk kkhkkkkk kk kkkk

*kk kkkkkkkkkkk
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khkkkkhkhkk kkk hhkkk kk khkhkhk kkhkhkhkhkk khkhk khk khkhk khkhkhkhkhkhk khk khkhk khhkkkhkhkhklhk khkhkkhkhk kk khkkk kkk kkk khhhkhhkkk kkk *kkk ************]

(iii)[********* khkkkkkkdk hhkhkkhkhhkhk hkhkhkhkd khkhkhkd (** kkkhkkhkk kk hkkkkkk ***)* *hkkkk khk khkhkhkkhk hkk hkkhkkk k% *******].

1 [*** khkkkkkkk khkkhkhkhhkhk khkhkhhkhhkd khkhkhkhk kkkk khkId hhkdkkhhkdk khkhkhkdhhrd khk dhkkhhkhhkhhd khkdk dhkdkkd hhkhk khkkkhkhhdx *k dhkkhkkhkdk *k *kk
khkkkkkkhkhkkIk kkhkkk khkhkhkk khkhk kkkkk khkhkkhkkhk kkhkkkhkkkkkk (**) *kkk kkkkkkkkkk (********* ********) kkk kkk khkhkkkkk kkhkkkkk (***%) k% kkkkkkkkIk
Kkkkhkkhkhk hkhkkhkhkhk khhkhhkhkd hhkhkkhkk dkk hhkk khkkhkhkdkd *khkdkd *hkk dkkk *khdkdkd k% *kkdkdkdkddx *hkkhkhkhrkx (**) *kkkk kk kkkkkhkk kkk *kkk
dkhkhkhkhk hkhkhkhhkd khkhhhhkhk dhk khkdhhkhbhhhdr kdhkdk khkkhk kdkk hhhk kdhkdhhkhhhhdr khkdkhhkhhd khkdk dhkhkk dhkk dhdhhhhhdhd khhkhkhkdhdx kkk hkkk
*kkkkkkkk kkk (*) *kkk kkkkkkk kk kkhkkkhkhhkkk khkkk khkk) kkhkkkkkk kkhk kkkkhkkk khkkkkkk kk kkhk kkk kkkkkhkkhkhkk kkkkkkkkk k% (**) kkkkk kkkkk

kkkkhkhk kkhkkhk khkk hkk hhkkk hkhkdk hhkkk hk * hkhkd hhkhkhkk khkk kkkkhkd kkkkhhkhhkhd *k khkkhkdkkx hkk dkkkdkk dkhkkx *****]

2 [*** khkkkkkkhk khkhkhkhkk khkhkhkhk hkkhk % hkhkhkhkdh hhkhhkhhdk khkhkhkhhkhhkd khkkx khkkhhkhdhddx *hkkdk khkddx *khkdkdx khkhhkhddx *kkdk *khkdkddx *%k k% *kkkkkxkkx
dkk kkkkkhkdh hkhkk hkhk khkkk khkk khkkk khkkhkdkdk khkk kkkkkkkk ****(*)* kk khkkhkkhkhkhk khkk khkkkk hkdkdhkdk khkkhkhkhkhkx (**) kkkk kkkhkhkkhkk
(********* ********) *kk kkk kkkkkkk kkhkkkkk (***%) *k kkkkkkhkkIk khhkkkhkkk khkkhkkkhkhkkh khkhkkhkkhkkhk kkhkkkk kkk kkk kkkkkkkkk kkkkk *kk kkk*k
kkkkhkk kk hkkkhkhhkkk kxkkkhhkhhkkhx (**) *kkhkk kk hkkkhkkk khkk khkkdk khkhkkhkhkd hhkhhhhddx khkhkhkhdx *hkx dkhhkhhhhhhdx *hkkdk khkhk *kk hkdkkx kkhkhkhkdkx
*hkkhhkhkhkhkhk khhkkk khkkk khdk hhhkhhhkhhkhk khkhhkhhkhkdkd khkk khkdkhk khkkhkhkhkkikd kkk (*) khkkk khkkkhkhkhk kkh khkhkkhkhkhkhkhkhk khkhkk khkhkhk) kkhkkkhkk kkk khkkkkkk kkkkkhkkk %%
*kk kkk kkkkkkkkkk kkkkkkkkk k% (**) *kkkk kkkkk kkkkhkkhkk khkkkkk kkk kkk khkkk khkkkk khkkk kk * kkhkkk kkkhkkk kkhk kkhkkhkkk kkkkkkkkkk kk kkkkkkk kkk

*kkkkhk kkkkkk *****]

3 [*** kkk hkkkhkhkk kk khkkhkkhkhkk (*)(***) kkkkhkkhkhk hhkkhkhhkhkh hkhkhhkhkd khkhk kkdkkdhkdk. *kdk hhkhhIdk hkkhkhkhdx khkkk khkhkhkhhkhhkd khkdk dhkkkkx *kxk
*kkkkkkhkkkkk (******** *k%k ******)* kkk kkkkkkkkhkk kk kkk khkhkkk k khkhkkhkhkhk hhkkk kk k khkkkhkhkhkkhk kkhkk khkhkkhkhkk kk kkkkhkhkkhkhkk kk kkhk kkkkk khkkkkkk

kkk kk Kk khkkkkkk khkkhk kk k khkkhkkk hk kk khkhkhkhkk k% hkk kkkkkkhkkhx ******]

(iv)**** *kkk kkkk (“***") khkkkkkk kkkkkkk kkkkkkkkkkhk kkkkkkkk *hhkkkkkkkkk kkkkkkkx (**OA)) *%k kkk kkhkk kkhkkkkhkkkkk kkk kkhkk kkkkkkkkk kk kkk kkkkk

*kkkhk kkkkhkk kkkkkk (**) kkkkk khk Kk hkkkhkhkdk khkkhkkhkhkd khkhk khkkdkk hkhkhkhkd kkkkdkdx dkkkk *hkkdkhkhhkk *******]

b [******* ******]
.

[****** *kk (**) kkkkkhkkhk kkkk kk khkkk hkkkkhkkhk *kkkkk kk% (“****** ****’7)* kkk khkkkk khkhkkhk kkkkkhkkhk khkk k khkhkkhk hkkhkhkx khkkkhkk *kkkdk *kkk* *%
dkk khkkkkhkkhkkhk khkkhhkhkhkdh dhkdhhkhhkhhdr kk dhhkkk hhkdhkdhhkd kkhkk khkk kkk dkdkkhhkhhhhdr khkdkkdk khkk kdkkdk dhkdhhkhhkhhdr khkdhkdhdkd khkdkx *hkkhhkhkhdx *k *kkk

*kkkkkkkhkkk kkkkkkkk (*** Ukkkhkkkk ******”)* kkk kkkkhkhkhkhkkk kk khkkhkhkkk khkkk kk hkkk kkk kkk khkhkhk hhkhhkhkk khkkhkhkkkk kkk khkkkkkkk kkkkkkkkkkk
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khkkkhhkhkhkhk kk hhkk hhkk hkk hhkhkhkhkhk kkhkhkhkk kkh khkhkhkhkhkhkhhk khhkk khkhkhkhkhkhk khkhkhkhkhkk khkhkhk hhkk hhkhhkk kkk hkhhkhkk kkk kk kkhkkhkk khhkkk hk khkhkhkhkkkk kkk
*kkkkk kkkkkhkkk kkkhkkhkhhkhk k% kkk kkkhkhkkhkk khkkkkkk kkkkkhkhk *hkk khkkhkkkk kk kkkk kkkkkkk kkkk * kkkkkkk kk kkkk * kkhkkkkkhkkkk kkkkkkkk kkkkk k%
dkkkkhkhkhk Kk fkkkhkdk khkhkhkdlhk hhkk hhkhkkdk khkkhkdk hhkk khkkhkdkhhdkd hhdhhhkhdd khk khkkdkd dk *hkkdk khkhhkdhdx *hkk *hkddk *hkhkddd *k % dhkkkhkhdx *kkdkxd %k
kkkk hhkkhhkhhkhkk kk hhkhhhkhkhkk kk khkkhhhkkk khk khkhk khkhkkhk khk kkhkkhkhkhkh kh khkkkkhkhk khkkhkhkk khk kkhkkhkhkhkhk k kkhkhkhkhkkhkhk hkhkhkhkhkhk hkhkhkkhk khkkkk kkk kkkkk
*kkkkk (**) dkdkk kk kkk kkkkhkkhhk kkkk kk kkdk kkFFhkkkdkhkkkdkk kkk kkdkkk khkk hhkkkhkhkhkhhkk hkkhdkhkhkkkk khkhkhhk kk kkkhkhk k kkkkhhk kkkkkk kk kkkk

dkkk kkkkhkk kk khhkkk hk khkkhkhhhkhk khkkhhkhhhkdh hhkdk khkk dkdkkhhkd khkdk dkdk khkkdhkdk *k % kkkkkx ********]

c [***** kkkkk kkkkkkkkkk k% ************]

[** khkk hkhkk hhkkhkhkhkdk hkkk kkk hkdkkdk khkkdk hhkk khkkhkhkhkdhdx dk khkkdhkhhhkd hk *hk *k khkk khkkhhkhhkhhhd kkdkdhhhd khkk *khkkhhkhhdx *k dhkk khkhkdk kkhkhxd
kkk khkkkkk kk khkhkkhkhkk khkhkhkhkhhkk hkkk kkk khkkhkhkk khkkk kkhk khkkhkkhkhkhhhhhkk khkk kk khkhk khhkhhhhhkkk kk kkk khkkkkkk kkkkkk (“********** ****”)*
kkkkhkkhk hkkhkkkh khkk khkhkhkhkhkdk khkhkhkhkdk hhkkhkdkx *k khkdkdkx *hkk *khdkhkhhhd *khkhk *%k khkkkd *%x *khkkdkdhdd khkdkx *k* *khdkdkddx *%k *hkkhkdkdkx *k*% %% %%
dkhkhk khkkkk khkkk khkkhkkhk kk khkdk khkkk hkkk kkkkkhx (**) dkkkk khkkhkk khkkkhkhhkkix khhkkhkdh dhk hkk hhkdkhkhhdk khkhkdk khkhkkhkdk kk kkk dkdkkhkhkkdr %k kxk
khkkkk khkkkkkkk hhkkkkk khhkkhkhkhkhkk kkk khkkhhhhkk khkkkk kkk khkkk kkkkkk kkk kkkkkhkkkkk khkkk kkk k% kkkk kkkk kkkkkk (**) *hkkk kkkk kkk kkkk kkkkkk
kkhkhkk khkhkkhkh Khk khkkhkhhdk khkhkhkhkd khkhkhkdkd hhkk khkkhkhkhddk khkdk kk dkdkdkdhdhdx dhkkh hkkhkhhhhhrd dkx dkd hhkdkhhhhhhrdx khkkhkhhkhkk *x *kkk *kx
khkkk hhkk hkhkk hkhkhhhhhhhhhhhkdk kk khhkhhhhhkhdkd kk khkk khhhhkhhhhhhhd hhkhdh hhdhhhhhdh dhdk hhdhhdhdhdh %k hhhhhk hhkkhhk kkh khkhk khkhkhkhkhkhkhkhkhk kkhk kkhkhkhkhkkhkkk k%
kkkkk kkkkkkhkkhkhkhkkk kk kkkkkkkkhkhkkhk *hkkk kkkkkkk kk kkk khkkkkk kkk khkkk khkkhhkk kkkkkhkkk %k kkkkkkk khkk kkkkkkhkk k% kkkkkk kkk kkkkkkk kk*k
*kkkhkk khkk kkkhkkk kkkkkk (**) dkkkhk kk khkkk hhkkhkhkhk khkkhkhhdk khkk khkhkdhdx khkk khkk khkhhhhk *kk hhhkhkd khkk khkhkdkk kkhkdk dhkdkkdk khkdk * khkkhkdkdkx

khkkkkkhkhkhkkk kkkkk kkkkk **].

(i) [********* *k kkk kkkhkhkhkhkhkhkhkdk khkhkk khk khhkhkdk khhhkhhkhhkk khkkhhhhhh hhkhk hhhhhhhhkk kk k khkhhkh khhkkh khk khkkhkkhkhkhk khkhkh khkkkkhkhkhkhkkhkk **********].
’

and

ii) [******* khkkkkhkkhkhhhhkd hhkk khkkhkdhkd hhkhhhhdhdx khhkhhhhhhhhhkd khk hkdk hhhkhkd dhkk khkdhkdhkd kk dhkdkdbhkhbhkd khk khkkhhkhhhd dkdkdkhrhk ****]

[*** kkkk khkk hkk hhkkkhhkhhhhk khkkhhkhhhhhdh hhkdkhkhkk hhkdkk *k khkhkdkdIdx kdkkdk khkhkhkhkhhkdrd dhkhkkhkd dkdk dhkhhkhhhhhhdx khkhkhdx khkhkhkhbhkd khkdk dhkkkk kkkx
* kkkkkhkkk khkhkhkhhhkkk khkkhhhkhhk khkk khhkkkk khhkkk khkhkhkkhkk kk k khhkhkk khhkhhhkk kk hhkhhhkhhhkk k% khkkkk khkk kkk kkkk kk khkhkhkkhkkkk kkk kkk kkkk*%

kkkkhkhkhkk hkkhk khk hkkhkhkhkhkdk khkhkdk kk *k *kk *khkhkdkk *kkhkhxd ($*********])

d [****** kkk kkkkkk *********]
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(i) [******** *kk hkkkhkhkhkhkhkk khkhkhkkikk k% (*)(*)'l

1 [** *k khkk khhkhkhkhkhkk hhkkhk hhhkkk khk hkhkhkk khkhk khkhkkh h khkhkhkhkhkhk khkhkhkhhhhhhhhhkk hhkhhkk kkkhkhkkk kkkkk kkkhkikkk (“******* ****”)* *%k kkk k%
khkkkkkkkkkk kkkkk kk kkkkkhkkhkkhk kk khkkkkkk kk kkk khkkkk kkk khkkkkk *hkhkkkkk khkk kkkkk kk khkkhkkk kkkk k% khkkkkhkkkk kkkkk k% kkkkkkkk k%

*kkkkkhkkk (*)(*)(*) *****] .
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Table d 1 _ [******* ****]

[****** *k kkkkkkkkkk

%
[******** kkkkkkkkk kk kkkk kkkkkkk ([ ])
kkkkkkk hkkkhhkkkhhhk k¥

Fededededkdkk *****] (Note 1,
2)

[*** *****] Fhkkkkhkhhhhkdk kkkhhhk hkk kkdk kkk **] (Note [******* ***]

174 (Note 4, 5)

[* * *] [*** *kk kkk kkk ***] $[*****]

[*] $[******]
1 [*+] $[******]

[*] [**** *kk kkk *k k% ***] $[****** *k%k **********]
[*] [*] [**** *kk kkk kkk ***] $[****** *k%k **********]
[*] [*] [**** kkk kkk * kkk ***] $[****** *kk **********]

[***** *kk kk kkk ***] $[******* *k* **********]

[***** ***] $[******* *k% **********]

Note 1 _ [** kkkhk kkkk kkk khkk khkkkk hk kkkkhkk kk k khkkkk khkkkk kkk kkk khkkdk khkkhkkhkkhkkd kkkkkhk ************(*)* *kkk kkk kkkkkkdk kkk kkkkkx

kkkkk kk kkhkkkk kk k kkkkkkk ***]

Note 2 — [** *hkkhkkk kk khkk hkk khkhkkk khk khkhkhkhk kk khkkhk kkkk kkk (*) *hkkkhkhkhkk khkkhkhkhkh khkkhhhhhkhik (***** *kkkk (*) *hkkkkk khkkkkkkkhhhkhk

*kkk kkkk kkk k kkkkkkkk *k k% *******) *k Kk kkkkk kkhkkkkk kkhkkhkhkkk kk kkkkkkkk kk k kkkkkkk kkk kkk kkkk kkkkkkhkkkk kkkkkkk ************]

Note 3 [** *kk kkkkk kkhkk kkhkkkkhkk kkkkhkkkkkk kkkkkk *k kkhkkkkkhkkk (*)(*)(*) *kk kk Kk kkkkkkk kkkk k% ***% *kk khkkk kkhkk kk kkkkkkk kkkkkkk

*kk kkkkkkkkkk (**) kkkk kkkkkhkk kk khhkk kkk kkk kkk kkk khkkhkkkk kkkx
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khkkk hkkk kkhkkk hhkkk kk khkk khk khkhkhkkh khk hkhkhkkhkhk khkhk khkk khhkkkk khhkkk kkhkkhkhkkk k% $******** *kk hhkk hhkhhhhkhkhkk khkkhkhkk khkk khkk khkkhkkhkkk k%
*kk kkkkkkk khkkkhkhkhkhkhkkk kkkk *k kkkkkhkhkkk kkkkkkk kkkk k% ***% *kk kkk kkkkhkkk kkkkhhkhhkhkk kkhkkkhkk kk kkk kkkkkkk kkkkkk kkk kkkkkkkkk *k*

*kkkhk kk hkk hkkk kkkkhkkhkk dk khkkkkhkkhkkk (*)(**)]

Note 4 _ [*** khkkkkhkk khk kkkkhkkhkhdx khkhhhkd hkkk dhkk hkdkkhhhhhkr hk dhkhhhkhdx *k khkhkhkhkdkkx (*)(*)(*) *kk (*) *kkhkk kkk khkkkkkkkk kkkkk %

*k%x *]

Note 5 — [******* *hkk khkk khkhkhkhkk *k khk hhkhhhkk hhhhhkhk hhhkhkhkhkhkhkhk khkhkhkhkk khkk khkkhkk kk hhkk khkhkk khkkhkhkhkhkk kk kkkhkhkhkhkikkikk (*)(**)]

2 [**** dkkhkhkhk kkhkh hhkhkhhkk hkdk hhkhkk khk kkk hhkdkk kkkk kdkk kk khkkdk kkdkkhkkx (***** * Ukkkkkkk dhkk *****7’) kkkkk khk kkkkk hkk khkkkkk dkk
kkkkkkk kkk *****(*) kkkkk kk khkkkkkk kk khkkkkkkk kk kkkkkkkkkk (*)(*)(*) khkkkkk kk kkk kkkk k kkhkkkkk kkk kkhkkk kk khkkkkkk kkk Ukhkkkhkk?) k%
khkkkkkhkkhkh hkkkkk hkkhk khhkhkd kk hhkhk *hkkhhhhdk khkhkhd hhkkh hhkdkhhkh hhkhkdk kk hkdhkdk kk (k) kkk khkkdkdkd kk *kkdkhkdrhrd khkhkddx khhkkhkhkhx
*hkk khkkhkhkhkhkhhkk kk kk khhhhhhdhkd hhdhhhdd dhdkdk khdhhdkd hhkdhhdhhhhd *% dhkdk dhhkdk *hkdk dk khhkdk khhhhdkdk khkkhhhhhhhhhd dhkdhdh *hkhhhhhd % *hkkhhhhhkhik
khkkkk kk kkk kkkkkk khkk Ukhkkkkhkk? kk kkkkkhkkhkkhkk khkkkk khkk kkkkhkkk kk kkk khkkkkhkkkkk kkk kkkk*% (** **********) *kkkkkk kkk kkkkkk kkkkkk
*k khkkkk kk kY kkk hkkkkhkhkk hk kkkkhkkhkkhkd hhkhkhkhhkhk khkkhkkhkdhhdk khkk khkkhhkhhhhhd dk *k hhkkhkhhhhhkd dhkhkhkhkhdx khkk kkkkhkx *k dkdk kx dkkkkdkdkx *%
kkk kkk kk khkk khkhkkk k kk khkk khhkkk khkk bkkhhhhkk) khkk khkkk kk khhkk khhkhhkk khkk hkkhkkk khkkkk k kkhkk kkhkkhkhkk khkk khkhkkkk khkkkk k kk kkkhkk khk wkV%k
khkkkkkkhk khk kkkkkhkhkhkhk kk hkkIk khkhkhkhkdk k% * khkhk khkkhkkhkk *kk hhkkkk kkkx *khkk khkhhkhkd hkkkkhkhkk *xkxk (***** *k kk kkk kkhkkkk * k*%k

khkkkkk khkk kkkkk dhk kkkkhhhhkd hhkhkhkhhkhk * khkhhkhhhk khkdk khkk khkkdhhkhkk * Fhdkhkdk khkhk khk khkhkd hhkdhkx % dhhkhkd khkk khkkdk % dkhkhkd *kk *****])

Table d 2 —_ [******* *kk ******]
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[******* *kk kkkkkk [(*)]

*****]
[********** **********] [******* *kk *****]

(Note 1, 2)

[*] [* kkhkhk kkkkhkkh hk hkk hkkkdk *k kk khkkkkk hkk khkkkk *********] $[******]

[* kkkkkhk kkkkkhkk khk kkk hkkhkk k *k khkkkkk hkk kkkkk *********] $[*******]

[** kkkkkk khkkkkkk k% kkk *kkkkk % *********] $[*******]

Note 1 — [*********** *k Kk kkkkkkk kkk khkkkkk kkhkkk kkkkkkkk * *****]

Note 2_ [******* kkk kkkkkk hkkkhkhhkhhkk khkkhkdk kk hkdk khkhkhkhk kkkkhk khkkdkk dk khkkhkkdk k% *kkkdk kkkkkkhk (**%) %% kkk kkkkhkkhkkhkkk kkk

*hkkkkk khkk hkkkhkhkhkhkhkk khkk khkhkhkhkhkkk ******]

3 kkkkhkk khkk khkk khkhkkhk hkk hkkhkkk hkkkx *% *******/******** kkkkkkkkhkkk k khkkkk khkk khkhkhkhk hkhkhkdk kkkk % hkkkhkhkx k% kkkkk

kkkkkkk (**%) kk khkk kkkkkkhkhkhk khkk hk Kk hkk hhkkhkhhhhk khkkhkhkk khkkdk hkk kk kkdkdkdkk kk kkk kkkx kkkkhk khkkkkkk hkk khkkkkk hk kkk hkkk
kkk kkkkkkkkk kkkkkkk kkk kkkkkkk (******* *k kkk kkhkk kkkkkkkk kk kkkk **********) *k kk kkkkkkkk kk kkk kkkkkkkk (** *kk kkkkk kk *
kkkkkkk hkk khkkkkkkk *******) *k kkkkkkk. (*) kkk kkk khkkk hkk hhkkkkhkkhk khkkhkhkhk *khkhkkx dhhkk *khkhkhhkhhd khkhkhkd khkdkx khkkkkhkk * *kkkkk *xk

*hkk khkkhkhkhkk khhkk khkhhkhhkk khkhhdhhd hhdhhhdhd hhhhhdhdh hhhhhkhhhkh hkhkh hk khkk khhkhkhhkhk kkhkhkh khkhkkhkhkhkhkhkhkk *k khkk khkhkk khkhkkk kk khkhkk kkk khkkkkkhkkk

*kkkkk kkk (*) kkk Kk kkk kkkkkkkkk kkkkkk kkkk kk kkk khkk kkkk kkhk kkkkkkkhkk khkkkk khkkk kkhkk kkhkkhkhkhkkk khkkhhkk kkkkk k% kkkkkkkkk %%

kkk hkhkhkhkk kkk hk kkkkhkkdk kk *kkk *k *hkkkkk *kkkk kkkkkk **) *hkkk khkhkk kkk hkk kk hkk hhkkhkkhkkhkkdk hhkk khkkhkhkdkkx kkkkhkd *k *kkkkhxdk %
khkkkkk kk kkk khkkhkhkhkhkk khkkkhkk kk kk hkkkkk khkkkk kk kkk khkhkkkhkk kkk kkhkkhkhkkhk khhkkhkk kk khkkhhkkhk kk khkkhkhkkk khhkkkkk kkk khkkkkkkkkkk

khkkkkkkkk hkk kkkkkhkkhk *khkkkk (*** kkdk khkkkkkkk ******”)* khkk hkhkhk kkkkhkk khk hkk hkk khkhkhkd hhkkhkkd *k *kkk *kk *k *kk hkhkkhkhkhkk *xk

khkkkkkhkdh hhkhkkhkk hkhkdk khk hhdkhhkdhd dk *k hhkhhhk khkdhhdk khkhkhk kkkkhkk dkdk *k dkdk *kdkkk *kkk * khkdkkdkkdk kk hkk khkkk hkdkkk kk kkkk hkk
khkkkkkkkk kkhkkkkk *kk kk kkk kkk kk k khkkkk kkhk khkhkkkhkkhkk kkhkkhkk kkk khkk k khkkkhkkhk kkk kkkhkk khkhkkhkkhkk kkhkk kkkkkkk kkhkkk k% kkkkkkkkkkkk %%
kkk hkk khk hkhkk kkk hkhkhkkhkdk khkkkkk (***** *k kkkhkkkkk *k kkkkkkk k% ***)* khkkkkkk hkkk kkk kkkkkkdk kkk kkkkkk *hkkk k% *******/********
*hkkk khkkkhkkkk kk khkk khkkhkhkkk *kkkk (**** khkk kkkkk khkkk khkhkk khkkk khkhkk khkkhkhhik ****) *k kkkkhkhkkk kk khkk khkkk khkk (**** *kk kkkkk kkkk kk%k

kkkk kkkkk kkkkkkkk ****)* *kk hkk kkkkkkkkk kkkkkk kkkkk kk k kkhkkhkkhkk kkk hkkkkhkkk khhkkhkkkk kkkkk kkkkkkk kk khhkkkkkkkIk kkkkkkk k% kkkkkkk*k

k% kkkk kkkk hkkk (**** kkk hkhkdk kkkk hkdkkhkk kkkk khkkhkk kkkkhkhkkx ****)* kkkk kk kkk khkkhkhkhkk kkkkhkkhkhkd khkhkhx (***** (*) *kkkkkkk kk %

khkkkk kkkk kkkkkkk kkkkkkkk kk kkk kkkk kkkk (*** kkkkk kkkkk kkkk kkk
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*hkkk kkkk *k kkk ****) *k%k (*) khkkkkhkkhk kk khhkk khhkkk khkhkk khkkhkhkhk khkhkhkhkhkhkhk kk kkk kkkk kkkk k% kkk ****) *k kkkkhkhkhkk kk kk kk hkkk hhkhhhkhhkkk

******]u

(ii) [******** d*kk kkkkkkkhkkhkk khkkkkkkhkk kx (*)(**) *% (*)(***))* kk khkdkkdk kkk khkkdk kkk khkk kkkkkkhkkdk khkkhhkhhkhhkk khkkhkhkk hkk dhkkk hkk dkkkx *kkx

k% kkkk kk kkk kkhkkhkkkkkkk khkkkhkkkkk kkk kkkkk kk khkkkkkkkkkk (*)(**) *% (*)(***)* khkkk kkk kkkk kkkkkk khkkkkkhkk kkk kkkkk kk kkkkkkk
$****** khkkkkhkkkk kk kkhkk khkkhkk kk hkkkhhkhk hkkhkhkhhhrdk khkk *hkhkk hhkk hhkhkhhhkd hkdk dkhkhhhd hhkhk *hkkdk khkhkhkd kk kkdkhkhkd khkkdrdrdrdkx
khkkkkkhkh kk khhkk khhhkhkhkk khhhhkhkdk dhhkdk khkdkhdhdhdd dk khkdk *khkdk khhhhkdk *k dhk hhkhkdk kk khkhkhkk khkk khkkhkhkk khkhkhkhkhkhk kkkhkhkhkhkkk kk kkk khkkkk k khkkkkhk
khkkkkkkk kkkkk kkkkkkkkkkk (*)(**) *% (*)(***) *kkkkkkkk kkhkkkk kkk khkkkkkhkkkk kkkkkk (**) khkkkk kkkkkkk kkk kkkkkk kkkkkkk kk kkk kkkk
khkkkkkk khk kkk hkkkdk kk hkdkk kkkkhkhkhkddx khkhkd hk khkhhhhhhdx *k khkk khkkhkhdk kk *hdkdk hhkk khkkhkd hhkhkhkhhkd dhkdk khkhkhkhkdk k% kkk kkkkhkhkdxd
khkkkkk khkkkk khkkkkkk Khhk khhkkhhkk kk hhk kkhkkhkk hhkkhhhkk khkkkk kkk k khkhkkk kkhkk kk kkk khkkkhkhkhkhhkkk kkkkkk (**) kkkkk khkkkkkk kkk kkhkkk k%
kkkkkkk hkk kkkkkkk k% $****** kkkkhkhkkk khk khk hkhkhk kk khkhkhkdkIkx khkhkhhkkk khkhkhkhkdkd khkkhkkhkd k% *kk hkkkhkd *kkdkhkdhx *kk *kxkkkxhrkkx
kk khkk kkk hkhkdkk kk khkk kkkkk hk khkkkk hkk hhkkhkhkk hkdhkhkhk kkdkhkhkd khkkhkkhkkhkdk *k kdkkkk (*)* dkkk Kkkkkk hkk hhkkkk kk khkk khkkhkhkkk

khkkkkkkk kkkkk kk khkkkkkkk kk k khkkkkk kk kkkkhkhkkk kk kkkkhkhkkIk kkkk kkkkkkk *******]

(l”) [******** *kk kkkkkkkkkkk khkkhkkkkk *% (*)(**)* *k kk hkk khkkhkkhkdk hkkkk khkkhkkdk khkk khkkdk khkk khkkk hhkk khkkk hkk khkhkhkdkddx kkkkhkkrkx *k%x

kkkkk dk (*) (**)* dkhkk kkk hkdkk khkkkk hkdk kk khkkk khkdkkdk khkkhkkhkhk khkhkhkk kdhkk kkkkk dk kkkkhkkk $********]

(iv) [*************** kkkkkhkkk kk kkk kkkkkkkk kk khkkk khkhkkhhkkhkk kk khkk khhkkkkk khkkk kkk kkkkkkk khhkkkkk khkkkkkhk kk kkkkkkkk k% k kkkkk kk%

khkkkkkkk hkkkhkk hkk hkkik khkkhhkhhhkkh hk hkk hkhkhkhhkhhkd khkkdkhkdkdx *k *hkkkkkkhrkkx (*)(*)* *(**) *kk *(***) *% $*******]

[******** kkk hkk kkkhkkhkhkkhk khkk *k khk hkhkhkhhkhrdk khk *khkhhhhhkd khkhkhhkhhd *k khkhhhhddx khk *hkkhkhd khkhkdhkx *k *khkkdk khkkhkhkd *kkk *xk
dkhkkhkhkhhkdk khkhkdk khkk hhkdhkdk khkhkdhk kk khkdhkdhk khkk dkdhkdhhkd khkhhddx Khkdkdhdhkhhkd khkk khkhhkhd khkhd dhdhkdkd khkhhhhd khkk dhhkdk dkhkk dkdkdhkd %
*k kkhkkkkkk kk kkhkIk kkkkkk kk kkk khkkkkkk kkkkkk kkk (*) kkkkkkkkkk khkkkkkkk kkk kkk k kkkkkkkk (*) *kkkkkhkkkk kkk kkk kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk k% *kk
kkhkhkhk kkhkkhkkdk khk hkhkhkhk kkkhk * kkkkhkdh hk hkk hk kkhkhkhk khkdk khkk khkkdkhhkhhkd hhkkhkhhdk khkdhkd khk khkkhkk *k khkkdk khkkdkdx k% *k%x (*) *kkkkkkkkk
kkkk hkhkk khkhkhkhkhkhhhk hhkhhkk hhk khkhkhhhhhkk hhkhhhkk khhkhkk khhkk khkhhhkhkhk *kk khkhhhhhhhhhhhhd *dhdk hhkdhhhhhhhhd hhhdhhhhhd dhhhhhhdd dhdkhdkdd k% *kkk
kkkkkhkk kkhkk kk kkhkkkhkkhkkh kk hkkhkhk % hkkhkhkhk khkhkhk k% khkhkhk khkhhhhk khkkhkhkhk khkx khkhkhkhkd khkdkx *k khkdkdkddx *kk *kxkdkhkhddx *% *kxkkhrhrkkx
dkkk kkk hkkkdk khkkhkkhkhkd khkhkkhk khkkdhkhhkhhhd hhkdkhkhhkd % khkdhkhhkhk khkdkk khkk *k khkhhhd dk khkdhkhhkhk dk khkkdk khkdhkdkdx khkkk Fhkk *hkkdkdkdrhrhkk
khkkkkhkhkkk kkkhkhkhkk khhkkkk kkk kk khkkkhkk kk kk khkk khkk kkhklk kkhkkhkkk kk kkkk kk kkk kkk k khkkhkkk kkkkkhkk kk kkk khkkkk kk khkkk kkkkkhkk kkkk kk kkk

kkkhkkhk kkk khkkk hkhkhk khkhkhk khkdk khkk khkkk khkhk khkkhkk hkkhkhkhk *k *kkx kkkkkhx ****]
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THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE EXHIBIT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH (I) NOT MATERIAL AND

(1) WOULD BE COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. SUCH EXCLUDED INFORMATION IS IDENTIFIED BY BRACKETS AND
MARKED WITH (**%),

FIFTY-EIGHTH AMENDMENT
TO
CONSOLIDATED
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS OPERATING, LLC

SCHEDULE AMENDMENT

This Fifty-eighth Amendment (the “Amendment”) is made by and between CSG Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“CSG”), and Charter Communications
Operating, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Customer”). CSG and Customer entered into that certain Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber
Management System Agreement effective as of August 1, 2017 (CSG document no. 4114281), as amended (the “Agreement”), and now desire to further amend the
Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment. If the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment shall be in conflict
with the Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Amendment shall control. Any terms in initial capital letters or all capital letters used as a defined term but
not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. Upon execution of this Amendment by the parties, any subsequent reference to
the Agreement between the parties shall mean the Agreement as amended by this Amendment. Except as amended by this Amendment, the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect according to their terms.

1. Customer desires, and CSG agrees, to develop, deliver and maintain an interface that [*¥#% s dedsedidesrsdodst sk dedesodediodediodr deioiokboionk])
commonly known as “[ ”’ (“ * *kkk ]”) With [‘k** Fehkhkdhhh ki nk (“***]”) for the purpose Of [ * *hkkk % *kkk
wdekkhnd ] and [ ] tO [*** (the ekl kb kb htd ***********]”) Sllch that Customer Will be prompted in [***** ***********]

and’ as a result’ Will have the [******* to Sededked sededededdd gy Kk based on Fededek whdhk kAN w N TR Nwh Fdkk Khddw Khd Hkkdk Thwhhhd whhhdd whhdd wkhd
Fk kkkkkkkdk ) the *ERE* ***********].

2. As aresult and upon execution of this Amendment and pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, Schedule F, “Fees, ” Section 2, "CSG
Products," subsection I1I, “Workforce Express,” shall be amended to add a new subsection “E,” ¢[*%¥ %¥&& fkkdkdkdkdd dkkdkkdkrdrsd®]” as follows:

II. Workforce Express

Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
E. [*** ke
1_[*********** kokk **************] (Note 16) [*** *******] [*****]
2_[*********** sieskesk skokokokokskok ********] (Note 17) (Note 18) (Note 19) [*******] $[********]

Note 16: Development and implementation of the integration and associated fees shall be mutually agreed upon and documented in the [*#%* ##kdk stk dodddkrrrk)
SOW (CSG document no. [*****]) to be executed by CSG and Customer.

Note 17: Maintenance and Support Fees will include up to [¥***** (¥¥) *#**i* of qupport, *****%* for the purposes of (i) *####kskksk i dkkdddokdok and *¥¥sssdss
seskokoskok ok sk skokoskokoskskok sk and (11) skekoskoskoskoskoskoskokosk skokokoskokskok skolokskokoskokok sk skokskokskokokskok sk ******]. Any hOurS requested by CuStOmer in excess Of SuCh [****** (**) skokoskok sk per *****] Shall be
billed to Customer on a [**** and *********] hagis at the then current Technical Services Rate (or as otherwise mutually agreed by the parties) in a separate Statement of Work.
The foregoing notwithstanding, Customer will not be billed for any Maintenance and Support Fees related to any production issues (as set forth in (ii) above) caused by CSG.
Maintenance and Support Fees will not include pre-release testing or changes required by use of new features, functions, products, or substantive configuration changes.

Note 18: Maintenance and Support Fees will be invoiced [******* commencing in the first full ***** following CSG’s delivery of the **¥*#****4* defined in the *** *****
skeske sfeskoskokok skokoskok ***********]SOW
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Note 18: Customer [*** *sxkssddok dokdokdokiort® and *******] at any time; provided, however, Customer shall provide no less than [*****% (¥%) *3***] written notice (email
is sufficient) prior to discontinuing the Maintenance and Support services and Customer shall concurrently discontinue use of the [* #iiiek Hackactasdasos dociciiciiciox]. The
Maintenance and Support Fee for the [***** ***%*] of the Maintenance and Support services will be due in full regardless of the date on which the notice of termination is provided
and the Maintenance and Support services provided to Customer shall cease and no longer be available.
Note 19: The [*******] Maintenance and Support Services Fee, referenced above, will be subject to the [****** adjustment to fees, pursuant to ******* ***] of the Agreement.

THIS AMENDMENT is executed on the days and year last signed below to be effective as of the date last signed below (the "Amendment Effective
Date").

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS OPERATING, LLC (“CUSTOMER”) CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)

By: Charter Communications, Inc., its Manager

By: /s/ Keyul Patel By: /s/ Gregory L. Cannon
Name: Keyur Patel Name: Gregory L. Cannon
Title: Vice President Title: SVP, General Counsel & Secretary

Date: Dec 28, 2021 Date: Dec 28, 2021



Exhibit 10.26AY

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE EXHIBIT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH (I) NOT MATERIAL AND

(1) WOULD BE COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. SUCH EXCLUDED INFORMATION IS IDENTIFIED BY BRACKETS AND

MARKED WITH (**¥),

FIFTY-NINTH AMENDMENT
TO
CONSOLIDATED
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS OPERATING, LLC

SCHEDULE AMENDMENT

This Fifty-ninth Amendment (the “Amendment”) is made by and between CSG Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“CSG”), and Charter Communications Operating,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Customer”). CSG and Customer entered into that certain Consolidated CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement
effective as of August 1, 2017 (CSG document no. 4114281), as amended (the “Agreement”), and now desire to further amend the Agreement in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in this Amendment. If the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment are in conflict with the Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Amendment
shall control. Any terms in initial capital letters or all capital letters used as a defined term but not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement.
Upon execution of this Amendment by the parties, any subsequent reference to the Agreement between the parties shall mean the Agreement as amended by this Amendment.
Except as amended by this Amendment, the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect according to their terms.

WHEREAS, Customer has previously purchased and CSG has provided Benchmark Series Kiosk Units more particularly described in and pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, as a result of discussions between the parties, the parties agree to amend terms of the Agreement with respect to the Precision eCare® Payment Kiosks such that
CSG will provide for an upgrade to the Warranty to be available for certain of the Benchmark Series Kiosk Units, and will make such upgrade to the Warranty available for
Customer’s purchase and consumption.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, CSG and Customer agree to the following as of the Amendment Effective Date (defined below):

1.Customer desires to purchase and consume and CSG agrees to provide an upgrade to the Warranty available to the Benchmark Series Kiosk Units, pursuant to the
terms and conditions stated herein and in the Agreement (the “Warranty Upgrade”). As a result, and upon execution by the parties of this Amendment, the
Agreement is amended as follows:

Schedule C, “Recurring Services,” Exhibit C-4(a), “CSG Precision eCare® Services,” subsection entitled, “Model E,”, “Exhibit Attachment D,” “Precision eCare
Payment Kiosks,” is hereby amended by inserting the following new “Exhibit 2 to Exhibit Attachment D for [#####k dekicicr sk dkkix ] to the
Agreement, attached hereto as Attachment 1.

2.Further, upon execution of this Amendment and pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, Schedule F, of the Agreement, “Fee Schedule,” “Section 1.
CSG SERVICES,” Subsection III, “Payment Procurement,” subsection D., Precision eCare Payment Kiosks,” shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced as follows:

D. | ] (Note 6)
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Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
1.Kiosk Unit Purchase and Deployment Fees ([*** Tk , [k [reeR]

2.Kiosk Software Support Services Fees ([*** *¥*%%* **¥*]) (Note 2) (Note 7)

a.[*#** * _yp to and including *** Hksksksksk* (kkk]) ynits in service [FoAEE] b Il |
b.[**** sk _ skkk kekskkdkorsk skkk (***) units up to and including soskckok kkokskkokok sokokdokskokgkokskok [*******] $[******]
(***]) units in service
C.[**** sk skeokoskeosk skokoskeoskeoskokok (***) units up to and including sesfestesieske sfeoskeostostestesteoske sheoske stk sk sk skokosk [*******] $[******]
(***]) units in service
d[**** skek _ skeskskokok skekekokskoksk skokoskskok (***) units up to and inCluding seskokok skoskokokskskok [*******] $[******]
sfe sfe st sk sk sk skeoskoskosk (***]) units in SerViCe
e_[**** % kokk ckdkkoskkdkorsk (*****]) Or more units in service [*******] $[******]
3.Customer-specific Graphic Design Fees (for front and side graphics; [*** *¥¥%%% **¥%*]) (Note 3) [k N el |
4.Kiosk Equipment Upgrades; Replacement Hardware Component Parts/Component Kit (Note [ Ak ] The price on the then-

current [*********
kskockokok ****]

5.EMYV Upgrade Fees (Note 5)

a.Additional Kiosk Units delivered to Customer that have been designed for EMV retrofit [ Ak kK] [k ek dededekokok

prior to delivery to Customer Y Rkt

b.Existing Kiosk Units and Additional Kiosk Units delivered to Customer that have not been [t ek okek] [ro b wakrnn

designed for EMV retrofit prior to delivery to Customer A il

6. | ] (Note 8) ok K Rk Y Rt
skske skeokok sk ok *]

Note 1: The quoted price applies to the [******k* skixkkikx*] (a5 defined below) and the [***** ******x*] (a5 defined in Attachment D to Exhibit C-4(a))
and includes the [***#%*3* for the **#*##3xx *x4*%%] (ag defined in Section 1 of “Additional Warranty Terms,” of Exhibit 1 to Exhibit Attachment D,
“Warranty,” of Exhibit Attachment D to Exhibit C-4(a) of the Agreement) commencing upon the date of delivery of the Kiosk Unit(s) to Customer's designated
location(s). Desired upgrades to Hardware Components of the Kiosk Unit (other than the EMV Upgrade as defined in Note 5 below) are available to
Customers at the price applicable pursuant to Note 4 below (Kiosk Equipment Upgrades; Replacement Hardware Component Parts/Component Kit) or, if the
requested upgrade or part or component requested by Customer(s) is not set forth therein, on a “[*** *****]” bagis which shall be incorporated into a Statement
of Work for implementation, support or other technical services associated with the Hardware Components and/or associated accessory or additional
equipment. The quoted price for a Kiosk Unit also includes all [****** and related expenses associated with the **¥¥¥kkikskk gqp *xsskdixssir**] of the
Kiosk Unit and with performance of the [****¥##* #k*xxkk4]  CSG and the applicable Customer shall execute a mutually agreed upon Statement of Work for
such Kiosk Unit purchase(s) to reflect the agreed upon purchase price, the then-applicable Thinman Specifications or Benchmark Series Specification, as
applicable (as defined in each such applicable Statement of Work) and Kiosk Software Specifications (as defined in Attachment D of Exhibit C-4(a)) as well as
delivery, implementation and acceptance testing specifics. As used herein, the term “[¥¥### ¥k Fkkdixkk%%> means, collectively, the ** ¥ ¥k dxok

FAddk Rk okl (as defined in in Attachment D of Exhibit C-4(a)) and the **¥###k ko sk seioksokksx dxxodkdkrx+*] (as defined in Attachment D of
Exhibit C-4(a)).

Note 2: Kiosk Software Support Services Fees include Kiosk Software maintenance and support in accordance with Schedule H of the Agreement and future
Updates and CSG defined enhancements specific to CSG’s Kiosk Software (collectively, “[**¥#* Hkisksk sk skkxx4%%]”). For avoidance of doubt,
Customer may, at its option, purchase Kiosk Software Support Services after the expiration of the Warranty for some or all of the Benchmark Series Kiosk
Units and/or any such Additional Kiosk Units and/or the Existing Kiosk Unit on which the Kiosk Software is loaded. The Kiosk Software Support Fees for
each Kiosk Unit will be invoiced [*#***** fo]lowing *#### 3kt adkixskik] (as defined in the applicable Statements of Work between CSG and Customer
for the period commencing as of the [***%* of *¥**¥¥%* of gach **** **x¥* *4%*] 19 Customer's designated location pursuant to the Agreement; provided
however, if implementation of a Kiosk Unit is delayed due to CSG or Hardware TPV-caused issues, then the commencement date of the initial Kiosk Software
Support Services term shall instead be the date of [¥#*****¥** of guch ***** ****] [f following the Warranty Period, a Customer terminates use of a Kiosk
Unit in accordance with the Agreement and such termination date is effective during a ******* bjlling
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period, CSG will bill Customer the Software Support Services Fees for the [******* of the *****] that the Software Support is provided, pro-rating the billing
period for the actual termination date.

Note 3: Any additional Customer-requested design graphics services will be performed pursuant to a separate Statement of Work which may include additional
fees for such services.
Note 4: Customer and CSG acknowledge and agree that, following the delivery date of a Kiosk Unit to Customer's designated location, any changes that occur
in the EMV Standard (defined below), the Legal Requirements (as defined in Exhibit C-4(a) Attachment D) and/or the Currency Update Requirements (as
defined in Exhibit C-4(a) Attachment D) that impact the Hardware Components of such Kiosk Unit will, upon completion of the Customer requested hardware
upgrade or replacement, be subject to the additional fees for any additional or replacement Hardware Components that are set forth in the then current
[¥#***x%%%] Price List; provided however, that any necessary or appropriate firmware and drivers associated with such additional or replacement hardware
shall be provided to such Customer [** * #dskeicrsors saoiorn®]
Note 5: “[*#* #****%%]” means the provision, installation and configuration of all Hardware Component modifications, additions or replacements, any
necessary or appropriate firmware and drivers associated with such Hardware Component modifications, additions or replacements, and all Kiosk Software
enhancements, necessary in order for the Kiosk Unit to comply with the current version of the technical specifications for the inter-operation of integrated
circuit cards (“[**** *****]”) and Chip Card capable point of sale terminals for authenticating credit and debit card transactions as defined by [*##*** **%*]
and any related specifications or requirements of any payment card network such as VISA, MasterCard, Discover and AMEX applicable to terminals
(COlleCtiVCly, the “[*** ********”). The skokok skokoskoskosksksk skokok includes all skkokkkk and skskokokkkk expenses associated Wlth the sk sk sk sk skok ok sk skoskoskosk and *************]
of such modified, additional or replacement Hardware Components and Kiosk Software enhancements. For purposes of clarification, each Additional Kiosk
Unit delivered to Customer(s) shall be capable of being upgraded to meet the EMV Standard. Once an EMV Standard compliant Kiosk Unit is offered by CSG,
(a) the Hardware Components for each Kiosk Unit shall automatically be amended to set forth the additional or replacement hardware for such EMV Standard
compliant Kiosk Unit for any Existing and Additional Kiosk Units and (b) from that point forward, CSG may only ship EMV Standard compliant Kiosk Units
to Customer.
Note 6: Only the [**##* Hisdsook dordoior dooiotdik %% listed in the table above are subject to ******** pyrguant to ******* ***] of the Agreement.
Note 7: The [******] rates are designed to be cumulative meaning that if Customer has elected Kiosk Software Support Services for [*#** ¥k sk
(***) Kiosk Units during the respective ******* billing period, Customer shall pay the then-current **** *** per unit rate for all ¥ *¥kix sk (xx])
Kiosk Units. The [*******] maintenance rate to be invoiced for the existing Kiosk Units shall be the then-current [**** *** rate based on *** ******] of
Kiosk Units in service on the last day of the respective [*******] billing period.
Note 8: «[*x#sksikk sohoksion sk sdokdork soxkokdokak sxdkr**]” shall mean Customer’s ability to elect to purchase and consume (i) the Warranty for an
additional [*** (*) ****] period and (i1) Warranty Cleaning Services for:
*Benchmark Series Kiosk Units purchased by Customer under that certain Statement of Work (CSG document no. 4132764), executed by the parties and
effective as of [*** **], 2020, (“Benchmark Series Kiosk Unit SOW”), pursuant to that certain Change Order (CSG document no. [*****]) to the
Benchmark Series Kiosk Unit specifying (i) the Benchmark Series Kiosk Units for which Customer has requested, and (ii) for which CSG will provide
the Warranty Upgrade (“Benchmark Series Kiosk Unit SOW Change Order”); and
*Benchmark Series Kiosk Units purchased by Customer, pursuant to the Agreement, from and after the Amendment Effective Date of that certain Fifty-
ninth Amendment to the Agreement (“Subsequent Benchmark Series Kiosk Units”) and as agreed by the parties in any subsequent Statement(s) of Work
for implementation of each/any Benchmark Series Kiosk Unit(s) for which Customer elects the Warranty Upgrade that will be invoiced by CSG to
Customer and Customer shall pay CSG the specified fees in line item 6 of the fee table above.
For purposes of clarification, Customer’s ability to purchase and utilize the Warranty Upgrade is limited to only Benchmark Series Kiosk Units purchased in
the Benchmark Series Kiosk Unit SOW and Subsequent Benchmark Series Kiosk Units (each as defined above in this Note 8) purchased by Customer.
Additionally, Customer’s ability to purchase and utilize the Warranty Upgrade for Benchmark Series Kiosk Units under the Benchmark Series Kiosk Series
SOW must be identified by Customer, agreed by CSG and documented in that one (1) certain Benchmark Series Kiosk Units SOW Change Order. For
purposes of clarification, Customer shall specify whether purchase of any Subsequent Benchmark Series Kiosk(s) shall be for the Warranty Period (i.e., the
[*¥#****] Warranty Period under the Agreement) or if such purchase shall be for the Warranty Period and the Warranty Upgrade.in the Statement(s) of Work
for implementation of each/any purchased Subsequent Benchmark Series Kiosk Units. For clarification, regardless of the purchase date of the Kiosk Unit under
the Benchmark Series Kiosk Unit SOW or the Warranty Upgrade under the Benchmark Series Kiosk Unit Change Order, the Warranty Period commences
upon installation of the Kiosk Unit, and the Warranty Upgrade commences immediately upon expiration of the Warranty Period.
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For purposes of clarification, any terms to the contrary notwithstanding, the parties acknowledge and agree CSG shall invoice and Customer shall pay Kiosk
Software Support Services Fees [*******] as provided in and pursuant to the terms of Schedule F, “Fees,” “Section 1. CSG SERVICES,” Subsection III,
“Payment Procurement,” subsection D., Precision eCare Payment Kiosks, line item 2 of the fee table and Note 2.

THIS AMENDMENT is executed on the days and year last signed below to be effective as of the date last signed below (the “Amendment Effective Date”).

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS OPERATING, LLC (“CUSTOMER”)

By: Charter Communications, Inc., its Manager

ATTACHMENT 1

CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

/s/ Gregory L. Cannon

Gregory L. Cannon

Chief Legal Officer

Nov 16, 2021

Exhibit Attachment D for Precision eCare® Payment Kiosks

By: /s/ Pattie Eliason
Name: Pattie Eliason
Title: SVP, Spectrum Stores and Retail Sales
Date: Nov 16, 2021
UPGRADE WARRANTY

Benchmark Series Kiosk Units Warranty Upgrade: CSG will provide and Customer will have the right (but not the obligation) to purchase and consume the Benchmark
Series Kiosk Units Warranty Upgrade as such Benchmark Series Kiosk Units Warranty Upgrade is described in that certain Fifty-ninth Amendment to the Agreement executed

by the parties (CSG document no. 36958).

1. Additional Warranty:

The Upgrade Warranty shall include (i) an additional [*** (*) ****] period of the Warranty that shall commence immediately upon expiration of the Warranty Period (as
defined in Section 1, “Term,” of the “Additional Warranty Terms” of “Exhibit 1 to Exhibit Attachment D for Precision eCare® Payment Kiosks™) and shall continue

thereafter for the referenced [*** (*) ****] period (the “Additional Warranty Period”).

2.  Warranty Cleaning Services:

Commencing upon the Amendment Effective Date of the Fifty-ninth Amendment to the Agreement, during the Warranty Period and the Additional Warranty Period
described in Section 1 above, CSG (by and with its Hardware TPV) shall provide [******] cleaning services (the “Warranty Cleaning Services”) with respect to each of
the Existing Benchmark Series Kiosk Units purchased by Customer pursuant to the Benchmark Series Kiosk Unit SOW (as amended) and deployed at a Customer location
and to each of the Subsequent Benchmark Series Kiosk Unit for which Customer has elected to purchase the Warranty Upgrade. To initiate the Warranty Cleaning
Services, a technician will be scheduled by CSG (through its Hardware TPV) to arrive at the Customer location with all necessary materials and tools and such technician
shall perform the Warranty Cleaning Services, and ensure upon completion, that the Existing Benchmark Series Kiosk Units and the Subsequent Benchmark Series Kiosk
Units are performing in accordance with the Benchmark Series Specifications. For purposes of clarification, the Warranty Cleaning Services will not include Warranty
Services identified by the technician. Any such issues identified by the technician will be reported by the technician to Customer and Customer shall initiate notification to
CSG pursuant to the Trouble Report and Process of the Hardware Warranty and Onsite Hardware Warranty Services.



Exhibit10.27K

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE EXHIBIT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH (I) NOT MATERIAL AND
() WOULD BE COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. SUCH EXCLUDED INFORMATION IS IDENTIFIED BY BRACKETS AND

MARKED WITH (**¥),

TENTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC

THIS TENTH AMENDMENT (this “Tenth Amendment”) is made by and between CSG Systems, Inc. (“CSG”) and Comcast Cable Communications
Management, LLC (“Customer”). The effective date of this Amendment is the date last signed below (the “Tenth Amendment Effective Date”). CSG and
Customer entered into a certain CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement (CSG document #4131273) with an effective date of January 1, 2020 (the
“Agreement”) and now desire to further amend the Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Tenth Amendment. If the terms and
conditions set forth in this Tenth Amendment conflict with the Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Tenth Amendment shall control. Any terms in initial
capital letters or all capital letters used as a defined term but not defined in this Tenth Amendment shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. Upon
execution of this Tenth Amendment by the Parties, any subsequent reference to the Agreement between the Parties shall mean the Agreement as amended by this
Tenth Amendment. Except as amended by this Tenth Amendment, the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

CSG and Customer agree to the following:

1.Customer and CSG are entering into that certain Statement of Work (CSG document no. [*****]) whereby CSG created a solution to support [*****
wekk kddk kknd (the Cledededed Tkl Tkdk hkkwk whk ****]”)' Customer requests that CSG support and maintain the [***** Tekkek Tkdk khhwk hhk ****], and the
Parties wish to amend the Agreement to incorporate the fees, terms and conditions of such support and maintenance.

Therefore, as of the Tenth Amendment Effective Date, Schedule F, “Fees,” section entitled “IV. Ancillary Products and Services,” subsection A entitled

“Ancillary services for Non-Rated Video and Non-Rated High-Speed Data and Residential Voice Services,” is amended to add a new subsection 14. “[*****
skskoskok skoksk skoksksksk kokok ****]” as fOllOWS:

Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
14.[***** wkdd kdkd kkddh k% ****l
A[**************] Services (Note 1) [*** *******] [*****]
B.[*********** EEES *******] Fee (Note 2) (Note 3) [********] $[*********]

Note 1: [###xxsdkiirs® Qoryices and the **##* *******] Feeg are prescribed in that certain Statement of Work effective [**** ** 2021 (“SOW #*¥#kskkisdskii]?)
Note 2: After the [¥##**¥ *x¥¥k hag heen *Hrx¥kkksk ko sk stk sk dkkrxxddsrr] CSG shall invoice Customer, consistent with the terms and conditions of the
Agreement [** sfesfeskoieostesteosk sieosteokoikolokokoskolokok siokok *******] Fee Customer Wlll Continue to [** e sfe sk ki i sk ok the sfe sfe skt sk koskoieokok seokok siokokokoiokok Fee on sfesk sk sk kok sk basis ***********] Wlth the

s .
Agreement; provided, if prior to the expiration of the Agreement, Customer implements [* **#* **¥* golution to support **#*#* *** ****] i the production environment that eliminates
the need for CSG to [*¥* *¥* sk sk ook sk xxx xx%%] (for purposes of this Note 2, the «“[H##xxksksk sk ok dkxxtkd*]”) CSG will no longer [******* Customer the
sfe sk ke sfe sk skl sfeoskokok skeokok *******] Fee on and after [*** seskokosiosk skok skokok ****’ that the (a) sfe 3fe 3k ke sfe sk sk sk ***/*** sfeskeoskeostesteskokoske sk sk kol sk skokok sk kok and (b) seskoiesiosk skokokeok skoleok skoleokokok skeokok ****] ]'s not
utilized (the “[**¥33x3x *xkx]?) - Specifically, CSG will provide Customer [* ****** agqaingt the 333333 *%% Qupport Fee received by CSG for a given ****], such fee to be
prorated to the [**** skeokok sk skokok skokokokok in Wthh the skeskoskoskoskokoksk ok ok ****] occurs. CSG Shﬁll prOVide Customer any [********** skskskokokok on the sesfeskok skokoskokokok skokokokskokok that iS seskokokok kokskok
(**) days after the sk sk sk skosk sk skok sk ****]. By Way Ofexample, lfthe [*********** skeksk skokoskokokskok Fee applies soskokoskokskok sk through soskokoskokskokk kok Ofa sk ko ****’ and the seoskeokoskok skokoskokok kokoksk
occurs on ¥k #x%%] of such year, CSG shall provide Customer [* ##¥##k of ik () doiciieik of the ok sk 3oxxxxx¥] Fee previously charged and paid.

Note 3: Maintenance and Support includes any minor updates to the solution because of release changes, as well as resolution of any possible problems with the [*###### sk



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Tenth Amendment to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC

(“CUSTOMER”)

By: /s/ Jeur Abeln
Name: Jeur Abeln
Title: SVP Procurement

Date: _05-Oct-21

CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)

By: /s/ Gregory L. Cannon
Name: Gregory L. Cannon
Title: SVP, General Counsel & Secretary

Date: Sep 15,2021

Exhibit10.27K
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THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE EXHIBIT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH (I) NOT MATERIAL AND (II) WOULD BE
COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. SUCH EXCLUDED INFORMATION IS IDENTIFIED BY BRACKETS AND MARKED WITH (***),

ELEVENTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC

THIS ELEVENTH AMENDMENT (this “Eleventh Amendment”) is made by and between CSG Systems, Inc. (“CSG”) and Comcast Cable Communications
Management, LLC (“Customer”). The effective date of this amendment is the date last signed below (the “Eleventh Amendment Effective Date””). CSG and Customer entered
into a certain CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement (CSG document #4131273) with an effective date of January 1, 2020 (the “Agreement”) and now desire
to further amend the Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Eleventh Amendment. If the terms and conditions set forth in this Eleventh
Amendment conflict with the Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Eleventh Amendment shall control. Any terms in initial capital letters or all capital letters used as a
defined term but not defined in this Eleventh Amendment shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. Upon execution of this Eleventh Amendment by the Parties, any
subsequent reference to the Agreement between the Parties shall mean the Agreement as amended by this Eleventh Amendment. Except as amended by this Eleventh
Amendment, the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

CSG and Customer agree to the following:
1.Customer and CSG are entering that certain Statement of Work (CSG document no. [*****]) whereby CSG added [**¥*¥** k% & (¢cx&*x]7) functionality to improve
security to [****] user (the “[*¥** *¥*]”)  Customer requests that CSG support and maintain the [**** **¥] and the Parties wish to amend the Agreement to

incorporate the fees, terms and conditions of such support and maintenance.

Therefore, as of the Eleventh Amendment Effective Date, Schedule F, “Fees,” section entitled “IV. Ancillary Products and Services,” subsection A entitled “Ancillary
services for Non-Rated Video and Non-Rated High-Speed Data and Residential Voice Services,” is amended to add a new subsection 15. “[### ko sk sk (coxsa]ry»

as follows:
Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
15.[**** feddeddedk ket hek (***])
A[**************] Services (Note 1) [*** *******] [*****]

Note 1: [***##kkxxkkirx] Services and the [*******] Fees are prescribed in that certain Statement of Work effective [**### k%% %% (D] (“SQW *#kksk sdokiikk]?)
Note 2: CSG shall invoice Customer, consistent with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, an [**¥### sksksdorsksor Jokk dkkxx4% Fee, the later of 1) **#****
*]’ 2022, or 11) [****** soskoskok sk skoskoskoskok ****] Ofthe prOjeCt. On [******* *, 2022, Customer WIH Continue to sk skokkkkk the sieoskokokoskoskokoskokoskok skokok skokokoskoskoksk Fee on k3

FAAAEK basis FFRFFFFHEERX] with the Agreement.
Note 3: [*********** sk sk oiok Jpefudes FFRRRE Rkl oioksok okl sokskokiok g9 | g FRRRRERR g skioiksiokkokk the data as it related to ¥k Fkskk Kk

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Eleventh Amendment to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)
(“CUSTOMER”)

By: /s/ Jeur Abeln By: /s/ Gregory L. Cannon

Name: Jeur Abeln Name: Gregory L. Cannon

Title: SVP Procurement Title: SVP, General Counsel & Secretary

Date: 18-Oct-21 Date: Oct 7, 2021
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THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE EXHIBIT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH (I) NOT MATERIAL AND
() WOULD BE COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. SUCH EXCLUDED INFORMATION IS IDENTIFIED BY BRACKETS AND

MARKED WITH (**¥),

TWELFTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC

THIS TWELFTH AMENDMENT (this “Twelfth Amendment”) is made by and between CSG Systems, Inc. (“CSG”) and Comcast Cable Communications
Management, LLC (“Customer”). The effective date of this Amendment is the date last signed below (the “Twelfth Amendment Effective Date”). CSG and
Customer entered into a certain CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement (CSG document #4131273) with an effective date of January 1, 2020 (the
“Agreement”) and now desire to further amend the Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Twelfth Amendment. If the terms and
conditions set forth in this Twelfth Amendment conflict with the Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Twelfth Amendment shall control. Any terms in
initial capital letters or all capital letters used as a defined term but not defined in this Twelfth Amendment shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement.
Upon execution of this Twelfth Amendment by the Parties, any subsequent reference to the Agreement between the Parties shall mean the Agreement as amended
by this Twelfth Amendment. Except as amended by this Twelfth Amendment, the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement shall continue in full force and
effect.

CSG and Customer agree to the following:

1.Customer and CSG executed that certain Statement of Work (CSG document no. [**%¥* #¥*#¥%¥]) whereby CSG agreed to create a [*¥**¥*¥*¥* g
support automated ****%¥** **%* apnd wh (the w* FkEkEk®*]”), Customer requests that CSG support
and maintain the [*¥¥%¥¥%% dkkkddkddk kkkkkxx¥] and the Parties wish to amend the Agreement to incorporate the fees, terms and conditions of such
support and maintenance.

Therefore, as of the Twelfth Amendment Effective Date, Schedule F, “Fees,” section entitled “IV. Ancillary Products and Services,” subsection A entitled

“Ancillary services for Non-Rated Video and Non-Rated High-Speed Data and Residential Voice Services,” is amended to add a new subsection 12.
“[******** skskokokokskskok ********]” as fOllOWS:

Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
12.] |
A[**************] Services (Note 1) [*** *******] [*****]
B.[******* ko ***********] Fees (Note 2) (Note 3) [******] $*********]

Note 1: [##**xxxkkiixx*] Services and the associated fees are set forth in that certain Statement of Work [******* (CSG document no. *****) (“SQOW *****”) effective *** *], 2021.
The solution delivered or to be delivered pursuant to SOW [*****] i referred to in this subsection 12 and associated Notes as the “[***¥¥#skk soksoiirtok skskokdkixx]?

Note 2: Support and maintenance includes any minor updates to the format of the [***** *****] because of release changes, as well as resolution of any possible problems with the
[******** sk sk sk sk sk sk sk skok skosk sk ok , or skoskoskoskok sk Ofthe kokoskok sk ****] as Well as any ChaHECS to the [******** skeoskoskeoeoskoskoskokokok sokoskokskokok ok (***) seskoskok ko ok that COuld ok ko k. hOW thC sk sk sk skosk sk ok
R kR g executed All other updates (i.e., a new [**** ******]) are considered major updates and are outside the scope of this support and maintenance and will require
the Parties mutual written agreement including, but not llmlted to, Customer requested changes to the [¥### ¥k sk sxxkkdr* o accommodate a change in Customer’s ***¥#***
*#kk] or other Customer and/or third party systems.

N()te 3: The [******* sk sk ***********] FeeS Shall commence being inVOiCCd by CSG and pald by CuStOmCr upon [*** skkoskokoskokosksk skok skokokskok kk (ﬁ) seskoskoskoskskoksk sk skokokokskokskokok sk skok skokokskok
sfeskosiestestokok skokokoskoskokokoskokok (***) sesfeskokoskosok and sfeskeostestestokokosked sk sieoskokokokolokokokoske skok seokok sokololokokokske skokokokokoskoskok ********, (b) sfe sk skoskskeosk (**) days siesfeskok sk sfeokokokoskoskok ok Ofthe sfesfeoskeoskeosteskokok skokokoskokokskosk
sfeskosiostestokoskosk dkok sokok *******] provided there are no [********** 34 sfe sk skoske sk ok ok (********/******** *) ********] Wlth such deliverables’ or (C) Customer’s use Ofthe [******** 3¢ 3k sk sk sk skokosk
skoskosk skok skok sk il’l a sk sk sk sk skosk skosk sk sk ***********]_ Thereafter, SuCl’l [****** skokoskokoskokok skokok ***********] FCC shall bC iIlVOiCCd by CSG and pald
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by Customer on [** sskokskok sk baSiS (********* soskokosk skoksk skokoskokok skolkokoskoksokskokoksk skokskok Ofthe skeskoskok sk in Wthh the sekoskoskokskok skskok skokokokokokskok ok ok Fees was seskokoskok skokok ok ********’ as determined
in accordance with the preceding sentence) for the ***¥¥¥¥¥* of the ****],

2. Customer and CSG executed that certain Letter of Authorization (CSG document no. [*****]) effective [*¥*** ** 2021 (“LOA *****]”) whereby
CSG agreed to create an integration to [*******‘k whhThhhw tO FhXTXLLLIL Hhhbbtd Ahhbdd Akdw (“**-k”) changes made by an Khhd Kk kb hbhNhw

% (the 3 ke Fededk whk ********]”)' As provided in LOA [*****, the Fddk ke wkdkkdkd g Subject to an
Tededhwh Tk wwhhhw fee fOr the support and maintenance Of the % vk fdddwk vk fddk knk ********].

Therefore, as of the Twelfth Amendment Effective Date, Schedule F, “Fees,” section entitled “IV. Ancillary Products and Services,” subsection A entitled

“Ancillary services for Non-Rated Video and Non-Rated High-Speed Data and Residential Voice Services,” is amended to add a new subsection 13. “[¥***%*%*
skoskeskeokoskoskoskoskokoksk skskokok skskesk ********]” as fOllOWS:

Description of Item/Unit of Measure Frequency Fee
13. [****** wedkhdhd ek hkkk wuw ********]
a)[**************] SerViCeS (Note 1) [*** *******] [*****]
b)[******* ks ***********] Fee (Note 2) (Note 3) [******] $[*********]

Note 1: [##*xxxdkiirxsk] Services and the associated fees are set forth in that certain Letter of Authorization (CSG document no. [****%) (“LOA *****”) effective ***** **] 202].
Note 2: Support and maintenance includes any minor updates to the format of the [****] because of release changes, as well as resolution of any possible problems with the send or
receive of the [*¥¥¥#k Hkkk yig sk sxkok xkkdkxx*]. All other updates are considered major updates (ie. a new [**** ******]) and are outside the scope of this support and
maintenance and will require the Parties mutual written agreement including, but not limited to, Customer requested changes to the [ dadakasiaaoha docick okl Joriosios to
accommodate a change in **¥¥¥kkk 2% stk stk x44%] or other Customer and/or third party systems.

Note 3: The [******* sesfesk skt skokoskeokokokoskok Fee for siesfeskokeoskoske skoskoskeoskokoskoskokokskok With sk skokoskokoskokok sk iS in the amount 0f$********* ********]. For Clariﬁcation purposes’ the [*********
*xxxx%] fee in the amount of $[**#*#*** referenced in that certain LOA ***** entered into between the Parties is ** ###skokok ]  The [k sk doolokdoldoldolk Fog Hkddok
Fr ok xxxk CSGTs ¥xxxxxxxxx of the Services described in LOA ***** (the “LOA *¥¥¥¥ sk +4447) and on ** ****** basis thereafter beginning with the *****
sfeskoskoskoskoskokskokoskosk skokskok Ofthe skoksk skokskokok skokokskokskokskokok ****]. The [***** seokokoskok sk skokskokoskskok skekok ***********] Fee Wlll be pald by Customer through the [********* sk skskoksk skokokskokskokkokok
FFAAAAX] (as such term is defined in that certain SOW titled “2021 Services [**********]” (CSG document no. [*¥¥¥#k¥) dcksksdoodion dooxksdokdk *%] 2020. Thereafter, such [******
bk ek dokdkxokkkk*] Fee shall be invoiced by CSG and paid by Customer on [*# *##*¥* basis for the *#*** ¥4k of the *H**],

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have caused this Twelfth Amendment to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)
(“CUSTOMER”)

By: /s/ Jeur Abeln By: /s/ Gregory L. Cannon

Name: Jeur Abeln Name: Gregory L. Cannon

Title: SVP Procurement Title: SVP, General Counsel & Secretary

Date: 29-Oct-21 Date: Oct 15,2021
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THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE EXHIBIT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH (I) NOT MATERIAL AND (II) WOULD BE
COMPETITIVELY HARMFEUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. SUCH EXCLUDED INFORMATION IS IDENTIFIED BY BRACKETS AND MARKED WITH (*%%),

THIRTEENTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC

THIS THIRTEENTH AMENDMENT (this “Thirteenth Amendment”) is made by and between CSG Systems, Inc. (“CSG”) and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC (“Customer”). The effective date of this amendment is the date last signed below (the “Thirteenth Amendment Effective
Date”). CSG and Customer entered into a certain CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreement (CSG document #4131273) with an effective date of
January 1, 2020 (the “Agreement”) and now desire to further amend the Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Thirteenth
Amendment. If the terms and conditions set forth in this Thirteenth Amendment conflict with the Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Thirteenth
Amendment shall control. Any terms in initial capital letters or all capital letters used as a defined term but not defined in this Thirteenth Amendment shall have the
meaning set forth in the Agreement. Upon execution of this Thirteenth Amendment by the Parties, any subsequent reference to the Agreement between the Parties
shall mean the Agreement as amended by this Thirteenth Amendment. Except as amended by this Thirteenth Amendment, the terms and conditions set forth in the
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

WHEREAS, Customer and CSG previously executed that certain Ninth Amendment to the Agreement (CSG doc. no. [*****]) entered into effective as of [******
*], 2021 (the “Ninth Amendment”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ninth Amendment, the Parties added the [**###* Fksxskarx xkikxki*] to the Agreement, which provides Customer the ability to
access [******** skoskeoskokokoskoskskosk skokoskskeskok in sksksk format and skoskeoskokoskokskoskok sksksksk in format for Customer’s skeskoskoskoskskskokok *********]* and

WHEREAS, Customer now desires, and CSG agrees to provide, the ability for Customer to access similar [*¥##¥k#k stk sk through CSG s *H**F*kkk*
skeoskoskoskskoskok ***]’ and

WHERAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement to clarify the terms and conditions upon which Customer may use the [¥¥*¥¥* *¥skksik sk * and
CSG’S skoskeoskokoskoskoskoskok skokoskoskokokok ***, to access Customer’s skskeoskokoskoskoskoskok skskskk in sksksk and ***] format.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained, CSG and Customer agree to the following as of the
Thirteenth Amendment Effective Date:

1.Customer desires and CSG agrees to provide access to Customer’s subscriber [**¥#¥¥#** *¥%* gtored in *** and ***] format. As a result, Schedule F,
Fees, Section I11. Direct Solutions (Print and Mail Services), subsection X, entitled “[¥¥*¥%* *¥k*xk%x] > sha|l be amended and restated, as follows, and a
new subsection X1, entitled [**#* ¥k k% sk *ix] > ghall be added, as follows:



Description of Item/Unit of Measure

A. [***** (*) stk sk sk (Current steskeskesksk plus seksk (*) prlor ******) ******** sesk_skeokskok
skskok skoksk access to Customer S seskoskoskoskosteok ok sk skodokskoksokskok shokskokokok (*** format per ****

*EREHE) and *¥F* access to FFFFFFIHE Hkkk (R%%* format per ***] record) (Note 24)

AL )
B[k sokson sskkdokionk [k ok kool | Fee
1.per [HH# ik (rksoksr sk (%) sk 55%] Note 25)

2.Each additional [**¥%* of *** (%) #kxskkxsk **x%*] or portion thereof

Exhibit 10.27N

Frequency Fee

Note 24: CSG shall archive [**###k () sk of stk sk jn *%* format and ********* data in *** format for Customer’s subscriber ***### sk yig sk diokododok
Frddddkx kxkkRR] The fee is [F***¥#k* skdikrx* hased on the current **¥¥% 7% sk sk gpd *kx kxxkk xxkk%+] ingested into the archival system. For example, and

purposes Ofclarity, ]fthe current [*****’* Sesfeskok skeoskokoksk and siesfesk skosfeoskokokosk skokoskokokok ]'S **’***’***’ the fee Sha]l be $******** (********** * $*****])‘

Note 25: Upon the Thirteenth Amendment Effective Date and continuing through the [****] of the Agreement, CSG will provide Customer [****** to retrieve *** format and
sieskoskokokokokkok skoksksk in ks fOI'll’lat Via seskeskokokskokokok skokokokokokk ***]_ PriCil’lg fOI' thlS [****** iS baSCd upon the number Of skskoskokok Of*** skskskoskokok and sk skokokokoksksk per *****]_ The [*****
HHE (k) FRExEEE pulls per ***** are included in the **¥¥#* *kskkikixk foe gt ** **kkikxx+%] charge. Customer will be charged for each additional increment of [¥*%* (*) **x¥*k*

e skoskosieosk or portion thereofonce ek (*) st sfeskokoskeoske ok skeoskeoskoksk in a e sfe skokskeosk ok period is *********]‘

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Thirteenth Amendment to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)

(“CUSTOMER”)

By: /s/ Jeur Abeln

Name: Jeur Abeln

By: /s/ Gregory L. Cannon

Name: Gregory L. Cannon

Title: SVP Procurement Title: SVP, General Counsel & Secretary

Date: 03-Dec-21 Date: Nov 23, 2021



Subsidiary

Ascade AB

Ascade Middle East FZ-LLC

Billing Intec Uruguay S.A.

CSG Forte Payments Holdings, Inc.

CSG Forte Payments, Inc.

CSG Forte Payments Canada, Inc.

CSG International Australia Pty Limited
CSG International Colombia SAS

CSG International (NZ) Limited

CSG International Pty Limited

CSG International PTE Ltd

CSG International Sdn Bhd

MobileCard Holdings, LLC

CSG SA Holdings (Pty) Limited

CSG SA Services (Pty) Limited

CSG Systems International, Inc.

CSG Systems U.K. Limited

CSG Systems, Inc.

Designgen, Comunicagdo Visual, Unipessoal Lda.
DGIT Systems Pty, Ltd.

DGIT Holdings Pty, Ltd.

DGIT Limited

DGIT NZ Limited

Digiquant, Inc.

Independent Technology Billing Solutions S de RL de CV
Inomial Pty, Ltd.

CSG Systems International (India) Pvt. Ltd.
Independent Technology Systems Limited
Independent Technology Systems SL Unipersonal
Intec Billing Canada Ltd.

Intec Billing Ireland

Intec Billing Nigeria Limited

Intec Billing, Inc.

Intec Telecom Systems (France) SARL
Intec Telecom Systems Denmark A/S

Intec Telecom Systems Deutschland GmbH
Intec Telecom Systems do Brasil Limitada
Intec Telecom Systems Italia S.P.A.

Intec Telecom Systems Limited

Intec Telecom Systems South Africa (Pty) Limited
Keydok Mexico SA de CV

Kitewheel (U.K.) Limited

PT DGIT Indonesia

Tango Telecom Litd.

Tango Telecom Sdn Bhd

Volubill Danmark ApS

Volubill, Inc.

CSG Systems International, Inc.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant
As of December 31, 2021

EXHIBIT 21.01

State or Country

of Organization
Sweden

United Arab Emirates
Uruguay
Delaware
Delaware
Canada
Australia
Colombia

New Zealand
Australia
Singapore
Malaysia
Delaware

South Africa
South Africa
Delaware
United Kingdom
Delaware
Portugal
Australia
Australia

Ireland

New Zealand
Delaware
Mexico
Australia

India

United Kingdom
Spain

Canada

Ireland

Nigeria
Delaware
France

Denmark
Germany

Brazil

Italy

United Kingdom
South Africa
Mexico

United Kingdom
Indonesia
Ireland
Malaysia
Denmark
Delaware



EXHIBIT 23.01
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333-117928, 333-125584, 333-176579, 333-176580, 333-196530, 333-227000,

333-248228) on Form S-8 of our reports dated February 18, 2022, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of CSG Systems International, Inc. and the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
February 18, 2022



EXHIBIT 31.01

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Brian A. Shepherd, certify that:
1.I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of CSG Systems International, Inc.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: February 18, 2022 /s/ Brian A. Shepherd
Brian A. Shepherd
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.02

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Hai Tran, certify that:
1.I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of CSG Systems International, Inc.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: February 18, 2022 /s/ Hai Tran
Hai Tran
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.01

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Report™) for the purpose of complying with Rule
13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

Brian A. Shepherd, the Chief Executive Officer and Hai Tran, the Chief Financial Officer of CSG Systems International, Inc., each certifies that, to the best of his
knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of CSG Systems
International, Inc.
February 18, 2022
/s/ Brian A. Shepherd

Brian A. Shepherd
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 18, 2022
/s/ Hai Tran

Hai Tran
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



